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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE

BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS LLC, Cancellation No. 92/049,264
Petitioner, Reg. Nos. 761,883; 1,432,009; and 2,924,744
v. Marks: SLIP 'N SLIDE; YELLLOW SLIDE
DESIGN, and YELLOW/BLUE SLIDE
WHAM-O, INC., DESIGN
Respondent.

United States Patent and Trademark Office
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board

P.O. Box 1451

Alexandria, VA 22313-1451

MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION OF BOARD'S ORDER
SUSPENDING PROCEEDINGS OR, IN THE ALTERNATIVE,
MOTION TO RESUME PROCEEDINGS

I INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Trademark Rules 2.117(a) and 2.127, Petitioner AW Computer Holdings,
LLC ("Petitioner") hereby moves the Board to reconsider its Order dated August 14, 2008,
suspending proceedings in the instant matter pending disposition of two civil actions. In the
alternative, Petitioner moves the Board for an order to resume proceedings in the instant matter,
at least with respect to U.S. Reg. No. 761,883 for SLIP 'N SLIDE (the SLIP N SLIDE
Registration").

Petitioner is a company that is in the process of entering the water toy industry, primarily
as a marketer, seller, and distributor of slip 'n slides. In the instant cancellation proceeding,

Petitioner seeks cancellation of three unrelated registrations - the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration,
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on the grounds that the term _"sh'p 'n slide" is generic, as well as two other registrations involving
ﬁmelated marks - each on distinct and independent grounds. Two of these registrations are
involved in currently pending civil actions. The SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration, however, 1s in no
way involved in or affected by any civil action currently pending between the parties.

On August 14, 2008, the Board issued an Order (the "Suspension Order") suspending
proceedings in this cancellation action - with respect to all three registrations - pending final
disposition of the identified civil actions. As a result of the Board's Suspension Order, Petitioner
is precluded from pursuing cancellation of Respondent's registration for the generic term "slip 'n
stide" until after final disposition of twé civil actions that neither involve, nor have any bearing
on, the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration. This result is improper under Trademark Rule 2.1117(a),
contrary to the strong public interest in speedy cancellation of registrations for generic terms, and
manifestly unfair.

Accordingly, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board reconsider its Suspension
Order, at least with respect to the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration, and issue an order resuming
proceedings with respect to the SLIP N SLIDE Registration.

IL FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A. The Registrations at Issue

In this action, Petitioner secks cancellation of three independent trademark registrations
owned by Respondent, each on distinct and independent grounds, as follows:
. U.S. Reg. No. 761,883 for SLIP 'N SLIDE (the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration") on
grounds that the term "slip 'n slide" 1s generic;
. U.S. Reg. No. 1,432,069 for the YELLOW SLIDE Design (the "YELLOW
SLIDE Registration") on the grounds of fraud on the Trademark Office, as well as

functionality; and
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. U.S. Reg. No. 2,924,744 for the YELLOW/BLUE SLIDE Design (the
"YELLOW/BLUE Registration") on the grounds that the "mark" is merely
ornamental and/or descriptive and has not acquired secondary meaning.

Petitioner could have filed three separate cancellation proceedings, one for each registration. In
the interest of judicial economy, however, Petitioner filed only one proceeding i which it stated
the separate and independent grounds for cancellation of each of the three registrations.

B. The Civil Actions

On August 14, 2008, the Board issued it's Suspension Order suspending proceedings in
the Cancellation Action pending resolution the following civil actions:

. SLB Toys USA, Inc. v. Wham-O, Inc., ¢t al., United States District Court for the

Central District of California, Civil Action No. LCV06-1382 RSWL (CWx),
currently on appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit
(the "First Action"); and
. Wham-Q, Inc. v. AW Computer Holdings LLC, et al., United States District
Court for the Central District of California, Civil Action No. CV08-01281 RSWIL.
(CWx) (the "Second Action").!
The SLIP N SLIDE Registration is not at issue or involved in either of the foregoing
proceedings.

1. The First Action

In the First Action, Respondent alleged that SLB Toys USA, Inc. ("SLB"} infringed its
rights in both the YELLOW SLIDE Design mark and the YELLOW/BLUE SLIDE Design mark.
See SLB's Complaint in the First Action and Respondent's Answer and Counterclaims in the

First Action, attached hereto as Exhibits A and B, respectively. In turn, SLB alleged that the

' The First Action and the Second Action are collectively referred to herein as the "Civil Actions."
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YELLOW SLIDE Registration had been abandoned and should be cancelled. Seeid. On or
about October 11, 2007, the jury in the First Action rendered a verdict finding that, inter alia,
that Respondent had not abandoned the YELLOW SLIDE Design mark, that SL.B had infringed
the YELLOW SLIDE Design mark, and that Petitioner had not infringed the YELLOW/BLUE
SLIDE Design mark. See Special Verdict Form from the First Action, attached hereto as Exhibit
C. Thereafter, a judgment in the amount of $6,000,000 was entered in favor of Respondent and
against SLB. See Judgment in the First Action, attached hereto as Exhibit D.

In or around November of 2007, Petitioner acquired from SLB certain assets, as well as
the appellate rights in the First Action, and on March 5, 2008, Petitioner and SLB filed a Notice
of Appeal of the judgment and orders entered in the First Action. See Notice of Appeal filed in
First Action, attached hereto as Exhibit E. The appeal in this matter is currently pending.

The First Action, including the appeal, does not involve any allegations regarding, claims
of infringement of, or requests for cancellation of the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration. In fact, the
First Action has no bearing whatsoever on the SLIP N SLIDE Registration.

2. The Second Action

In the Second Action, Respondent alleged that Petitioner, among others, is the alter ego
and/or successor in interest to SLB, and seeks to impose the judgment entered against SLB in the
First Action against Petitioner on that basis. See Respondent's Second Amended and
Supplemental Complaint in the Second Action, attached hereto as Exhibit F. In the Second
Action, Respondent also alleges against certain defendants, not including Petitioner, have
infringed its rights in the YELLOW SLIDE Design mark and the YELLOW/BLUE SLIDE
Design mark. Seeid. Petitioner, who was named in only one cause of action in the Second
Action, has now been dismissed from that proceeding. See Order re Motion to Dismiss, attached

hereto as Exhibit G.
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The Second Action does not involve any allegations regarding, claims of infringement of,
or requests for cancellation of the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registratton. In fact, the Second Action has
no bearing whatsoever on the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration.

C. The Board's Suspension Order

In its Suspension Order, the Board states that after reviewing the pleadings and other
relevant documents from the Civil Actions, the Civil Actions "involve the same parties and
issues in common with the instant cancellation proceeding.” See Suspension Order, at 3. Based
thereon, the Board concludes that the Civil Action may "have a bearing on the Board
proceeding” and, pursuant to Trademark Rule 2.117(a), ordered all proceedings herein suspended
pending final disposition of the Civil Actions. See id. at 4.

. ARGUMENT

The Suspension Order 1s improper under Trademark Rule 2.1117(a), contrary to the
strong public interest in speedy cancellation of registrations for generic terms, and manifestly
unfair. Accordingly, Petitioner request that the Board issue an order to resume proceedings with
respect to the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration.

A. Trademark Rule 2.117(a) Does Not Support Suspension of Proceedings on
the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration

The Trademark Rules provide that suspension of proceedings 1s appropriate where the
"parties to a pending case are engaged in a civil action or another Board proceeding which may
have a bearing on the case." Trademark Rule 2.117(a).

As noted above, the instant proceeding involves petitions to cancel three separate
registrations on three independent grounds: thelYELLOW SLIDE Registration for fraud on the
Trademark Office and functionality, the YELLOW/BLUE Registration because it is merely

ornamental and/or descriptive, and the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration because it is generic. Only
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the First Action involves the same parties as the instant cancellation proceeding. Similarly, only
thé First Action involves the YELLOW/BLUE Registration. Petitioner does not dispute that the
First Action involves both the YELLOW SLIDE Registration and the YELLOW/BLUE
Registration. Petitioner allows that it is conceivable that the Civil Actions could have a bearing
on the outcome of the petitions to cancel the YELLOW SLIDE Registration and the
YELLOW/BLUE Registration.

Neither of the Civil Actions, however, can have any bearing on the petition to cancel the
SLIP N SLIDE Registration. A review of the relevant documents from the Civil Actions
demonstrates that the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration is simply not involved in either Civil Action.
Further, the petition to cancel the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration does not share any "issues 1n
common" with either of the Civil Actions - both of which involve allegations of infringement of
different marks, neither of which puts at issue the term "slip 'n slide" or any variation or
component thereof.

Because the Civil Actions identified by the Board can have no bearing on the petition to
cancel the SLIP N SLIDE Registration, suspension of the proceedings herein with respect to the
SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration is not warranted by Trademark Rule 2.117(a).

B. Suspension of Proceedings on the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration is Contrary to

the Strong Public Policy Favoring Speedy Cancellation of Registrations for
(eneric Terms

The public has a strong interest in cancelling registrations of generic terms. See, e.g.,

Kaiser Aluminum & Chemical Corporation v. American Meter Company, 153 U.S.P.Q. 419,

420-21 (T.T.A.B. 1967); Southwire Company v. Kaiser Aluminum & Chemical Corporation,

196 U.S.P.Q. 566, 573 (T.T.A.B. 1977) (it is in the "public interest to . . . cancel those
registrations where the registered marks have, since the time of registration, become terms of art

or common description.”). To allow registrations for generic terms to continue to exist on the
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register "would grant the owner of the mark a monopoly, since a competitor could not describe

his goods as what they are." See CES Pub. Corp. v. St. Regis Publications, Inc., 531 F.2d 11, 13
(2d Cir. 1975). The foregoing succinctly describes the situation Petitioner faces.

Respondent 1s the owner of a registration for the generic term "slip 'n shide." Petitioner,
also in the toy industry and in the process of becoming a distributor of "slip 'n slides," is
precluded by Respondent's registration of "slip 'n shide” from describing its proposed goods as
what they are. Instead, if Petitioner wants to describe and market its "slip 'n slide" products, it
must employ an "elaborate and possibly confusing paraphrase” to do so, e.g. flexible plastic

water slides for recreational use. See Door Systems, Inc. v. Pro-Line Door Systems, Inc., 83

F.3d 169, 171 (7th Cir. 1996). Using this description is both confusing and inefficient, and as a
result, as long as Respondent owns the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration, it has an unfair competitive
advantage over Petitioner, as well as other competitors. See id.

Although neither of the Civil Actions have any bearing on the petition to cancel the SLIP
'N SLIDE Registration, the Board's Suspension Order delays the determination of whether that
registration should be cancelled for genericness until the unrelated Civil Actions are resolved.
Final disposition of the Civil Actions could take years. In which case, by its Suspension Order,
the Board could be extending protection for a generic mark by years.

This result 1s contrary to the public interest in favor of speedy cancellation of
registrations for generic marks. Proceedings on the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration should proceed.

C. The Board's Order is Unfair

As noted above, Petitioner could have filed three separate cancellation proceedings, one
for each registration it sought to cancel. Petitioner, however, mindful of judicial economy,
brought all of its petitions to cancel in a single proceeding. Petitioner 18 now being punished for

this decision.
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The only reason that proceedings on the petition to cancel the SLIP 'N SLIDE
Registration have been suspended is because the Civil Actions share issues in common with the
petitions to cancel the YELLOW SLIDE Registration and the YELLOW/BLUE Registration.
Had Petitioner simply filed its petition to cancel the SLIP N SLIDE Registration as a separate
action, proceedings on that action would not have been suspended because, as noted above, no
civi action currently pending between the parties has any bearing on the petition to cancel the
SLIP N SLIDE Registration.

Additionally, the marks that are the subject of each of the three registrations involved are
different and the grounds for cancellation are different for each registration. As a result, there
are no issues i common between the petition to cancel the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration and the
petitions to cancel the YELLOW SLIDE Registration and the YELLOW/BLUE Registration.
Therefore, no mnefficiency or duplication of effort, on the part of either the Board or the parties,
will result if the petition to cancel the SLIP "N SLIDE Registration is allowed to proceeding.

IV. CONCLUSION

For all the foregoing reasons, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board reconsider its
Suspension Order, or in the alternative, that the Board issue an order to resume proceedings in
the instant matter with respect to the SLIP 'N SLIDE Registration.

Respectfully submitted,

Dated: September 15, 2008 By:

Rod S\\YBenn‘e').n, Esq.

Brian W. Kasell, Esq.

Jessica C. Bromall, Esq.

JEFFER MANGELS BUTLER & MARMARO, LLP
1900 Avenue of the Stars, Seventh Floor

Los Angeles, California 90067

(310) 203-8080

Attorneys for Petitioner AW COMPUTER
HOLDINGS LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that one (1) copy of this document is being deposited with the
United States Postal Service as First Class Mail, postage affixed, in an envelope addressed to:

Beth M. Goldman
Heller Ehrman LLP
333 Bush Street
San Francisco CA 94104-2878

Date: September 15, 2008 //\w@ﬂ W\GLQ/Q

UJeésTca C. Bromall

Jeffer, Mangels, Butler & Marmaro LLP
1900 Avenue of the Stars, Seventh Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067

Phone: (310) 203-8080

Fax: (310) 203-0567

www.jmbm.com

5623520v1



EXHIBIT A



Jun. 25. 2008 11:48°M

B ooe - o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

\S 24
SN 25

,‘:-J&W"'BE

7
*'mmis

No. 6486 7. |

Alex M. Weingarten (Bar No. 204410) OR,G'NAL

LAGER WEINGARTEN LLP

The Water Garden

1601 Cloverfield Blvd., Second Floor, South Tower
Santa Monica, California 90404

Telephone: £3 10; 471-8773

S

Facsimile: (310) 496-0422
aw@lagerweingarten.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
SLB TgYS USA, INC.

£ =2kt

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

¥ CV06-1382RSwL ((w

SLB TOYS USA, INC., aNew York | Case No,
Corporation,
COMPLAINT FOR
Plaintiff,
1. Trademark Infringement (Section
V. 43(33 of Lanham Act);
2. Trade Dress Infringement (Section
WHAM-O, INC., a Delaware. 43(:13 of Lanham Act);
GD\I}%DI‘&HDH, CORNERSTONE 3. Trademark Infringement under
OVERSEAS INVESTMENTS LTD.. a Common Law;
Hong Kon entity: CHARTERHOUSE | 4. Breach of Confidential and
GRC%UP, I%IC. a Delaware corporation: Fiduciary Relationship;
TRAXI, LLC, a New York enfity; and | 5. Unfair Com etition;
DOES 1-10, inclusive, 6. Declaratory Relief P_____________C_ﬁr
Defendants. DOCKET £2 ON
— MR | 3 e
Plaintiff SLB Toys, Inc, (“SLB") alleges as follows: BY UM’ /
JURISDICTION AND VENUE .~ |

1. This is a civil action arising under the United Sates Trademark Act of
1946, as amended, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051, et seq. (the “Lanham Act”), for infringement in
violation of Section 43(a) of the Lantham Act, 15 U.5.C. § 1125(a), and for related
rights under the statutory or common law of the State of California.

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction of this action pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 1121 and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1338, 2201, and 2202, as it involves Tims

-1-
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arising under the Lanham Act. This Court has supplemental subject matter
jurisdiction over all other claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367, because they are so
related that they form part of the same case or controversy.

-+ - 3. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants in that they are
doing business in the State of California and are committing the acts hereinafter
alleged in this State. N

4. Venue in this Court is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391, in that the
parties are located in or transact their affairs in this district and because a substantial
part of the events or QmiSSij’Pﬁ giving rise to the claims occurred in this district,

| PARTIES

5. Plaintiff SLB is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of New York, with its principal place of business located in Los Angeles
County, California. SLB does business as Toy Quest, a toy company which promotes,
advertises and sells toys to retailers throughout the United States.

6. SLB i3 informed and believes and based thereon alleges that defendant
Wham-O, Inc. (“Wham-07) is a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of
business located in Emeryville, California. Wham-O is a toy company which
promotes, advertises and sells products that compete with the products and services of
SLB. -

7. SLB is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that defendant
Cornerstone Overseas Investments Ltd, (“Cornerstone™) is a Hong Kong entity which
has at all relevant times conducted business in California, Cornerstone recently
purchased Wham-O from defendant Charterhouse Group, Inc. and, on information and
belief, provides manufacturing facilities and other services or assistance to Wham-Q
in connection with the manufacture and distribution of its toys.

8. SLB is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that defendant

Charterhouse Group, Inc. (“Charterhouse™) is a Delaware corporation, with its
-

COMPLAINT
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principal place of business located in New York, which has at all relevant times
conducted business in California. Charterhouse is a private investment group or
equity fund which recently sold its interest in Wham-O to Cornerstone in or about
January of 2006.

9. SLB is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that defendant
Traxi, LLC (“Traxi”) is a New York entity, with its principal place of business located
in New York, which has at all relevant times conducted business in California. Traxi

promotes itself as a special situation advisory or consulting firm and represented

Wham-O and Charterhouse in connection with the sale of ‘Whaﬁm—O and related

negotiations.

10.  SLB is unaware of the names and true capacities of defendants, whether
individual, corporate or otherwise, named herein as DOES 1 through 10, inclusive,
and therefore sues them by their fictitious names. SLB will seck leave to amend this
complaint when their true names and capacities are ascertained. SLB is informed and
believes, and based thereon alleges that said defendants and DOES 1 through 10,
inclusive, are in some manner responsible for the wrongs alleged herein, and that at all
times referenced each was the agent and servant of the other defendants and was
acting within the course and scope of said agency and employment.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

11.  SLB is an innovative and dynamic toy company located in Los Angeles

County, California with product lines in multiple categories including preschool,
plush, plastic, wood, inflatables, water and pool toys, battery-operated, radio control,
plug and play, musical instruments, and youth electronics. SLB has over thirty years
of experience in the toy industry and has achieved considerable success including top
selling toy products such as Tekno The Robotic Dog (awarded Toy of the Year). SLB
has been honored with awards such as Vendor of the Year by Toys ‘R Us and has

earned the right to include its products with McDonald’s Happy Meals. SLB has
3

COMPLAINT
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fostered an excellent reputation among its peers and customers and relies on this
reputation in its business.

12. SLB currently markets a line of popular water slide toys that are known
as the Banzai Falls water slides. Thess water slide toys include the Banzai Falls
Quick Set Water Slide, the Banzai Falls In-Ground Poaol Slide, the Banzai Falls Mega
Racer, and the Banzai Falls Criss Cross (collectively the Banzai Falls Water Slides).
True and correct photographs of the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide, the Banzai
Falls In-Ground Pool Slide, the Banzai Falls Mega Racer, and the Banzai Falls Criss
Cross are attached hereto as Exhil_;its A, B, Cand D, respect?vel)i: and are
incorporated herein by this reference. |

13.  Inor about March 2003, SLB began marketing Banzai Falls Quick Set
Water Slide to the toy trade. The product, which was designed and developed by and
is an original creation of SLB, is a puncture proof, rapidly inflating water slide that
children (and adults for that matter) can use in their own back yards. A blower motor,
included with the product, keeps the inflatable water slide continuously inflated and
the water comes from an average garden hose. The material used also allows the slide
to be used dry.

14.  Retailers such as Toys 'R Us and Wal-Mart were immediately interested
in the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide and SLB began production in earnest
shortly after its initial presentation. Shipment of the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water
Slide to the United States from production facilities in China began in or around
December 2003 for sale in the 2004 Summer season. The Banzai Falls Quick Ser
Water Slide was an instant success and quickly became a p0pﬁ1ar toy product
receiving an award as one of the top ten toys for 2004.

15.  SLB continued to market and sell the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide
in 2005, and 1t has been nominated for Toy of the Year for 2006. In addition, in 2005,

SLB undertook to build upon the success of the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide
4-
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and extend the product line to include the Banzai Falls In-Ground Pool Slide, the
Banzai Falls Mega Racer, and the Banzai Fualls Criss Cross. The Banzai Falls In-
Ground Pool Slide was released at the beginning of 2005 for the 2005 Summer
season.and the Banzai Falls Mega Racer and the Banzai Falls Criss Cross were
released at the end of 2005 in preparation for the 2006 Summer season. These slides,
like the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide, also share the fanciful and ornamental
design of the Banzai Falls arch over the top of the slide in which a vertical stitching or
seam pattern is used to create the appearance of multiple vertical tubes comprising the
arch (the “Banzai Falls Arch Mark™). See Exhibits A through D hereto. All of these
slides also ‘share: the fanciful and c;ﬁ;amental design of the Banzdi Falls side panels in
which the stitching or seam pattern is used to create the appearance of three horizontal
tubes that run along side the slide, with two top tubes of equal size and a bottom tube
that is thicker, and a center triangle shape beneath the arch with the top of the triangle
squared off with horizontal line and a logo in the center of the triangle (the “Banzai
Falls Side Panel Mark™). 1bid.

16.  The Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide, Banzai Falls In-Ground Pool
Slide, the Banzai Falls Mega Racer, and Banzai Falls Criss Cross additionally share
the unique features comprising a common, non-functional trade dress which include
the silhouette, shape, profile, size, configuration and dimension, as well as placement
of elements such as the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark
(collectively the “SLB Trade Dress”). Other elements comprising the SLB Trade
Dress include:

(a)  Climbing wall in the back to reach top of slide with the look of
horizontal tubes created by two seams;
(b)  Arch over the top of the slide with the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and
containing the water nozzle for spraying onto the slide;

(c)  Steep slide starts under the arch;
-5.
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(d) Side of slide with the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark that is
primarily blue in color;

(e)  Orientation of water spray from top of the arch;

(f)  Waterbags attached to the slide under the triangle; and--=: -

(g) Yellow blower motor and tube for inflating the slide.
In addition, the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide, the Banzai Falls Mega Racer and
the Banzai Falls Criss Cross each include a splash pool for landing at the end of the
slide with a horizontal seam depicting horizontal tubes above the floor of the pool and
an indentation in the top two rails on side of splash pool for exit about halfway
forward in splash pool. Also, the color of the vertical slide for ea:ch of the Banzai
Falls In-Ground Pool Slide and the Banzai Falls Criss Cross is yellow.

7. SLB has spent millions of dollars promoting its Banzai Falls Water
Slides, primarily through production and airing of advertising for the Banzai Falls
Quick Set Water Slide on network television featuring the unique features forming the
Banzai Falls Arch Mark, the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark and the SLB Trade Dress
for its Banzai Falls Water Slides. SLB has developed a reputation as the leader in the
toy industry for inflatable water slides through such advertising and the success its
sales of the Banzai Falls Water Slides. The Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai
Falls Side Panel Mark are inhereﬁtly distinctive and are further associated through
such advertising and the success of SLB’s sales of the Banzai Falls Water Slides with
a particular source, particularly SLB. Likewise, the SLB Trade Dress is also
inherently distinctive and further is associated and has acquired secondary meaning
through such advertising and the success of SLB’s sales of the Banzai Falls Water
Slidles with a particular source, particularly SLB.

18.  Meanwhile, in or about October 2005, SLB entered into confidential
discussions with Charterhouse, Traxi and Wham-O in connection with a possible

merger or acquisition by SLB involving Wham-O. Charterhouse was looking to sell
-6-
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all or a substantial part of its interest in Wham-O, and Traxi was advising
Charterhouse and Wham-O in connection with é potential sale of Wham-Q, As part of
those discussions, SLB disclosed in confidence its product line for 2006 to
Charterhouse and Traxi, both of which werealso acting on behaif of Wham-Q, and the
information so disclosed in confidence included SLB’s plans for release of the Banzai
Falls Criss Cross as the next generation or extension of its Banzai Falls Water Slides
for the 2006 season. Charterhouse, Traxi and Wham-Q, and each of them, knew and
understood that SLB had disclosed this information to them in confidence, that the
information was not to be used forlany reason other than for the purpose of evaluating
a potential merger or acquisition of Wham-O b3; SLB and that they could not use this
information for any other purpose, including for the purpose of creating, producing or
selling a competing product or otherwise for use in competition with SLB.

| 19.  On or about January 19. 2006, Wham-O announced that Cornerstone had
acquired the comparny from Charterhouse. As a result of the transaction, according to
the press release, Wham-0O’s management, vendors and customers will benefit from
Cornerstone’s size, financial stability and operéltional assistance, including the
production, manufacture or distribution of Wham-O products through Comerstone’s
facilities m China or elsewhere. The press release also confirmed that Wham-O had
been advised in the transaction by Traxi.

20. In late February 2006, SLB received a letter from Wham-O’s legal
counsel purporting to accuse SLB of infringing upon Wham-0’s trademarks with
respect 1o its water toy products. Through cotrespondence with Wham-0O’s legal
counsel, SLB learned that Wham-O had undertaken to release its own version of the
Banzai Falls Criss Cross in 2006, a virtual knock-off which Wham-O calls the Super
Splash Tunnel Slide. A true and correct copy of the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel
Slide, as depicted in communications received from its counsel, is attached hereto as

Exhibit E and is incorporated herein by this reference,
-7-
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21, Incredibly, in its letter, Wham-O’s legal counsel claimed that SLB had
misappropriated Wham-O’s design for the Super Splash Turnel Slide. To the
contrary, however, it is apparent, at least to anyone with knowledge of the underlying
facts, that Whasx«0 made its-assertion as a preemptive strike In an attempt to conceal
that the fact that Wham-O, Charterhouse, Traxi and now Cornerstone, have engaged in
an unlawful conspiracy in which they purposefully conspired with each other and gave
substantial assistance and encouragement to one another to wrongfully violate the
confidence in which SLB had disclosed its plans for the Banzai Falls Criss Cross and
to ﬁnlawﬁllly and unfaitly compete with SLB in connection with the production and
release of the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide. Among othér things, in addition to
the flagrant breach of confidence, the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide wrongfully
uses and infringes upon the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel
Mark, and each of them, as well as the SLB Trade Dress. Compare Exhibits A-D and
Exhibit E. The Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide uses virtually the same stitching
pattern comprising the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark,
and the appearance and dimensions the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide are
virtually the same in all material respects to the SLB Trade Dress, including height,
length and slope of the slide, size of splash pool, orientation of water spray, use of
yellow blower motor and hose, blue coloring of side panels, and use and location of
water bags. Ihid.

22. Wham-O and its co-conspirators and/or aiders and abettors, including
Charterhouse, Traxi and Cornerstone, purposefully conspired with each other and/or
gave substantial assistance and encouragement to one another to wrongfully produce,
market and sell Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide, and to deceive consumers as to
its purported association with SLB and to trade off its goodwill from the success of its
Banzai Falls Water Slides, all for the purpose of profiting or enriching themselves at

the expense of SLB. Among other things, while Wham-O and Cornerstone gain or
-8-
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stand to gain from the illegal and illicit profits resulting from sales of the Wham-O
Super Splash Tunnel Slide, Charterhouse and Traxi profit or stand to profit from their
realization of the sale of Wham-O and use of its release of “new” products like the

Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide to facilitate the sale of the company, = -z .

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(LRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 43(a) OF
THE LANHAM ACT)

23.  SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 22 as
though set forth fully herein. o

24.  Defendants are wrongfully using and/or aiding and abetting or
contributing to the use of the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel
Mark, and each of them, in connection with, without limitation, the manufacture,
importation, sale, offering for sale, distribution and/or dissemination of the Wham-O
Super Splash Tunnel Slide, in order to capitalize on the good name, notoriety,
reputation and goodwill of SLB with respect to its Banzai Falls Water Slides.

25. Defendants’ acts as alleged above are unlawful and constitute
infringement and/or aiding and abetting or contributory infringement by, among other
things, creating and/or permitting or assisting others to misrepresent the nature,
characteristics, qualities, or origin of Defendants’® goods, services, activities or
information and/or to unlawtully compete in a manner which is likely to cause
confusion, or cause mistake, or deceive customers as to the affiliation, connection, or
association between Defendants and SLB, or as to the origin, sponsorship, or approval
by SLB of Defendants’ goods, services and/or activities, in violation of the Lanham
Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a).

26.  Defendants’ conduct has cansed and, if not enjoined, will continue to
cause irreparable harm to one or more of the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai

Falls Side Panel Mark, as well as to SLB’s good name, reputation and goodwill, in a
-9-
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manner that cannot be calculated or compensated in money damages. SLB has no
adequate remedy at law.

27.  Asaresult of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have
received and/or, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongful gains.

28. Defendants’ conduct is willful, deliberate and malicious, so as to entitle

SLB to treble or exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(TRADE DRESS INFRINGEMENT IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 43(a) OF

THE LANHAM ACT)

29.  SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 28 as
though set forth fully herein.

30.  Defendants have adopted and continue to make use of a non-functional
trade dress on the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide that is confusingly similar to
the SLB Trade Dress.

31.  Defendants’ acts as alleged above constitute infringement and/or aiding
and abetting or contributory infringement of the SLB Trade Dress and are likely to
cause confusion, or cause mistake, or deceive customers as to the affiliation,
connection, or association between Defendants and SLB, or as to the origin,
sponsorship, or approval by SLB of Defendants’ goods, services and/or activities, in
violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a).

32. By reason of Defendants’ acts as alleged herein, SLB has suffered, is
suffering, and will continue to suffer irreparable harm and, unless Defendants are
restrained from continuing their wrongful acts, the harm to SLB will increase. SLB
has no adequate remedy at law,

33.  Asaresult of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have

received and/or, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongful gains.

-10-
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34, Defendants’ conduct is willful, deliberate and malicious, so as to entitle

SLB to treble or exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
{COMMON LAW TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT)

35. SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 34 t as
though set forth fully herein.

36.  The aforesaid acts of Defendants constitute infringement and/or aiding
and abetting or contributory infringement under common law of one or more of the
Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark..

37. By reason of Defendants’ acts as alleged herein, SLB has suffered, is
suffering, and will continue to suffer irreparable harm and, unless Defendants are
restrained from continuing their wrongful acts, the harm to SLB will increase. SLB
has no adequate remedy at law.

38.  Asaresult of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have
received and/or, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongful gains.

39.  Defendants’ conduct as alleged herein is willful, deliberate and
malicious, and constitutes fraud, oppression or malice, so as to entitle SLB to

exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(BREACH OF CONFIDENTIAL AND FIDUCIARY RELATIONSHIP)

40.  SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 39 as
though set forth fully herein,

4l. Atall relevant times herein, there was a mutual understanding between
SLB, on the one hand, and Wham-Q, Charterhouse and Traxi, on thé other, that the
information disclosed in confidence to them, including SLB’s disclosure of its plans

for release the Banzai Falls Criss Cross, was to be used solely for purposes of

-11-
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evaluating a potential merger or acquisition of Wham-O by SLB, and SLB reposed
trust and confidence in Wham-O, Charterhouse and Traxi that they would not use such
information for any other purpose. Accordingly, a confidential or fiduciary
relationship existed between SLB, on the one hand, and Wham-O, Charterhouse and
Traxi, on the other, that they would not use information disclosed in confidence to
them, including SLB’s disclosure of its plans for release the Banzai Falls Criss Cross,
for any purpose other than to evaluate a potential merger or acquisition of Wham-Q by
SLB.

42.  Wham-O, Charterhouse and Traxi, and each of them, wrongfully
breached and conspired with each other to breach their respective confidential and
fiduciary obligations to SLB by, among other things, using information disclosed to
them in confidence, including SLB’s disclosure of its plans for release the Banzai
Falls Criss Cross, for purposes of producing, assisting, aiding and abetting or
facilitating in the production of the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide for sale in
competition with SLB. Cornerstone knew that SLB had disclosed such information to
Wham-0O, Charterhouse and Traxi in confidence, and of their respective confidential
and fiduciary obligations restricting the use of such information, and wrongfully
joined in the conspiracy and aided and abetted Wham-O in the manufacture and
exploitation of Wham-Q Super Splash Tunnel Slide in violation of Wham-O’s
confidential and fiduciary obligations to SLB and to substantially assist Wham-Q in
unlawful and unfair competition with SLB,

43. By reason of Defendants’ acts as alleged herein, the SLB has suffered, is
suffering, and will continue to suffer irreparable harm and, unless Defendants are
restrained from continuing their wrongful acts, the harm to SLB will increase. SLB
has no adequate remedy at law.

44.  As aresult of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have

received and/or, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongful gains.
-12-
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45.  Defendants’ conduct as alleged herein is willful, deliberate and
malicious, and constitutes fraud, oppression or malice, so as to entitle SLB to

exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF )

(COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION)

46.  SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 45 as
though set forth fully herein.
47.  Defendants by virtue of their acts as alleged above, have willfully,

knowingly, maliciously and intentionally engaged in acts of unfair competition under - | -

the common law of the State of California, including, without limitation, palming off,
and/or attempting to palm off, and/or enabling others to palm off Wham-O Super
Splash Tunnel Slide as a product made by, sponsored by, or authorized by SLB and
breaching, conspiring to breach and aiding and abetting in the breach of confidential
and fiduciary obligations to SLB in using the information that it had disclosed in
confidence, including SLB’s disclosure of its plans for release the Banzai Falls Criss
Cross, for purposes other than of evaluating a potential merger or acquisition of
Wham-O by SLB,

48.  Defendants’ conduct has caused and, if not enjoined, will continue to
cause irreparable harm to SLB in a manner that cannot be calculated or compensated
in money damages. SLB has no adequate remedy at law.

49.  As aresult of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have
received of, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongful gains.

50.  Defendants’ conduct as alleged herein is willful, deliberate and
malicious, , and constitutes fraud, oppression or malice, so as to entitle SLB to

exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

-13-
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SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Declaratory Relief)

51. SLB repeats and re-alleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 50 as
though fully set forth herein. :

52, In late February 2006, SLB received a letter from Wham-Q’s counsel
demanding that SLB immediately cease the marketing, sales and distribution of its
water slide products, including the Banzai Falls Water Slides, based on Wham-Q’s

¢laim to exclusive use the colors yellow and blue for all water toy products. SLB

L =T - TN B« N N P

Jisputes Wham-O’s contentions and contends that SLB may continue marketing,
10 1 selling and distributing its water slide products, including the Banzai Falls Water

11 { Slides, to the public as they are currently marketed, sold and distributed to the public.
12 53, There is a currently an actual and justiciable controversy between SLB

I3 | and Wham-O as to whether Wham-O’s alleged trademarks on the colors yellow and

14 | blue with water toys preclude SLB from marketing, selling and distributing its water
15 | slide products, including the Banzai Falls Water Slides, as they are currently

16 | marketed, sold and distributed to the public.

17 54. A declaratory judgment in this controversy will settle the dispute between
18 § SLB and Wham-O thereby eliminating the necessity of further legal action on this

19 | matter by both parties.

20 55. A declaratory judgment is necessary at this time to preserve SLB’s rights
21 | with regard to the marketing, sale and distribution of its water slide products,

22 | including the Banzai Falls Water Slides.

23 PRAYER FOR RELIEF

24 WHEREFORE, plaintiff SLB requests the following judgment against

25 | Defendants:

26 1. For preliminary and permanent injunctive relief providing, among other
27 | things, that Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, parent,

28 -14-
COMPLAINT




Jun. 25, 2008 11:57FM No. 6486 P 19

= v = W e e L L o

e N T L o L R o L e O e S U S S S
L= = T e N S L — N T - RN I LR I T N S o e~

subsidiary and affiliated companies and all persons acting for, with, by, through, under
or m concert with them, and each of them, be enjoined and restrained from using in
any manner any of the SLB marks and trade dress, or any marks or trade dress likely
to cause confusion therswith, or mistake or deception, in connection with the
importation, sale, manufacture, distribution, advertising or promotion of their
products, including, but not limited to, Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide, and from
otherwise engaging in any activity constituting an infringement of SLB’s trademarks

or trade dress or violation of the confidential and fiduciary obligations owed to SLB

l_:.»fase;c‘l‘”gn thg: in@gnation,giisclosed in conﬁ.(_lgﬁqg by SLB ‘geg_a.rglipg _i,ES__'_??‘rlSiﬂ@SS and |

products;

2. That Defendants be required to account and pay over to SLB all profits
realized by Defendants by reason of their unlawful acts alleged herein, as well as
compensatory damages according to proof at trial, and that such amounts be trebled as
provided by law;

3. For exemplary damages against Defendants, and each of them, according
to proof at trial and as provided by law;

4. For a declaration that SLB’s products do not violate any trademarks or
rights claimed by Wham-O and that SLB may continue marketing, selling and
distributing its water slide products, including the Banzai Falls Water Slides, to the
public as they are currently marketed, sold and distributed to the public.

5. For an award to SLB of its costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in this
action as provided by law;

6.  For interest, including prejudgment interest, as provided by law; and

-15-
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7.

proper.

Dated: March 6, 2006

For such other and further relief as the Court deems just, equitable, and

No. 6486 P 16

LAGER WEINGARTEN LLP

L

By.

Alex M. Wingartgn
Attorneys fox Plain{iff
SLB Toys USA-ne.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Plaintiff SLB TOYS USA, INC. hereby demands trial of this action by jury.

pa—y

Dated: March 6, 2006 LAGER WEINGARTEN LLP

By: ‘i[ L ;

Alex M. Weingarten
Attorneys for Plaintiff SLB Toys, Inc.
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9 - UNITED STATES DIy RICT COURT r
10 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
11 :
12 | SLB TOYS USA, INC,, aNew York No., CV06-1382 RSWL
' corporaRon, ion Filed: March 7, 2006
_ Action Filed: rch 7,
g3 B Plaintiff, . N
CAVIDY 14 JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
B AN V. -
e R DEFENDANT WHAM. 0, INC '8
| WHAM-0, INC, aDelaware corporation, ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS
16 CORNERSTONE INVESTMENTS LTD., 2 FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT,
ch Kong entity; CHARTERHOUSE TRADEMARK DILUTION AND
17 ROUP, INC, a Delaware corporation; UNFAIR C(Z)M]?’ET]CT]',C)I\I|
TRAXI LLC a New York entity; and DOES |
18 | 1-10, inelusive, '
: ' E
19 Defendants. f
20 |~
- | WHAM-O, INC,, !
21 | | |
Counterclaimant,
22 |
V. !
2 i
3 SLB TOYS USA, INC., doing business as - r
24 | TOYQUEST, @
25 - Counterdefendant, 5 |
26 | DOCKETED ON ClY ] i
27 MY 1806 _' }/%
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1 Defendant and Counterclaimant Wham-O, Inc. (“Wl:iam@”) hereby answers the
2§ Complamt’ agamst it by Plaintiff SLB Toys, Inc., doing business as Tﬂyquest (“SLB™), as
3 4 follows: E
; | o
5 JURISDICTION AND VENUE i
6 1. Paragraph 1 states a legal conclusion to which no response ig requned To th
7 | extent a response is required, Wham-O admits the allegaﬁons of Paragraph 1.
i 8 2. Paragraph 2 states 2 legal conclusion to which no. ‘Tesponse i8 requued To the
™ 9| extent a reaponse is requlred Whawm-Q admits that this Court hag subject maqter Jutisdiction
10 ¢ of this action as 1t pertains to SLB’s clauns under Section 43(a) ot the Lanham Act and as: to
11} SLB’s ¢laim for Declaratory Rehef Except as specxﬁcally admitted, Wham -0 denies the
12 | remaining factual allegations of Paragraph 2. :
mg&% 13 3. Paragraph 3 states a legal conclusion to Which 1o response is rf:qmrad Ta the
Eﬁ%ﬂ 14 e}ctcnt a Tcsponsc is required, Wham-Q admits that its principal place of busmess is in the
e ——

15 | State of California. Except as spcclfically admitted, Wham~0 denies the rerpammg factual
16 | allegations of Palagraph 3. ‘ o

- |
17 4. Paragraph 4 states a Iagal conclusion to which no response is required. To the
18 | extent & Tesponse ig rcqmred Wham-O denics that it is located in this chgtnct or that a

19 | substantial portion of the events Or omissions a]leged in the Comp1amt occuned in this

20 | diswict. - | | ‘
21 f
22 S ~ PARTIES | .
23 3 Wham-0 lacks knowledge and information SUfﬁCIE:HI' to form a behef as to the

24 | allegations contained in Paragraph 5 and on that basis denies them. 3'

L

25 6. Wham-O admits that it iz a. Delaware corporation with its pnmc:lpal place of

26 § business located in Emeryville, California. Wham-0O admits that jt promotes; ddvertiges and

27 § sells toys, some of which compete with products sold by SLB, Excephas spec:ﬁcally

28 adnuttecL Wham-{:) denies the remaining factual allegations of Paragraph 6,

 ANSWER AND COUNTBRCLAMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT i
1 -1 -
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1 7. Wham-O admits that Defendant Comerstone Overseas Invastmcnts Ltd.
2 I (“Corgerstane™) purchasecl an eqmty interest in Wham-0. Wham-0 lacks 1qmwlf:dge and
3 | mformation sufficient to form a belief as to the rcmammg allcgauons contamgd m
4 | Paragraph 7 and on that basis denies them. l
5 8, Wham-O adinits that Charterhouse Group, Thc. (“Chaﬂerhouse") seld its interest
(:l' in Wham-O to Comerstone in or about January 2006. Wham-O lacks knowicdge and
7 | information’ sufficient to form a belief as fo the remaining alleganons icontamed in
8 | Paragraph 8 a.nd on that basis denies them. e
9 9 " Wham-O admits that Traxi, LLC (“Traxi”) repreaented Wham D |m cormecnon
10 )| with the sale of Charterhouse’s equity interest in Wham-O and related ncgutla hons. Wham-
11 | O lacks Inowledge and information sufficient to form a belief as 1o the remaining allegations
12 | comtaincd in Paragraph 9 and on that basis denies them. ' !
nowan 13 10, Wham-0O lacks knowledge and infonnaﬁﬁ_:m sufficient 1o form a biﬂ]ief a3 1o the
N?}E 14 all;gations contaned in Paragraph 10 .and on that basis denies them. i
T s | !
16 GENERAYL ALLEGATIONS , : f
17 11, Wham:0 lacks knowledge and mfc:unnanon sufficient to form a blchef as to the
18 | allegarions contained in Paragraph 11 andon that basis denies them. 'i
19 12, "Wham-O admits that 3LB i3 marketing and sellmg water slide toyl products that
20 | wfringe and dilute Wham-0’s trademark’ and trade dress rights. The waler the loys that
21 | Wham-Q 13 currently aware of that mfrmge and dilute Wham-0’s ttademar]r{'s include the
22 | “Banzai Fallg Speed Slide,” the “Bangzai Falls Tri-Ground Pool slide,” the "‘Banz;-u Fallg
23 | Mega Racer” and the “Banzai Falls Criss Cross.” Wham O lacks kmwledge and
24 mformanon sufficient to form a belief as to the remaining, alleganons contained in
25 | Paragraph 12 and on that basts denies then. ‘ %
26 13. Wham—() lacks knowledge and mfonﬁation sufficient to form a blellef as to the
27| allegations contained in Paragraph 13 and on that basis denies themn. 1
28 14, Wham-0 lacks knowledge and information sufficient to form a b?c]ief as 10 the
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT '
. . :
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1 | allegations contaiﬁed n Paragrnph 14 and on that basis denies them.
2 15, Wham-O admits that SLB is marketing and gelling water slide toy products that
3 | infringe and dilute Wham-0s trademark and trade dregs rights. The water ﬁhde 1oys that
4 | Wham-O is currcntly aware of that mfrmgez and’ dilute. Wham-Q's l:cadcmarks inCIucie the
5 “Banzal Falls Speed Slide,” the “Banzai Falls In-Ground Pool Slide,” the |“Banzai Falls
6 | Mega Rdcer” and the “Banzai Falls Criss Cross” - Wham- 0 lacks' knowledge and
7 || information sufficient to formn a belicf as to the remaining allf;gaflons_ contained n
8 | Paragraph 15 and on that basis denias them.
90 16. Wham-O admifs that SIB i 18 marketing and sellmg water slide toy products that
10 | infringe and dilute Wham-0’s trademark and trade dress rights. The water shde toys that
11| Wham-O is currently aware of that infringe and dilute Wham-O’s trademar}{s include the
12 | “Banzai Falls Speed Stide,” the “Banzai Falls In-Ground Pool Slide,” the | i“Banzai Falls
”“‘Jn" o 13 | Mega Racer” and the “Banzai Falls Criss Cross " Wham-O Tacks kpowledgc and
NS:E::Q‘ 14 | information sufﬁcwnt to form a belief as to the remaining allesg.emt:msI contamed in
SRR Y Paragraph 16 and on that basis denies them, :
16 7. Wham-Q lacks knowledge and information sufficient tq form a bchcf as to the
17 § allegations contained in Paragraph 17 and on that basis denies them. :
18 18, Wham-O admits that m or about Octobe-r 2003, SLB entered m[to discussions
19 | with Charterhouse Traxi and Wham-O in connection W‘lth the possﬂnle sale of
20 | Charterhouse’s equity interest in Wham-O. Wham-Q further admlls that prior to the
21 || provision of conﬁdennal mformation to SLB, SLB executed a conﬁdenha}tty agreement |
22 | whereby SLB agreed to certain restrictions on SLB's use of certain mformangn disclosed to
23 | SLB by Wham-O and/or Traxi. Wham-O further admits that Traxi was adV151pg Wham-O in
24 || connection with the salc of Charterhouse’s equity interest i Wham- O Except as
25 | specifically admitted, Wham—D denies the remaining factual allegations of Pa;agmph 18,
-26 19, Wham-O admlts that it issued a PTess release on January 19, 2006 and that the
27 { presa release Emnounced that an affiliate of Comerstone had acquired Wham@ from the
28

private equity fund which had previously owned it. Wham-Q admits that the presg release

ANSWZER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR, TRADEMARK I'NPRI]\IGEMENT
o
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| |
1| also described many benefits fo- Wham—O and its vendors end customers from thr:: acquisition
"2 | by Cornerstone and that Whaim-O had been advised in the transaction by Tram Except as
3 §- specifically admitted, Wham-O denies the rcmmmng faciual allegatlons of Paragraph 19.
4 20.  Whara-O admits that counsel for Wham-O sent a [etter to SLB's GOUDSE:]. in late
5 February 2006, a true and correct copy of which is attached hcre(;c as Exhlbu; 1, Wham-O
6. jfurther admits that, in 1atﬂr email cotrespondence between counsel for Wham O and counsel
7 || for SLB, the i image ofa Wham-0 produet inchuded in Exhibit E was sent 1o 00\,111361 for SLB.
8 § Except as spemﬁcally admitted, Wham-Q denies the remammg factual allaganons of
9 | Paragraph 20, ,:
10 21, Wham-O admits that SLB’s Banzai Palls Criss Cross slide product sharés many
11 | clements conmon to the Wham-O Super Splash Tunmel slide product Ibecause SLR
12 | impraperly and illegally misappropriated these elements from Wham-O's pmduct Except

Hou f’“ﬂ‘:? 13-} -as specifically admitted, Wham-O denies the remammg factual allegations of Harag'raph 21.

Sy 14 22, Wham-O admits that it receives revenaes fro:m the sales of its prodl.}cts Wham-O

) o 15 .

ﬁmhcr admits that Cornerstone OWns an eqmty interest in Wham—O Except Ias spemﬁcally

16 ad:mtted Whem-O denies the remeumng factual allegations of Paragraph 22. :

17
18 - FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF “
: (TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT IN VIOLATION OF |
12 o SECTION 43(A) FO THE LANHAM ACT) | o
20 23, Wham-0Q repeats 1ts responses to Paragraphs 122 of the Complamt as 1f set forth
21 { atlength herein. , | _ !
22 24, Denied. - | |
23] 2s Paragraph 25 states legal conclusions to which no response is racimred To the
24 1 extent & response ig requm:d Wham-O denies the allegatmns of Paragraph 25. |
25 .26, Denied. ‘ . . |
26 27. Denied.
27| 28 Denied o

28

ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARE INFRINGEMENT I
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|
!
1 . SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF ‘
(TRADE DRESS INFRINGEMENT IN VIOLATION ar |
2 - SECTION 43(A) FO THE LANHAM ACT) |
B 3 29, Wham«() repeats its responses to Paragraphs 1-28 of the Complamf as {f set forth *
4 { atlength herein, _
5 30. Wham-O admits that SLB’s Ranzai Falls Criss Cross shde produqt shares many
6 | clements. common to the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel shde product ]bﬁOﬂUSﬂ SLB
vi 1mproperly and illegally misappropriated these elemenis from Wham-Q* s proﬂuct that SLB
g | adopted and continues to use these, common elements in order to cause GOI}ﬁlSmn among,
9 (| customers as 1o the source or sponsor of SLB%s product’ and that SLB is gmlty of unfair
10 | competition and falge dcs;lgna,uun of origin pursuant to Secnon 43(3) of theT Lanham Act,
11 | Except as specifically admitted, Wham-O denies the remaining factual 'allegatmns of
12 . Paraglaph 30
o 13 31 Paragraph 31 states legal couclusmm to which no response 1is rec*uu'cd To the
]
Nex iwgm 14 § extent a response is reqmrcd Whar-O denies the allegations of Paragraph 31
& RABKIN
R 1k 32 Denied.
16 33, Denied. l
17 34, Denied. |
18 |
19 THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
20 _ (COMMON LAW TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT)
- 35, Wham-O repeats its responses to Paragraphs 1-34 of the Complamlt as if set ‘fortﬁ
at length-herein,
22 : : . :
36, Paragraph 36 states lcgal mnclusions to which no response is reﬁuired. - To the
23 '
extent a- Yesponse is Tequired, Wham-O denies the alleganons of Paragraph 36
24
17, Denied. , | o
25 . | .:'
38, Denied. X
26 . |
39_ Denied.
28 |
ANSWER AND- COWTERCLAIMS FOR TRADPEMARK, II*J'FRINGEMENT 1
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40. Wham-O repeats its responses to Paragmphs 1-39 of the Complﬂmr 48 lf set forth

at length herein.

41.

Wham-O adxmts that 1o or about October 2005, SLB entered mﬁ:o discussions

‘with Charterhouse, Trax1 and Wham-O in connecnon ‘with the possﬂ;ﬂe sale of

Chartethouse’s equity interest in Wham-O. Wham—D further admits that prior to the

prowswn of confidential mforrnatmn to SLB, SLB e:xccuted a oonﬁdenﬂapty agreement

whereby SLB agrcf:d ta certain restrictions on SLB’s use of ccrtam mformatl?n disclosed to

SLB by Wham—D and/or Traxi, Wham-O further admits that Tram was advag Wham-O in

“connection with the sale of Charterhouse’s equity interest in Wham@ Except asg

specifically admitted, Wham~0 denies the remaining factual allegations of Pamgraph 41,

0.
43,
44,
45.

Denied,
Denied..
Denied.
Denied.

FIFTH CLATM FOR RELIEF
(COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION)

l
{
|
I

46. Wham O repeats its responses to Paragraphs 1-45 of the Complmrlrt as if set forth

at length herem
47. Denied,
48. Denied.
49, Denied.
50. Denied
51.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(DECLARATORY RELIEF)

Wham-O repeats its responses to Paragraphs 1-50 of the Cumplaiﬁlt a§ if set forth
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLATMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT:
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, :
1 || atlength herein. : |
- 2 52. Whaw-O admits thit counsel for Wharn-Q sent a lemer to SLB's f:ounsel in late
3| Pebroary 2006, a true and earect copy of which is attached hereto as Ethbxt 1. Wham:-0O
4 | lacks knowledge and mfannatlon sufficient to fon:ﬂ a belief as to the rcmain{ng allegations
3§ contaitiedin Paragraph 52 and on that basis df:nms them. | : ’
6 ~ 53 Wham-o admits that there is currently 40 actual and Jusnﬂa 1 com_mvérsy
7 | betweon SLB and Wham-O as a result of SLB’s infringement and dﬂutmnlof Wham-Q’s
§ || trademarks and trade dress. Except as specifically admitted, Wham-O denms the remaining
9 factual allegations of Paragraph 53, _
10 54, Wham O lacks knowledge and information sufficient to form, a bclief as to the
11 | allegations cantamcd in Pa;ragraph 54 and on that basis denies thein. :
12 55. Denied.
;,1 fﬁ%‘n 14 AFFIRMA’I‘IVE DEFENSES ;

e

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Wham—D sets forth its separﬁtc and afﬁrmatw«a defenses to the Coxlpplalnt below,

without conceding that the burden of proof rests with Wham-O with respect ‘(o thesc 185168,

Wham-O yeserves the right to sssert suoh other separate and &fﬁnnatwc defenses as

confinuing mvesngatmn and dwcavery nmay d13close :
1. SLB olau;ns fail to state claims u.pon which relief ina}f be graméd _
2. SLB’s claims for relief are barred, in whole or in bayt, by the doctrine of implied
and/ OT express waiver. ' '

3. SLB’s clauns for relief are barred, in whole or in part, by the docnline of estoppel

and/or acquuescence

4. SLB’s claims for relief are barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrine of unclean
handé, -

3. SLB’s claims for relief are barred, in whole or in part, by the doctn,ne of laches.
6. SLB%s cla:ms for relief are barred, in whole ar in part, by the doctnne of mplied
consént .

ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMAR.K INFRINGEMENT |
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1 7. SLB has suffered no damages or economic harm as a result of the m}atters allcged
2 | in the Complaint, ' | o ; |
LR T SLB is not entitled to TEcOVEr the alleged damages, if any, becqusc thcy are
4 | unceitain, contmgant and spﬁculatlve _ ' l
5 9. SLB has faﬂed to limit and mitigate 1ts damages 1f n fact any damagcs have
6 ¢ been or will be sustained. | ' ' : !
7| | | |
§ COUNTERCLAIM OF WHAM- 0 ,ANC, FOR TRAD
P INFRINGEMENT, TR%%%%}%%I&UTION AND UNFA
10 Defendant Counterclaimant Whem-O, Inc. (hereafter “Wham-0"). b;} and for its
11 complaint against Plamtlff and Cuumerdefendant SLB Toys, Inc,, dom% business as
12 | Toyquest (hereafier “Counterdefendam” or “SLB“) alleges as follows: !
vorgo 13 | '

MEMIE

¥l

& RAREN'
1 13

la
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
2
25
26
27
28

INTRODUCTION - | |
: : | .
1. * This action is brought to restrain SLB from continuing its delib'er‘ptc schéme to
infringe and dilute Wham-O's trademarks and frade dress associated with waiter slide toys.

Prior to engaging in this activity, SLB had notice of Wham-0’s tra,demark apd tade dress

rights, and SLB knowingly infringed these nghts Wham-O’s has federal trademark |

regisirations for color marks for the color yellow on flexible plastic water phdes and the
colors yellow and blde on ﬂmblc plastm water slides with bumpers, Wham-O and its
prcdecessors have marketed water slide toys using these marks for dacac%cs since their

introduction in 1961, and this lme of toys iz beloved (and famous) aPlcmg several

_ generations, SLB has taken schraI deliberate steps to ‘infringe and dﬂuita Wham-Q’s

trademarks and-trade dress mcludm g, without lmutauon (1) selling a cumpctfng water slide
toy in packaging that copiss and infringes Wham~0's distinctive trade dress, and infringes
Wham-O’s color marks by depicting a yellow slide with a hlue bumper [dc’spiite the fact that
the toy ‘it_salf 18 gctually arange and blue) and (2) introducing a line of sevejal water slide
toys with yellow slides and blue bumpers. SLB’s marketing and'sales of tﬁea ‘

£ products and
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT
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1§ use of this packaging is causing immediate and imreparable mjury 1o Wharn- O Wham-0O
2 | herchy sceks to enjoin SLB's mfrmgement and dilution of its marks and trada dress and to
3 | recover the damages caysed by SLB’s unlawful actions, L |
y i
5 “THE PARTIES | -
6 2. Coumerclaimant ‘Wham-0, Inc, is a corporation ofgaﬁized and ex1st'mg uude.r the
.7} laws of the State of Délaware and has a principal place of businéss at 5903 Ch}imtu: Avenue,
® | Emerysile, Cliomia 94608, . |
9 3. Upon information and behef Counterdefendant SLB Toys USA Inc., doing
10 | business as Toyquest, is a corparahon organized and existing under the laws-df the State of
11 § New York with its prmcxpal place of business at 2228 Bany Avenue, Los Angeles,
12 Cahfomm 90064.
HDW'\F- {
- Cmg ' 14 NATURE OF THE CASE
s 4. This is an action for infringement of a registered trademark m violation of
16 Sectmn 32(1) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1114(1); for unfair competition, :[n vialation of
17 | Section 43(a) af the Lanhamn Act, 15 1U.8.C, §1125(a); for dilution in vmlanon of Section
18 | 43(c) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.8.C. §1125(c).
19 |
20 | JURISDICTION AND VENUE |
21 5. This Court has subject matter ]unsdwuon over this action pﬂ.l:rsl:ls,nL to‘ 15 T.LS.C“.
vy §1121 and 28 US.C. §§1331 and 1338. Venue is proper within this dlBh ict under the
23 | provisions of 28 U.S,C. §1391(b) and (c). :
24 !
23 WHAM-0'S WATER SLIDE MARKS AND TRADE DRES% |
26 6. - For many years and long prior to SLB’s acts cnmplamed of herein, WhamaD and
27 | jts predecessors in interest have connnunusly engaged in the business of manufactuﬁﬁg and
28 § marketing in interstate commerce toys called “water- slides” sold under the trfde‘:mark SLIP

ANSWER AND CQUNTERCLAMS FOR TRADEMARK, INFRINGEMENT
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1 | ‘N SLIDE. The water slide portion of Wham-O’s SLIP ‘N SLIDE water ali_ds' toys is
2 | colored yellow, and that color has long served to identify and distinguish’ Wham—O’s water
3 | slides from those of others. The } vwmper portion of Wham-O's water slide toys is typically
4 | colored blue, and that color has also served fo 1dent1fy and d}stmguxsh ‘Wh:-itm@ 5 water
5 shd es from those of other manufacturers , :
6 7. A oolor mark for a water shde of the color yellow was duly refglsmcd as a
7 | trademark in the United States Patent and Trademark Ofﬁce on March 10 1987 and
. 8 | Wham-O is the owner of Reg. No, 1,432,069 for that mark. A copy of a pnqtout from the
9 USPTD database reflecting this registration is attached as Exhibit 2. chmtratmn No.
10 | 1,432,069 was assigned to Wham-O in 1997, As a result of lengthy use a.qd compliance
i'l “with statutory requitements, this mark has attamed mconte«stable statug; iThr:).t mark is
12 refened to herein as the YELLOW WATER SLIDE mark
HOWARD 13 E. A color mark for a water shde of the color yellow with the color bhlte on bumpers
_ E::,L:EL 14| at the end of the slide was duly regmtered as 2 tradernark in th,c United States Patent and
S Trademark Office on February 8, 2005 and Wham-O i the owner of Reg. No.2 924,744 for
| 16 | that mark A copy of a printout from the USPTO database reﬂectmg ‘thls registration is
17 | attached as Bxhibit3, That mark is teferred to herein as the YELLOW/BLUE WATER.
18 | SLIDE mark. '
19 9. The YELLDW WATER SLIDE mark and the YELLOW/BLUE WATER SLIDE
20 mmk are referred fo hewm collectively as the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS. -
. 21, 10 The SLIP *N SLIDE yellow water slide tay was first introduced m least as eorly
22 | as 1961, was promoted and sold for decadcs by Wham-O*s predecegsors, em? the goodwill
‘23 assocmted with such promounn and sales was duly -asgigned to Wh&l:p -0 with the
24 reglstratmns Wham-O first began using the pmduct in May 1998, aud first uqed the product
25 - in intetstate commerce in December 1998 ' , i .
26 1. Upen its acquisition of the marks and-assoqia.ted goodwill, Wham—ﬁ!) engag&d ina
27 | substantjal investment to completely redesign and test the product. This re-désign meluded,
28 | among other things, the addition of = blue scalloped bumper to one end o;f the SLIP ‘N

ANSWER, AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT | ‘
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| 1 § SLIDE yellow water slide toy pmduct The bmnper was designed to prf:v::nt m}ury by safely
2 stopping the forward movemént of a child sliding across the surface of the toy As & result
3 | wsits substantial investment in re~-design and testing of the toy, Wham~OQ! abtained the
4 | approval of the Cousumér Prodﬁcts Safety Commission for ifs SLIP ‘N SLIDE yellow water
- 5§ slidetoy. o |
6 12, 'Wham-O has widcly prorﬁoted the redesigned SLIP ‘N SLIDE yellow water slide
7 { toy sinoe Decembar 1998 mcludmg mgmﬁcant expenditures on marketing cff?rts maludmg
8 | television advertising, The product has becn g0ld by all of the nation’s largest discount
9

_ retailers, including, among others, Wal-Mart® and Targat@ It is regularly ]ma of the top

-
(=)

- five ranked toys according to The MPD Group, Inc., the leading toy momtorl?g and market |
11 | research firm. Over more than four decades of use, and in the last five yoars of promation

12 | and sales by Wham-O, the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS have acquired strm}g comimercial .

Hovar 13 | significance. Indeed, Wham-0’s marker research revz:als unanimous unaided awareness of
NEM [A]
< g 14 | the yellow water slide as a SLIP *N SLIDE toy.
=] N
i

R

15§ 13 Inaddition to the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS, Wham-O has a1i:.o teveloped and
16 | established distinctive trade dress in the design and conﬁgurahon of its watcr slide toy
17 | packaging. Examples of this trad& dress are attached as Bxhibit 4 As demonstratﬂd n

18 Exhibit 4, Wham-0’s-trade dress makes prominent use of calor pictires of water s_hde toys

191 bearing the WHAM.-Q COLOR MARKS, The trade dress alsn contains num].mus COmmon

- 20 ¢ graphic design elements. Taken together, these elements fnrm the WHAM-O WATER
-2"1 | SLIDE TRADE DRESS. ‘This trade dress is distinctive, it has become well and favo:ra-bly

22 knuwn througheut the United States and it has achieved sccondary meaning. Fhe purchasing

23 | public has come to the WHAM-O WATER SLIDE TRADE DR.ESS with v&atcr slide toys
24 | from Wham- I

14 In sim, Wham-D s toy water slides are well and favorably }tnOWn by the
26 | purchasing public under the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS and the WHAM O WATER
27 | SLIDE TRADE DRESS:; indeed, the SLIP ‘N SLIDR YELLOW WATER $LIDE toy has

become an icomic child’s toy, a symbol of summer fon in hot weather, and is famous to

ANSWER AND COUNTERCLATMS FOR TRADEMARK, INFRINGEMENT l
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children and adults (particularly those who played with it in fheir childhood) alilke
15. Wham-O has provxded notice that the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS Iare federally-
registered by displaying the letter R enclosed within 2 circle, thus ®w= ja, addition, on

mformation and belief, SLB had actual nottce that the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS were
federally-registered, E

b
f

COUNTERDEFENDANT’S INFRINGING ACTIVITTES

16 SLB manufactyres and markets rival water slide toys, In MM@MODS, Wham-(j
learncd that SLB had manufactured and sald a water slide toy in packagmg that mfringed
both the WHAM-0 COLOR MARKS and the WHAM-O WATER SLIDR TRADE DRESS.
SLB's packaging depicted a yellow water slide with a blue bumpc:r thareby Imfrmgmg the
WHAM-O COLOR MARKS and the WHAM-O WATER. SLIDE TRADE DRESS. This
packaging also misled custormners because the actual water slide ingide was orange rather
than yellow. A color copy of this packaging from 2005 is attached as Exhjb:it 5.
7. Shortly after learning of thls infringement, Wham-O notified SUB and demanded

that SLB cease and desist. A copy of Wham-Q’s letfer to SLR is attached as Brxhibit 6.
18, Inresponse to this letter, counsel for SLB communicated with counsel for Wham-

O. Dunng these communmahons counsel for SLB rcpresented that SLB haq sold all of its

mventory in the infringing packaging and that it would not use the mfrmgmg packagmg n

the firture. , i _
19, In February 2006, Wham-() -Icame.d that SLB is marketing and selljng water slide _
toys in packaging identical to that in Ex.hlblt 5 (except: that the UPC ceqle information

c:ontamed 2006 date coding mformation).

20.  Additionally, in Fcbruary 2006, Wham-O leamed that SLB is rnarketing and

selling wew water slide toy pmduc:ts that infringe and dilute the WHAM O COLDR E
MARKS and infringe the WHAM-O WATER SLIDE TRADE DRESS. 'D}Ja water slide |
toys that Wham-O is currently aware of thﬂt nfringe and dilute W'ham—Ci)’s trademarksg
m«_::lude the “Banzat Falls Speed Slide,” the “Ranzai Falls In-Ground Pool Slide,” the

i

ANSWER AND COUNTERCLATMS FOR TRADRMARK INFRINGEMENT |
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1 ) “Banzai Falls Mega Racer” and the “Banzal Falls Criss Cross.” Color ciopies of the
. |

packagihg of these products are attached as Bxhibit 7.

[u ]

1

21, After learning of SLB’s renevied and cxpanded infringement, 'Wlf'am@ sent &

a2

new cease and desist letter, A copy of this lqttef is attached as Exhibit 1. SLB has refused to
stop 1t8 mfnng:mg actions. |

22. SLB’s use of the colors yE:].lDW and blue in connection with the |manvfacture,
advertisement, distribution and sale of water slides damages the value of Wha.ml-O’s rights in .
the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS and is likely to injure the business reputation of Wham-O

AL oo ~1 <N in I

23, Wham-O is informed and believes that SLB is knowledgeable regarfling the fame

10 § and strength of the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS among the consumers of water slide toys,
11 24, Wham-O is informed and believes that SLB has uged the colar yellow on the

12 | slide portion of its slides and the colot blue on the bumpcr‘portions with the mtent to benefit
- . 1

Hom@ 13 | from Wham-0O’s goodwill and reputation in the water slide toy market; to décag;ive the public
g’ﬁzi 14 | as to the source or arigin of SLBs. gouds and to profit from the demand creTed for goods
TS | identified by the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS. -
I

16 25. Wham-0O is informed and believes that SLB has also used mlmero elements of
17 | the WHAM-O WATER SLIDE TRADE DRESS with the fntent fo beuefi fron Wham-0’s
18 gocd\wll and mpu“catlon in the water slide toy market, ta deceive the public ai to the source
19 | or origin of SLB’s goods, and to pmﬂt from the demand created fm goods 1d¢nnﬁc:d by the

' 20 { WHAM-O WATER SLIDE TRADEDRESS. ~ ! |
21§ © 26, As a direct result of SLB’s mfrmgmg activities, Wham-O will be irreparably |
22, m_mrcd by the confusion likely to occur, by the damage to the value of W}mn} ~O’s rights in
23 the WHAM O COLOR MARKS and the WHAM-Q WATER SLIDE T RAD]]E DRESS and
24 | by the likely i m_]ury to the busmess reputatmn of Wham<0, SLB’s canﬁnqed use of the
| 25 | colows yellow and blue on water slides and infringing packaging will rpafenally and

26 | negatively affect the business, reputation and goodwill of Wham-0O. 5

27
28

27. In sum, SLB's marketing, advertising, sale and promoting the 'saie ‘of its water
. slides colored yelldw and blue and i its infringing packaging will create a li]irelihaod that a
: ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARE, INFRmeEMENT
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| E
1 false and ‘uﬁfair -association will be made between the water slides of SLB and those of
2 Wham—O because fhe pufchééing public is likely 1o believe that SLB’s Waﬁﬁf slides are
.3 | conngeted with, produced or sponsored by Wham-O., | :
al | | |
| 5 FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
¢ (Infringemeni of Registered Mark)
! | (15US.C §’1114')
¥ | 28." The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 27 aré incorporated herein by xeferéncc.
’ ‘ 29.' Wham-Q's registered WHAM-Q COLOR MARKS have acquix=d secondary
10 meamng Purchasers associate the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS only w:th WHAM-0's
H ‘water slide tay products This is a result of extensive advcmsmg and salcs throughaut the
_ : . United States of goods bearing the WHAM-0 COLOR MARKS. |
N;;wﬁ%;. iz 30. SLB, by using thé colors yellow_andfor yellow and blue in conpe;i-ﬁon with the
il "*"EQ‘EJK_'“: advcrtisémcnt, distribution and sale of cczmpntiug- water slides, has used and intendsto
s cnnﬁnuc to us¢, in commerce an imitation of the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS iin connection |
‘ to with the advemsement distribution and sale of compchng water shdcs in a manner, that iz
v likely to cause confusmn, mistake or dcccpuon ' _
12 . 31, By commmmg the acts alleged hexem SLB has intentionally, lcPowmgly and
. " mllfully mfrmged the regstercd WHAM-0 COLOR MARKS, and SLB contmues to do so.
20 32. Because of SLB’s infringement, Wham-O has been irreparably har,mcd Wham-
j; . O will continue to suffor irreparable harm unless SLB 15 prchmman]y anﬁ permnanently
testrained from 1nfnngmg the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS. : f _ _
% 3. Wham-O is entitled to Tecover all proﬂts heretofore reahzed by SLB during its
2 mfxmgcm@nt of the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS, as well as Wham-()'s costslk in'this action
22 - pursuant to 15 U.8.C. Section 1117(&)
- 34 SLB s actions have been wﬂlful mahcmus and fraudulent with knowledge of the |
- likelihood of confusion and deception and with mtent to confuse and dcccwe, as alleged
_ ANSWER AND COUNTERCLATMS FOR TRADEMARK H\IFRINGEMENT
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1 | above. Therefore, Wham—O is entitled to recover fhrcc times the amount of $LB s pmﬁts
2§ phis Wham- O’s reasonable attomeys fees pursuant to 15 U.8.C. Section 1117(b)
* SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF :’
? (Unfair Competition and False Designation of Otigin)
s | (15U.S.C. §1125(2)) |
’ 35, The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 34 are mcurporated herein by rafexence |
e "36. As stated aboVe, Wham-0, for many years and long prior to the acts of SLB
’ herein complained of, has marketed its yellow water slide with 2 blue bumpcr configuration
| at the dbwnsrream end, thé bumper configuration being inflatable to preseﬁt ar eudjregion
' aﬁd having twb side porticng cxtcﬁding pa_rtiallly upstream. The yellow water§lide with the
e :z blue end portion has been and continue; to be pictured on Wham-O'’s pack@geﬁ, on thé front
m&%m 14 1 and in smaller panels on al; four sides of the package. Wharn-O has p-m.mttcd the golor
s A yetlow, with the blue end portion, by conspicucusly presenting the water slide extending
. diagonally across the top of the package and showing a b.oy‘riding toward the|end, with his
1o arms outstretehed. Wham-.O.’s yellow water slide and its yellow water slide with a blue end |
: portion have come fo be well and favﬁru’oly“knom by the pu;chasing public. |Additionally, |
o Wham-0’s distinctive WATER SLIDE TRADE DRESS has come 1o be well and favorably
20 known by the pmchasmg public and has come to mdmate to the purch.qsu}g publlc that
_ Wham-D is the source of goods packaged in this wade dreSs | :
2; | 37, SLB.has copied Wham-O's color yellc'xw for a Water‘s'lide and the blue end and
” SLB has-copied the WHAM-O WATER SLIDE TRADE DRESS. As a gesult, SLB's
” marketing of its water slide is lﬂccly_ to deceive and cause confusion to the purchasing public

’s and to induce them to believe that SLB or its water slides are fn some mamsier related fo,

approved by or sponsored by Wham-O. SLB hag infentionally engaged inl condicr that

constitutes a false designation of arigin, a false or misleading description of fact, and a falge
| |

or misleading representation of fnc‘t tending wrongfully and falsely to describe jor Tepresent a

ANSWER AND COUNTRRCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT i
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1 connactién or affiliation between Wham?O"s'goods and SLB’s zoods in violation of 15 _
2| US.C Secﬁon 1125(a). Wijam-O believes that customers are likely to be; confused by
3 | SLB’s use of such false designations of G“Hn and false de:scnptmns Qr representations
4 | regarding Wham-O’s goods and SLB's goods o |
5 - 38, By committing the acts alleged herein, SLB has'inteuﬁonally, knmwingly and
6 willmlly inﬁinged the Wham-O’s marks and trade dress, and SLB continues toldo so.
7 39. Bccauae of SLB’s infringement, Wham-O has been 1rreparably ha ed. Wham-
§ |0 will cantinue to suffer m:eparable harm ynless SLB is preliminarily anq pennanenﬂy |
9 | restrained from infringing the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS and the WHM&D WATER
10§ SLIDB TRADE DRESS.
11 40. Wham-O i3 entitled to recover all proﬁts haretafore tealized by SLB duning its
12 mfnngembnt of the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS and the WHAM- QO WATER SLIDE
" ﬂft;% 13 | TRADE DRESS, as well as Wham-O'’s costs 1n this action pursuant 10 15 U.8.C. Section
"N 14 | 1117(0). !
Y RATHIN -
TS 41. SLB's acnons have bef:n wxllful malicious and frandulent with knowlcdge of the
16 | likelihood of confusmn and deceptmn and with intent to confuse and decewe as alleged
| 17 | above, Therefore, Wham-O is entitled te recover three times thé amount of| SLB’s profits
18 plus Wham-0’s reasonable attorneys’ fées pursuant to 15 1J.8.C. Section 1117(b).
19 | ' | |
20 | LHIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
21 (Trademark Dilution), |
| 22 (15 U.S.C, §1125(c))
23 | 42. The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 41 are incorporated herein l})y reference.
24 43, Given theiv more then four decades of uge and the epormons po{fmlarity of the
25 | toy, the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS are famous among children and adults alike. The
26 | colors serve no fimetion in a water slide 10y. E E
27 44.  SLB has made wnauthorized use of the marks in their products, aind continge to
28 | do so despite demand to cease doing so, ' B l |
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLATMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT
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1 45. Such unauthorized use of the marks has and will aotually dilute the
2 | distinctiveness of the WHAM- 0 COLOR MARKS, | _
3 46. ‘_B;y‘h.j:,cason of these acts, Wham-O has suffered and is sﬁfféring actual, permanent
4. and irreparable mjury, the extent of which is préscﬂﬂfy_ not kmown, and WhamTO will suffer
5 | continuing damage and ireparable injury unless SLB is preliminarily and; permanently
6 | enjoined from the use of the marks. |
7
8 PRAYER FOR RELIEF o |
9 | WHEREFORE Wham-Q prays that this Court entered ]udgment in its Favar on each
10 | and every claim for relief set forth sbove and award it relief including, but not ]lmuted ta, the
11 | following, y o
12 1. That SLB be adjudgad to have willfully and dehberate]y &dVEI’tleld distributed
HDW.R?IEDE 13 | #nd sald goads infringing the regmtercd WHAM 0 C‘DLOR MARLS n w:nla‘hcm of fadera)
N |
:ﬁ%; 14 | law; : o S !

TS
16
17
18
19
20

23
24
25

28

21
22

26
27

- . o ‘ .
2. That all water slides, documents, advertising, packaging and any o‘thcr materials |

infringing the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS in the possession, custody. or control of SLB be

geized;

3. That SLB be adjudged to have willfully and dellbcratcly mﬁmged the registeréd
WHAM-0 COLOR MARKS, in violation of federal law; '

4 That SLB be adjudged fo have competed unfairly with W'ham O byl Its mfrmgmg

use of the colors yellow and blue and/or by its infringing use of Wham—O s trade dress on

cotipeting water slides, in 'VlOlEithIl of federal law; i
. )

5. That SLB and its officers, agents, oWners, employeés, confedemtcs,i attormeys and
. ’ - " - - - - |
any persons in active concert or participation with them be temporarily, preliminarily and

permanently enjoined and restrained from:

a.  Using the colors yellow and/or yellow and blue on water slide products, or

-any dther mark including any reproduction, copy or colorable imitation of said!mark, in

eonnection with the advertising, manufacturing, offeﬁng for sale, distribution.qr sale of

ANSWER AND CQUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT ;
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16
17
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19
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23
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suppliers, distributors and manufacturers of SLB’s water slides. using the cq

blue were not manufactured, licensed, authorized or distributed by Wharm-0

water shides or any other goods that are not authorized by Wham-O;

P36

b. Usmg the co]ors yellow gud/or yellow and blue on water slide products, or

any other mark including any reproduction, copy or colorable imitation of said

ark WSy -

manner likely to cause others to believe that any of SLB's goods are made by, qlsmbuted by,

associated or conttected with Wham-O’s goods; ' *

¢. 'Using as packaging for any water slide oy product packaging t
confusingly similar to the WHAM-0 WATER SLIDE TRADE DRESS‘
d.

to bf:heVe that Wham-Q is the source or sponsor of SLB's goods; and

. ¢ Assisting, aiding or abettmg any supplier, distribator or any of}

hat ig

Committing any other acts calculated to cause actual or potential purchasers

€T person or

business entity in engaging in or performing any of the activities referred to in the above

subparégraphs a through 4 .
6. That SLB be ordered to deliver 1o Wham-O all matenials that i

fringe and/or

dilnte Wham-0"s marks and/or trade dress; |

7. That SLB be ordered to advise Wham-Q of the identity- of a‘rll customers,

yellow and blue;

8. Thar SLB be ardered to adw.se all customers, supphcrs dig

manufacturers that $LB's water slides using ihe color yellow and/or the colo

such water slides sold or disiributed by SLB may be returned to SLE in any q
full refund, and that SLB shall make such refind and maintain all records rg

recall notices and Iefunds

lor yellow or
tributors and
rs yellow and
O and that any
ondition for a

lating to such

9.

infringing marks purstant to 15 U.8.C. Section 1117 |

For an award of all pmﬁ’m heretofore realized by SLB durmg n:s use of the

10. For an award of three fimes the amount of SLB’s profits arl1d Wham-(O’s

reasonable auorneys’ fees pursuant ta 15 U.8.C. Section 1117(b); |
11, For an award of compensatory damages; l

|

|

ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR. TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT .
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1 12, For an award of punitive damages;
2 13. For an award of coéts; and
3 14, For all other relief the Court deems just sud.proper. o
4 o
5 | DATED: May |, 2006, |
6 - Respectfully, :
7 " JERFREY B, FAUCETTE |
SARAH I GIVAN
2 HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI CANADY
' FALK &R «"H
.5 A Professig
| |
10 - !
By {
11 - ‘ f O/,ETRE
12 Attornet j nf and terrleumant
; WHAM-O, INC.
1
O
TR 14
& [LANKIN
“"'“‘““‘"‘““'15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
- 24
25 i
26 |
27 ;
28 | |
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRTNGEMENT |
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| -
L JURY TRIAL DEMANDED ‘
2 Pursuant to Rule 38(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff demands trial
3 | byjury of all issues pronerly triable of Tight by a jury. |
4 | |
5 | DATED: May _{,2006.
6 ' | Rﬁspcctﬁllly,
7 .TEFFREYE FAUCETTE
SARAH J. GIVAN
8 : HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI CAfLNA.DY
T g PALK & RABI
Q - A Professiprial Coy
10
' BRy:
11
1210 Attomeys for Defr:ndant and Counte:rclmmant
| WH O INC. . .
HOWARD 1y
Wﬁ“’%‘ i
_erfily
AP AT 15
16
17
18 j
19 |
20. |
21
22 1 1
23
24 i
25 | |
27 | '
28 | |
ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT I
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1 Frion | CLERR '3 *5 E% ST COURT
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v | .
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ISR gema.awﬁém%m Fomua. A
4 S0 30 LY e 8 BERUTY B
3 -
ﬁ N
R e
. UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
" CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
N WESTERN BIVISION
i3
vy Y SLBTOYS USA, INC, s New York Nor 306-CV.01380 8OWL ¢
'3 | Corporation : 9 No» 2:06-CV-01382 REWL ({TW
4
Plaintifl { Counter-Defendant,
s . VERDICT FORM WITH
. v, SPECIAL
% INTERROGATORIES
WHAM-O, INC,, . & Delaware corporation
17
g 4 y Defendant / Counter-Claimant,
Bod s E‘_% The Houorable Ronald S W. Lew
20 e
3
21 ‘ '
' Fif
17
R i
23
Iy
24 o N
i i.'i ’
O o
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U twe, tE omny, PoND:
2| i
3 % - AT ' ’
CLAIY 1--THFRIRGENERY OF YRLLOW WATER Bnripm
4v . E]
TRADENMARY
g .
. On the clainm of Wham-0 against 818 for infringsment
, of the trademark (registered as U.5. Trademark Req. No.
. 1,432,063 or unregigtered) for the color YELLOW on the
. f8liding surface of water glide Loyg, we, the jury, find
in favor of {chack one):
18 $
Wham-0: A
it _ o
SLB:
12 o
13 K:é 2
" I you found for wham-9 on olaim i, do you find
s that SLB infringed the trademark willfully?
Yoy
14
Mo
17 o
18
9 HENT OF YRLLOW/BLUR WATER SLIDE
26
2 On the claim of Wham-O ggsinst SI8 for infringement
& 5ia : : " , '
7 Of the trademark registered in the United States (U.3.
7 Trademark Reg. No. 2,924,744), we, the jury, find in
” favoy of {check onel:
e % wh&m“at
23 |
3 |
a8 §
;
i
i
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<
&

i

i

2 If you found in faver of Wham-0 on claim 2, do you &
5 find that 818 infringed the trademark wilifully? Ag
4 Yea:

5 Noy

&

3 CLAIN 3--FALSE ADVERTISING

% On the claim of Wham-O againet SIS for unfair

g jeompetition through false advertising, we, the jury,

10 find in favor of {(check onel:

' whan-0: %

E 2 S&B : —
i3
14 If you found in favor of Wham-0 oa elaim 3, do you

15 | find that 3LB iatended to decsive or obherwise acted in
% it bad Faithy

17 Y&s:_gi_

18 NO:

; Pt

W

20 CLATY 4--DILOTION

51 On the claim of Wham-0 against SL® for dilution of |
73 fthe trademark (registered or unregistered} for the

23 jeolor YELLOW on the sliding surface of water slide

24 jtoya, we, the jury, find in favor of (check one):

45 wham-o; ¥
25 e
36 8 SLE: .
7
28
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& 3
If you found in favor of Wham-O on claim 4, do you
find that SLB diluted the YRLLOW trademark willfullyy
3 Yes: N\ :
) ;& U
Bo: |
g —
&
[ 7 DAMAGES - -3LL ClaATMS
Hote: Complete the following paragraph only i€ you
7 find in favor of the Wham-0 on at least ons of the
W lelaims.
i
2 ?
] 0N
a %8, Lhe jury, assess damages for the Wham-0 in the
sum of 31 3. GO
14 St p o vy
: @ 3‘@{:}{? 3 DOG
i35 f ¢
i§
17
18
9
28
2t
22
23
24
23
25
X7
28
3
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Poooa
; ‘
._ ADVISORY VERDIOT
5
The Court requests advice from the tury with r ard 2
3 : & i S48 3 .«.} Wil *anfu ‘E"
‘. N e i"
4 jto the following matters. 45
3
&
. SL378 CLATY FOR CANCELIATION
g Do you find that SL8 has established by clear ang
¥ lconvincing evidence that Wham-o . andoned itg VELLOW
315 ,
) SATER SLIDE trademark registration {U.8. Trademark Regq.
i No. 1,432,465)7
3 Yes:
e "
Moy :}{
i5 )
1§ :
i ¥EAN-0'§ REQUEST FOR EWEANCED DAMACES
7 | o
N Note: Complete the following paragraphe only if vou
by s e . R RS
9 tind in favor of Wham-0 and find willfulness ar bad
20 jfaith on at least one of the claims.,
21 _—
Do you find that enhanced damages should be awarded
22
73 against SLR in order to fully covpensate Wham-0 and/ox
34 |[tO make SLB's infringement unprofitable?
30 ves: Y
X
26
No:
7
| 28
: 4
i
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i £

& Your anawer wasg Yes, ? cage recommend an amount

ok

L F Ty a ¥
oI enhanced damages to the Court in a sum no more thapn
& : N

furd

three times the damages you have already agsessed. The

pas

enhanced amount may not be so greal as to constitute a

LA

{penaley.

o,

~ac

®e, the jury, recommend enhanced damages for wham-O
jin the sum of § | 2. *@‘g‘\;\ .

s o
2,400,000

1 e
0 fpreask SIGR AND DATE THIS FORM AND RETURE IT T0 THE

Wy e

COURY

Dated: H rwr wf 7
L
i ) " "

§ P ¢ ¥ N {
 Siq ﬁ?(i, /}ﬁm*f... K‘S:‘ff&&%&icé 5{ C‘:’\—“’% Tor” S

H

....‘
%

e oo
Lo SUNIAY ©
PO

17 4 : 5
! "*‘Jury Foreperson) S ;a > Ay “;”" #35
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1.
2 CLERK, US. mSTHtCT COuRF Priarity
Send E
3 Enter -
' . DEC - 5m Closed 7
4 15-5¢18-§.0
cemwﬂ, m:.rmcr-.ruﬂl“ 3‘"“"" 18-2/T8 .
Scan On!y
5
&
7‘
8 @&
9
190 UNITED STATES DISTRICT CCURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFOR]’HIA
11
12
13 § SLB TOYS USA, INC., ) cv _05—-1_3&@(@;:}
14 Plaintiff, )
) JUDENERT
15 | b
v, )
16 )
WHAM-O INC., et al. )
17 )
]
19 %
19| Defendant. ;
20
21 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED
22 . 1. SLB’'S CLAIMS FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF
23 Plaintiff SLB Toys USA, Inc.’s claims for declaratory

24 j relief are hereby dismissed with prejudice; Defendant Wham-
254 0‘s United States Trademark Registration No. 1,432,069 is

26  good and valid in law.
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10
11
12
13

14

15,

16
17

18

19

20

21
22

23 §

24
25

26

Filed 04/21/2008 Page 15 of 18

Case 2:06-cv-01382 RSWL-CW  Document 476  Filed 12/05/2007 Page 2 of 2

2. WHAM-O'S COUNTERCLATMS

Counter-claimant Wham-0 is hereby awarded final

judgment on its counterclaims against SLB in the sum of

36,000,000 {(six million dollaxs}, plus its costs of suit as
the prevailing party in this action.

3. PERMANENT fNJUNCTION

IT IS ORDERED THAT SLB and each of its officers,

jagents, servants and employees, and all those persons in

active concert or participation with them are hereby forever

enjoined from using the color yellow on the sliding surface

of watar alide toys, or packaging or advertising depicting

the same, or any mark similar thereto or likely to cause
confusion therewith, in the sale, offering for sale,
distribution or advertising of water slide toys at any
locality in the United States.

ROMALD S:W. LEw

RONALD 3.W, LEW
Senior U.8. District Judge

DATED: December 4, 2007
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JOSHUA R. FURMAN (Bar No. 225461)
Joshua@furman.com

9663 Santa Monica Boulevard, No. 721
Beverly Hills, California 90210
Telephone: (310) 809-3016

Facsimile: (310) 861-0449

Attorneys for Plaintiff and Nominal Appellant SLB
TOYS %SA, INC.

JEFFER, MANGELS, BUTLER & MARMAROQO LLP
ROD S. BERMAN (Bar No. 105444)
RBerman@jmbm.com

MATTHEW D. HINKS (Bar No. 200750)
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Telephone: (3 102 203-8030
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Attorneys for Appellant and Real Party In Interest AW
COMPI)J,TER LDINGS LLC
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SLB TOYS USA, INC., a New York CASENO. CV 06-1382 RSWL (CWx)
corporation,

Plaintiff and Nominal NOTICE OF APPEAL TO THE
Appellant, UNITED STATES COURT OF
APPEALS FOR THE NINTH
- and - CIRCUIT

AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS LLC, a
California limited liability company,

Appellant and Real Party In
Interest,

V.

WHAM-O, INC., a Delaware
corporation, and DOES 1-10, inclusive,

Defendants and Appellees.
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TO THE COURT, ALL PARTIES, AND THEIR COUNSEL:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT SLB TOYS USA, INC. ("SLB"), the
Plaintiff and Nominal Appellant herein, and AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS, LLC
("AW"), the Appellant and Real Party In Interest herein, appeal to the United States
Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the final judgment of the District Court,
filed in this case on December 5, 2007, and entered on December 9, 2007 (a true and
correct copy of which 1s attached hereto as Exhibit A) together will all interlocutory
orders, rulings and other decisions that give rise to that judgment, including but not
limited to: the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motion for Sanctions and
Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the alternative, Partial Summary Judgment filed
on August 8, 2007 and entered on August 10, 2007, the District Court's Orders on
SLB's Motions in Limine to Preclude Introduction of Expert Testimony of Francesca
Benevcﬁto, and to Preclude Evidence and Argument Regarding the "Soak 'N Splash"
Name, and Wham-O's Motions in Limine to Exclude Evidence and Argument
Regarding Alleged Cbpying of SLB Product Design by Wham-O, to Exclude
Evidence of Discovery Disputes, and to Exclude Evidence and Argument Regarding
SLB's Affirmative Defenses, filed on October 1, 2007 and entered on October 2,
2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motion for Judgment as a Matter of
Law reflected in the minutes filed on October 9, 2007 and entered on October 11,
2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's renewed Motion for Judgment as a
Matter of Law reflected in the minutes filed and entered on October 11, 2007; the
District Court's Order Granting Permanent Injunction filed on December 5, 2007 and
entered on December 9, 2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motions for
Judgment as a Matter of Law, for New Trial, and to Amend Judgment filed and
entered on February 26, 2008; the District Court's Order granting Wham-O's Motion
for Attorney Fees filed and entered on February 26, 2008; and all evidentiary rulings
of the District Court.
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Pursuant to Ninth Circuit Rule No. 3-2 and FRAP 12(b), SLB's and AW's
Representation Statement is attached hereto.

AW is the owner of SLB's appellate rights in connection with the above-
captioned matier as a result of a General Assignment and Asset Purchase Agreement.
SLB and AW will promptly bring a Motion for Substitution of Parties pursuant to
Federal Rule of Appellate Procedure 43.

DATED: March §,2008  JOSHUA R. FURMAN

P—-
{H{J A FURMAN
Attorney for Plai hinal Appellant SLB

DATED: March 5, 2008  JEFFER, MANGELS, BUTLER & MARMARO LLP
ROD S. BERMAN
MATTHEW D. HINKS

Attorneys for eal P In Interest
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

cv 06—138@(CW}:)

JUDGHMENT

Defendant.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
et al. )
)
)
)
)
)
)

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED
1. SLB’S CLAIMS FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF

Plaintiff SLB Toys USA, Inc.’s claims for declaratory

relief are hereby dismissed with prejudice; Defendant Wham-

0’8 United States Trademark Registration No. 1,432,069 is

good and valid in law.
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2. .WHAM-O'S COUNTERCLAIMS

Counter-claimant Wham-0 is hereby awarded f;nal
judgment on its counterclaims against SLB in the sum of
$6,000,000 (six million dollars), plus its costs of suit as
the prevailing party in this action.

3. PERMANERT INJUNCTION

IT IS ORDERED THAT SLB and each of its officers,
agents, servants and employees, and all thoserpersons in
active concert or participation with them are hereby forever
enjoined from using the color yellow on the sliding surface
of water slide toys, or packaging or advertising depicting
the same, or any mark similar thereto or likely to cause
confusion therewith, in the sale, offering for sale,
distribution or advertising of water slide toys at any

locality in the United States.

RONALD S.W. LEW

RONALD 8.W. LEW _
Senior U.8. District Judge

DATED: December 4, 2007

EXHIBIT A
Page 6




PROOF OF SERVICE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CITY AND COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I am employed in the City and County of Los Angeles, State of California. I am over the
age of 18 and not a party to the within action; my business address is: 1900 Avenue of the Stars,
7" Floor, Los Angeles, California 90067.

On March 6, 2008 I served the document(s) described as NOTICE OF APPEAL TO
THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT in this action
by placing the true copies thereof enclosed in sealed envelopes addressed as follows:

Annette L. Hurst, Esq. John C. Ulin, Esq.

HELLER EHRMAN LLP Peter E. Gratzinger

333 Bush Street HELLER EHRMAN LLP

San Francisco, California 94014 333 South Hope Street, 39th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071

X (BY MAIL) I am "readily familiar" with the firm's practice for collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the U.S.
Postal Service on that same day with postage thereon fully prepaid at Los Angeles,
California in the ordinary course of business. 1 am aware that on motion of the party
served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or postage meter date is
more than one day after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit.

[] (BY FAX) At , [ transmitted, pursuant to Rule 2.306, the above-described
document by facsimile machine (which complied with Rule 2003(3)), to the above-listed
fax number(s). The transmission originated from facsimile phone number
(310) 203-0567 and was reported as complete and without error. The facsimile machine
properly issued a transmission report, a copy of which is attached hereto.

] (BY PERSONAL SERVICE) I delivered such envelope by hand to the offices of the
addressee.

O (BY OVERNIGHT DELIVERY) I caused said envelope(s) to be delivered overnight via
an overnight delivery service in lieu of delivery by mail to the addressee(s).

Executed on March 6, 2008 at Los Angeles, California.

] (STATE) I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California
that the above is true and correct.

X (FEDERAL) I declare that I am employed in the office of  member of the bar of this
court at whose direction the service was ma

G\YENDOLYN SANTINI

5228357v1
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ANNETTE L. HURST (Bar No. 148738)
Annctte, Hurst@hellerchrman.com
ELISABETH R. BROWN (Bar No. 234879)
Elisabeth. Brown@hellerehrman.com
HELLER EHRMAN LLP

333 Bush Street

San Francisco, CA 94104

Telephone: +1 (415) 772-6000

Facsimile: +1 (415) 772-6268

JOHN C. ULIN (Bar No. 165524)
John.Ulin@hellerehrman.com
ANNA R. ZUSMAN (Bar No. 232753)

Anna.Zusman@hellerehrman.com

333 South Hope Street, 39th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Telephone: +1 (213) 689-0200
Facsimile: +1 (213) 614-1868

- Attorneys for Plaintiff

WHAM-0O, INC.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT-OF CALIFORNIA

WHAM-O, INC., a Delaware corporation,
Plamtiff,
Y.

MANLEY TQYS, L'TD., a Hong Kong corporation,
1ZZ2Y HOLDINGS, LLC, a California limited
liability company, AQUAWOOD, LLC, a California
limited liability company, A'W. COMPUTER
HOLDINGS, LLC, a California limited lability
company, BRIAN DUBINSKY, SAMSON CHAN,
LISA LiU, WAL-MART STORES, INC,, &
Delaware corporation, TARGET CORP., a
Minnesota corporation, TOYS ‘R* US, INC,, a
Delaware corporation, and KMART
CORPORATION, a Michigan corporation,

Defendants.

Case No.: CV08-01281 RSWL (CWx)

SECOND AMENDED AND
SUPPLEMENTAL COMPLAINT FOR
JUDGMENT DEBTOR’S INTEREST
IN DEBT TO SATISFY MONEY
JUDGMENT, TRADEMARK
INFRINGEMENT, FALSE

DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN,

TRADEMARK DILUTIGN AND
UNFAIR COMPETITION

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT
CASE NO.: CV08-01281 RSWL (CWx)

o
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Plaintiff Wham-O, Inc. (“WHAM-0O") by and for its complaint against
Defendants Manley Toys, Ltd. (“Manley” or “Manley Toys”), Aquawood, LLC,
A.W. Computer Holdings, LLC, Izzy Holdings, LLC, Brian Dubinsky, Samson
Chan, Lisa Liu, WAL-MART STORES, INC. a Delaware corporation (“Wal-Mart™),
TARGET CORPORATION, a Minnesota Corporation (“Target™), TOYS ‘R’ US,
INC., a Delaware corporation (“TRU”), and KMART CORPORATION, a Michigan

corporation (“Kmart”) alleges as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. On October 11, 2007 a jury in the District Court for the Central District of
California awarded WHAM-O a $6 million verdict against SL.B Toys USA, Inc.
doing business as Toyquest (“SLB”"} for wiliful trademark infringement, willful
trademark dilution, and willful false advertising in connection with SLB’s
unauthorized use of WHAM-O’s registered trademark in the color yellow for water
slide toys, Reg. No. 1,432,069 (“YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark™). Following the
verdict, but before the Court entered judgment, SLB initiated an elaborate scheme
designed to evade judgment and deprive WHAM-O of its award, purporting to divest
itself of all of its assets and liabilities through an unsupervised, unregulated
Assignment for Benefit of Creditors under state law. On or about December 9, 2007,
this Court entered its judgment and permanent injunction against SLB, restraining
SLB and all those acting in concert with it from further infringement of WHAM-0O’s
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. WHAM-O thereafter served that judgment and
permanent injunction upon Manley Toys, Chan, Liu and Dubinsky personally.
Although Dubinsky initially evaded service of the judgment and permanent
injunction, WHAM-O is informed and believes and thereupon alleges that, even
during the period of evasion, Dubinsky had actual knowledge of the terms thereof, as
retailers reported to WHAM-O that Dubinsky falsely assured them that they need not
comply with that permanent injunction.

2. Infact, Aquawood, Dubinsky, Chan, Liu and Manley have flagrantly
1
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disregarded the terms of this Court’s injunction by continuing to market, sell and
distribute to retailers unauthorized slides bearing the YELLOW WATER SLIDE
Mark as well as advertising in the form of product packaging on numerous products
bearing depictions of unauthorized slides bearing the YELLOW WATER SLIDE
Mark.

3. Both from the evidence given at the October trial in the prior action and
from evidence that has emerged as a result of the ABC, it is apparent that SLB was
nothing more than an undercapitalized shell corporation that failed to follow even the
most basic corporate formalities and that Dubinsky, Chan, Liu, Manley and Izzy
Holdings, LLC (“Izzy” or “Izzy Holdings”) are its alter egos. SLB was simply the
United States division of the overall enterprise known as Manley Toyquest, run by
Chan, Liu and Dubinsky. Izzy holds real property for the enterprise in the United
States, and owns the property at the locations where SLB conducted its principal
place of business. Izzy is owned by Chan and Dubinsky, and also has failed to
observe corporate formalities. In fact, there was no lease between SLB and Izzy, and
SLB paid many of the property-related expenses that Izzy, as the landlord, would
otherwise have been expected to pay.

4. Additionally, Dubinsky, Chan and Liu have started a new enterprise in the
United States that simply replaces SLB’s former operations, retaining the same
employees, assets and business, and operating at the same location still owned by
Chan and Dubinsky through Izzy, such enterprise being conducted in the names of
AW Computer Holdings LLC (“AW”) and Aquawood LLC (“Aquawood”).
Aquawood, controlled by Dubinsky and acting on behalf of Manley, Dubinsky, Chan
and Liu, has continued to market and sell infringing products and packaging.

5. WHAM-O thus hereby brings further Lanham Act and other trademark
claims against Defendants Manley, Aquawood, Dubinsky, Chan and Liu for their
ongoing willful trademark infringement, trademark dilution, and false advertising in

violation of the Lanham Act and California law. WHAM-O further seeks an order, to

2
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the extent not adjudicated in the Color Case, that the true owners behind SLB—Brian
Dubinsky, Samson Chan, Lisa Liu, Manley and Izzy—be held liable for the judgment
as SL.B’s alter egos, and that AW/Aquawood be held liable as its successor. They are
the true judgment debtors as well as SLB.

6. WHAM-O also provided Defendants Wal-Mart, TRU, Target and Kmart
with copies of the permanent injunction, and requested that they cease selling the
products that violate the injunction and otherwise infringe WHAM-O’s YELLOW
WATER SLIDE Mark. Wal-Mart has been a responsible corporate entity in
connection with WHAM-O’s trademarks since being provided notice of the judgment
and permanent injunction. It promptly complied upon receiving notice of the
permanent injunction, pulling infringing products from its shelves and is agreeing to
use the trademark only pursuant to a license. Kmart has pledged that it will either
return the infringing products and packaging or use the trademark only pursuant to a
license. Target is engaged in ongoing license discussions with Wham-O that Wham-
O believes will shortly conclude with a license. TRU, however, has refused to stop
selling infringing products and packaging and has refused to take a license.
Moreover, this is not the first time that TRU has sold infringing products.
Accordingly, TRU is sued herein for willful trademark infringement.

7. WHAM-O also files this creditor’s suit against Defendants Wal-Mart,
Target, TRU, and Kmart pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section
708.210. WHAM-O is informed and belicves and thereupon states that Wal-Mart,
Target, TRU, and Kmart hold several million dollars in funds that are payable to the
true judgment debtor, Manley.

THE PARTIES
8. Plaintiff Wham-O, Inc. is a corporation organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Delaware and has a principal place of business at 5903 Christie
Avenue, Emeryville, California 94608.

9. Upon information and belief, Defendant Manley Toys, Ltd. is a
3
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corporation organized and existing under the laws of Hong Kong, with its principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 818 Cheung Sha Wan Road and its principal place
of business in the United States at 2228-2229 Barry Avenue, Los Angeles,
California. Manley regularly conducts business in this District and elsewhere
throughout the United States through the operations of judgment debtor SLB dba
Toyquest and its successor Aquawood LLC dba Toyquest. Manley has entered into
contracts with United States retailers that provide for the shipment of infringing and
contemptuous product into this District and elsewhere tﬁroughout the United States,
and Manley has also delivered such product to retailers in Hong Kong with the
knowledge and intent that such infringing and contemptuous product be placed on
retail store shelves and sold to consumers throughout this District and elsewhere in
the United States.

10. Upon information and belief, Defendant Izzy Holdings, LLC is a limited
liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of California
owned by Brian Dubinsky and Samson Chan, and has a principal place of business at
2228-2229 Barry Avenue, Los Angeles, California.

11. Upon information and belief, Defendant Aquawood, LLC is a limited

liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of California and

has a principal place of business at 2228-2229 Barry Avenue, Los Angeles,
California.

12. Upbn information and belief, Defendant AW Computer Holdings, LLC is
a limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of
California and has a principal place of business at 2228-2229 Barry Avenue, Los
Angeles, California.

13. Upon information and belief, Brian Dubinsky is a resident of California,
residing at 521 S. Bentley Ave., Los Angeles, CA 90049 and regularly conducts
business in this District, with his principal place of business at 2228-2229 Barry

Avenue, Los Angeles, California.

4
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14. Upon information and belief Samson Chan is a resident of Hong Kong,
residing at Flat B, 11/F, Sunpeace Court, 136-142 Boundary Street, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, and regularly conducts business within this District. Chan’s business card
states that his offices in the United States are located at 2228 Barry Avenue, Los
Angeles, California. Throughout the period of infringement alleged by this
Complaint, Chan was the Chief Executive Officer of SLB, the judgment debtor.

15. Upon information and belief, Lisa Liu is a resident of Hong Kong,
residing at Flat F, 5/F, The Astrid Tower 2, 180 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
and regularly conducts business within this District. Liu is the Managing Director of
Manley, and throughout the period of infringement alleged by this Complaint
claimed to be the sole Director of SLB, the judgment debtor. Throughout the period
of infringement alleged by this Complaint, Liu owned 50% or more of SLB, the
Jjudgment debtor, whose principal place of business was located in this District at
2228 Barry Avenue, Los Angeles, California. Liu also personally signed and sent
royalty statements into this District on behalf of SLB and Manley reporting and
attesting to a licensor, Six Flags, the accuracy of the sales of the infringing product.

16. Upon information and belief, Defendant Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. is a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with its
principal place of business at 702 SW 8th Street, Bentonville, Arkansas 72716. Wal-
Mart conducts regular and systematic business throughout this District.

17. Upon information and belief, Defendant Target Corporation is a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota with its
principal place of business at 1000 Nicollet Mall TPN-0945, Minneapolis, Minnesota
55403. Target conducts regular and systematic business throughout this District.

18. Upon information and belief, Defendant Toys ‘R’ Us, Inc. is a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal
place of business at One Geoffrey Way, Wayne, New Jersey 07470. Toys ‘R’ Us

conducts regular and systematic business throughout this District.

5
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19. Upon information and belief, Defendant Kmart Corporation is a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Michigan with its
principal place of business at 3333 Beverly Road, Hoffman Estates, Illinois, 60179.

Kmart conducts regular and systematic business throughout this District.

NATURE OF THE CASE

20. This is an action for: (i) judgment debtor’s interest in debt to satisfy
money judgment pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code 708.210 et seq.; (1) infringement
of a registered trademark in violation of Section 32(1) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 1114; (iii) false advertising in violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1125(a); (iv) trademark dilution in violation of Section 43(c) of the Lanham
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(c); (v) unfair competition in violation of the common law of
the State of California; (vi) contributory and vicarious trademark infringement in
violation of Section 32(1) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114; (vii) contributory
and vicarious false advertising in violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1125(a); and (viii) contributory and vicarious trademark dilution in violation

of Section 43(c) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(¢c).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

21. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the federal law claims
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1121 and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1131, 1138 and has subject matter
jurisdiction over the state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367. Venue is proper
within this district under the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

22. General personal jurisdiction is proper over each of the retailer defendants
(Wal-Mart, Target, TRU, and Kmart) based upon their regular and systematic
conduct of business within this District. General personal jurisdiction is proper over
Dubinsky, Aquawood, AW, Manley and Izzy based upon their regular and systematic
business activity, residence, and/or ownership of property within this District.

Specific personal jurisdiction also is proper over Manley, Aquawood, AW, Izzy,

6
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Dubinsky, Chan, Samson and Liu based upon their contacts with the forum giving
rise to the claims as alleged in detail herein.

BACKGROUND FACTS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS
A.  WHAM-O’s Trademarks
23. WHAM-O and its predecessors have long engaged in the business of

manufacturing and marketing in interstate commerce toys called “water slides” sold
under the SLIP ‘N SLIDE trademark. SLIP ‘N SLIDE is a registered trademark of
WHAM-O, U.S. Reg. No. 761,883, attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

24, Since the introduction to the public of the SLIP ‘N SLIDE water slide toy
in 1961, the sliding surface of one or more versions of WHAM-O’s SLIP ‘N SLIDE
water slide toy has continuously been colored yellow, and that color has long served
to identify and distinguish WHAM-O’s water slide toys from those of others.
WHAM-O and its predecessors have sold millions of yellow water slides under the
SLIP ‘N SLIDE trademark, and WHAM-O has consistently promoted the YELLOW
mark on its packaging, creating a direct consumer association between the SLIP ‘N
SLIDE word mark and the YELLOW color mark.

25. WHAM-O has widely promoted the SLIP ‘N SLIDE YELLOW WATER
SLIDE toy, including significant expenditures on marketing efforts, including
television advertising. The product has been sold by all of the nation’s largest
discount toy retailers, including Wal-Mart, Target, TRU, and Kimart. Over more than
four decades of use, promotion and sales, the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark has
become famous. In 2003, the fame of the SLIP ‘N SLIDE YELLOW WATER
SLIDE toy was further recognized when it was included as an iconic toy of youth in
the Parafnount film, Dickie Roberts: Former Child Star.

26. A registration for the color yellow on water slide toys duly issued from the
United States Patent and Trademark Office on March 10, 1987, and WHAM-O is the
owner of Reg. No. 1,432,069 for that mark. A copy of the registration for the
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark is attached as Exhibit 2. As a result of lengthy use

7
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and compliance with statutory requirements, this registration has attained
incontestable status. The goodwill associated with the SLIP ‘N SLIDE and
YELLOW WATER SLIDE trademarks, and the registrations therefore, were duly
assigned to WHAM-O in 1997.

27. In sum, WHAM-O’s water slide toys using the YELLOW WATER
SLIDE Mark are well and favorably known by the purchasing public. They have
become iconic toys, a symbol of summer fun, and famous to children and adults
alike.

B.  The Underlying Lawsuit

28. In March 2005, WHAM-O learned that SLB had manufactured,
distributed, marketed, advertised, sold, and offered for sale water slide toys in
packaging that infringed the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. Shortly after learning
of this infringement, WHAM-O notified SLB of its infringement and demanded that
SLB cease and desist. In response, counsel for SLB represented to WHAM-O’s
counsel that SLB had sold all of its inventory in the infringing packaging and that it
would not use the infringing packaging in the future. Almost a year later, in February
2006, WHAM-O learned that SLB was again manufacturing, distributing,
advertising, marketing, selling, and offering for sale water slide toys in packaging
identical to the infringing packaging SLB promised to stop using. In addition, SLB
was marketing and selling new water slide toy products that infringed and diluted
WHAM-0O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. After learning of SLB’s renewed
and expanded infringement, WHAM-O sent a new cease and desist letter. SLB
refused to stop its infringing actions, and instead brought an action for, inter alia,
trademark infringement and declaratory relief in the Central District of California, to
which WHAM-O counterclaimed for, inter alia, willful infringement, willful
dilution, intentional false advertising, and unfair competition. SLB’s frivolous
claims were all subsequently dismissed, without compensation to SLB.

29. Beginning on October 2, 2007, WHAM-O tried its counterclaims against
8
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SLB for trademark infringement, trademark ditution, false advertising and unfair
competition to a jury for six days (hereinafter, “the Color case”) and SLB tried its
claim for invalidity of WHAM-0O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. WHAM-O
obtained a jury verdict against SLB for willful infringement, willful dilution, and
wiliful false advertising under the Lanham Act, and the jury specifically rejected
SLB’s mmvalidity defense. With respect to infringement, the jury found that SLB
acted “intentionally, knowing it was an infringement, or with an aura of deliberate
indifference or willful blindness to Wham-O’s rights, or used the trademark for the
purpose of trading upon Wham-O’s reputation.” With respect to dilution, the jury
found that SI.B “intended to trade on Wham-O’s reputation or to cause dilution of the
famous mark.” Finally, with respect to false advertising, the jury found that SLB
made “a false statement with the intention to deceive the consuming public, or
otherwise acted in bad faith in conducting false advertising, then the false advertising
was willful.” Attached hereto as Exhibit 3 is the jury’s verdict in the Color case.

30. The jury awarded WHAM-O damages of $3.6 million and recommended
an enhanced damages award of $2.4 million because of SLB’s willful conduct. The
Court accepted the jury’s enhanced damages award and entered judgment
adjudicating the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark valid, wilifully infringed and
intentionally diluted, awarding $6 million plus costs, and granting a permanent
injunction. A true and correct copy of that Judgment, entered on December 9, 2007,
is attached hereto as Exhibit 4. Accordingly, the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark
has been adjudged and decreed both valid and famous by this Court. In addition, on
February 26, 2008, the Court deemed the case to be “exceptional” within the meaning
of the Lanham Act because of the willful and deliberate conduct of SLB and granted
WHAM-0’s motion for attorneys’ fees, awarding WHAM-O an additional
$1,768,882.24. A true and correct copy of the Order awarding attorneys’ fees,
entered on February 26, 2008, is attached hercto as Exhibit 8.

9
SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT

CASE NO.: CV08-01281 RSWL (CWx)




C

o ~N OO0 bW N =

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

se 2:08-cv-01281-RSWL-CW  Document 34 Filed 04/21/2008 Page 11 of 41

C. ABC Process, Alter Ego & Successor Liability

31. During the trial of the Color case, testimony was given by Dubinsky and
statements were made by SLB’s attorneys to the jury that suggested an alter ego
relationship with Manley. Shortly after the trial, WHAM-O took deposition
testimony from Dubinsky in another action by WHAM-O against SLB pending in
this District, Case No. 06-6508 RSWL (CWx) (the “Wave Rider case”), and
Dubinsky’s testimony in that deposition further suggested that Dubinsky, Manley and
Izzy were alter egos of SL.B.

32. After the jury verdict and the deposition in the Wave Rider case, but
before the Court entered judgment, SLB initiated a fraudulent transaction designed to
deprive WHAM-O of the benefits of its judgment and to avoid the effects of the
permanent injunction. Sometime in mid-October, SLB’s President, Brian Dubinsky,
and SLB’s in-house counsel, Joshua Furman, met with attorney Ron Bender of the
firm Levene Neale Bender Rankin & Brill. During the course of that meeting,
Bender contacted attorney Byron Moldo of the firm Moldo Davidson Fraioli Seror &
Sestanovich LLP to ascertain whether Moldo would be willing to serve as an
Assignee of SLB in a process pursuant to state law called an Assignment for Benefit
of Creditors (“ABC”), whereby SLB would divest itself of its assets and cease to
operate as a going concern. Mr. Moldo agreed with Mr. Bender that he would meet
with the representatives of SLB to discuss the ABC process, and Moldo, Dubinsky
and Furman met the same afternoon.

33. Unlike bankruptcy or a receivership, the ABC process is unsupervised by
a court. SLB concealed its intention to enter into the ABC process from WHAM-O
and from this Court in two pending actions (the Color case and Wave Rider case) as
well as concealing the process from the Court in Alameda County, where a third
action by WHAM-O for misappropriation of trade secrets is pending and a
preliminary injunction prohibiting the transfer of evidence and requiring the
preservation of evidence has been entered. A true and correct copy of the Alameda
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Court’s order is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

34. At the initial meeting with Moldo, Dubinsky and Furman explored not
only the divestiture of assets and liabilities, but also proposed that Dubinsky would
re-purchase all, or substantially all, of SLB’s assets simultaneously with the ABC
transaction. During this initial meeting and at all times thereafter until the General
Assignment was executed, Furman and Dubinsky concealed from Moldo the
pendency of the Alameda County Superior Court action and concealed from him the
existence of the preliminary injunction in that action. After the initial meeting
between Dubinsky, Furman and Moldo, Bender informed Moldo (to his surprise) that
Bender would be representing not SLB, but the purchaser of the assets in dual
transactions.

35. The irregular and fraudulent nature of these dual transactions was then
borne out in a further series of events. Dubinsky breached his fiduciary duty to SLB
by negotiating the commercial terms of both sides of the transaction—both the
Assignment by SLB and the Asset Purchase Agreement on behalf of purported
purchaser AW. Bender and his colleague, Monica Kim, improperly acted on both
sides of the overall transaction, negotiating the terms of the Asset Purchase, insisting
that the General Assignment by SLB was contingent upon Moldo’s advance
agreement to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement, and then offering edits to
both sets of transaction documents. Eventually, on November 19, 2007, various
parties executed a General Assignment, and an Asset Purchase Agreement. A true
and correct copy of the General Assignment with exhibits is attached as Exhibit 6. A
true and correct copy of the Asset Purchase Agreement with exhibits is attached as
Ixhibit 7. Whatever the name and form of the purchaser entity, Dubinsky and the
other participants in the Manley Toyquest enterprise were the real parties in interest
on both sides of the transaction whereby they attempted to divest SLB of its
liabilities, and the WHAM-O judgment in particular, and continue the business under

a different name using SLB’s assets, employees, contracts and property.
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36. Moldo thus purportedly became SLB’s Assignee. Under the Asset
Purchase Agreement, AW purported to purchase not only all of the tangible assets of
SLB, and to assume all of the contracts necessary for Dubinsky to continue operating
his business without disruption (such as utilities at the very same Barry Avenue
building and health insurance for the employees), but AW also purported—in a
theretofore unheard of transaction to Moldo who has been practicing in this area for
25 years—to purchase the “appellate rights” to the judgment in the Color case while
not assuming the liability for the underlying judgment.

37. This “appellate rights purchase” transaction on its face violated California
Civil Code Section 3521, which provides that “he who takes the benefit must bear the
burden.” Since purchasing this purported assignment of appellate rights, AW, acting.
through Dubinsky, instructed attorney Furman to file various pleadings in the name
of SLB (rather than AW) which were not authorized by Assignee Moldo. Furman
filed such pleadings at Dubinsky’s instruction, including without limitation, a motion
for new trial, opposition to motion for attorneys’s fees, application to quash
subpoena, and various letters to the Court submitted in connection with these papers.
By taking these actions pursuant to the assignment of appellate rights, AW has
sought to obtain the benefit of that assignment which is avoidance of the judgment.
As such, by operation of law, AW also assumed the liability of the underlying
judgment associated therewith and has become a judgment debtor. Cal. Civ. Code
§3521; see Fanning v. Yoland Prods., 150 Cal. App.2d 444, 448 (Cal. Ct. App. 1957).
AW and Aquawood also are successors and judgment debtors because they are a
mere continuation of SLB dba Toyquest, and because of the fraudulent ABC
transaction.

38. Both before and after the General Assignment, Moldo requested various
documents from SLB. SLB was unable to produce any corporate minute book or any
evidence whatsoever of any meeting or action by the Board of Directors of SLB.

SLB provided Moldo no insurance policy covering liability arising from its toy
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design or distribution operations. SLB claimed to have no financial computer. SLB
provided no documentary evidence of the ownership of the stock of the corporation.
SLB provided no corporate filings of any kind to Moldo prior to the Assignment.
SLB refused to provide a list of its employees, necessitating Moldo to approach ADP
in order to provide W-2s and 1099s for 2007. SLB’s failure to provide information
in response to Moldo’s requests made it readily apparent that SLB had failed to
observe the most basic corporate formalities. SLB held no board meetings and kept
no corporate minutes or written resolutions of corporate action.

39. It also became apparent that SLB was woefully undercapitalized.
Dubinsky testified at trial in the Color case that Toyquest was the seventh largest toy
company in the world, but the financials provided by SLB to Moldo demonstrate that
SLB did not maintain sufficient unencumbered capital to meet its recurring and/or
prospective liabilities, and instead relied on monthly infusions of cash from Manley
to meet its on-going obligations, including payroll and royalty payments. These
capital infusions came in the form of regular payments internally denominated as
“commissions.” Notably, despite Manley’s continued use of toy designs created in
whole or in part by SLB, Manley ceased making these regular commission payments
to SLB shortly before the ABC transaction and has since made no such payments to
its Assignee.

40. Upon information and belief, there are no documents evidencing any
issuance of stock by SLB or that the shareholders made any initial or subsequent
capital contribution.

41. As part of his duties as SLB’s Assignee for the benefit of SLB’s creditors,
Moldo has endeavored to discover the extent and value of SLB’s intangible assets,
including any intellectual property owned by SLB, such as the Toyquest trade name
and any toy designs or packaging designs created by SLB and its employees prior to
the ABC. After the assignment, Moldo directed his field agent, Tony Shokrai, to

obtain copies of the hard drives from the computers used by SLB and its employees,
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which he believed contained important corporate records, as well as perhaps the only

documentary evidence of the intellectual property owned by SLB. Dubinsky,
however, refused to permit Shokrai any access to the computers, their hard drives, or
the contents thereof. Nonetheless, these computers were transferred to AW through
the Asset Purchase Agreement, and the contents of those computers are currently in
use by Aquawood at the 2228-2229 Barry Avenue address.

42, Aquawood, and SLB dba Toyquest before it, is nothing more than a
common enterprise engaged in by Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu acting
through a vartety of entities, including Manley, SLB, Izzy, Aquawood and AW
Computer Holdings. Dubinsky, Chan and Liu were in true control and ownership of
SL.B and its assets at all times relevant to the infringement in the Color case, and are
presently in true control of Aquawood and AW. Indeed, Dubinsky is identified as the
agent for service of process for both Aquawood and AW.

43. One purpose of this common enterprise was to trade on WHAM-O’s
goodwill by manufacturing, selling, distributing, marketing, and offering for sale
water slide toys that infringed WHAM-0’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. SLB’s
attorney in the Color case admitted in opening argument that “SLB and Manley work
hand in hand. Manley makes the products. SLB assists in the design. They market,
and they are a sales agent for Manley.”

44. The overlapping connections between Manley and SLB are extensive.
According to SLB’s 2006 tax returns signed by Dubinsky under penalty of perjury
and filed on or about September 12, 2007, the shareholders of SLB are Lisa Liu and
Alan Chan (son of Samson Chan), each purportedly owning 50% of the stock in SLB.
(In contrast, the Consent of Stockholders signed by Liu in connection with the
General Assignment just two months later claimed that she was the sole stockholder.)
In 2003, Lisa Liu was identified in the New York state corporate filings as the Chief
Financial Officer and a director for SLB. At Manley, Lisa Liu serves in the role as

the Managing Director for the company. Alan Chan, putative co-owner of SLB, is
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the son of Samson Chan, founder, owner and CEO of Defendant Manley. Samson
Chan also held himself out at various times as the Chief Executive Officer and
corporate secretary of SLB. The address listed for Samson Chan and Lisa Liu on
SLB’s corporate filings is the business address for Manley in Hong Kong. In 2005,
Dubinsky signed documents purporting to be the President of Manley, while at the
same time serving as the President of SLB. In Hong Kong, Manley’s offices bear the
Toyquest name.

45. In addition, SLB has held itself out to the world to be part and parcel with
Manley. Both SLB and Manley do business as Toyquest, even though SLB owns ;che
Toyquest trademark in the United States and has not formally authorized Manley to
operate under the trade name. SLB does business under several names, including
Manley, Manley Toys, Manley Toys USA, Manley Toys USA, Ltd., Manley
Toyquest, Toyquest, and Toyquest a division of Manley Toys. At trial in the Color
case, Dubinsky testified that his company was the seventh largest toy company in the
world, testimony that could only have been truthful if SLB and Manley are one and
the same. SLB’s website at www.toyquest.com listed a Hong Kong address—the
same as Manley’s address.

46. SLB’s disregard for the corporate form spills over to its licensing
arrangements with third parties. SLB entered a licensing arrangement with Six Flags
Theme Parks, Inc. (“Six Flags™), which permitted SLB, and only SLB, to use certain
Six Flag’s trademarks in connection with the sale of SLB’s products. The rights
conveyed uhder the licensing agreement were non-transferable. SLB, however,
concedes that it neither manufactured nor sold any products bearing the Six Flags
trademarks. Instead, Defendant Manley exercised SLB’s non-transferable rights,
manufactured and sold the products bearing Six Flags’ trademarks, prepared the
royalty statements on SLB’s behalf, and funneled the money to allow SLB to pay the
royalties to Six Flags. WHAM-O is informed and believes and thereupon states that

SLB acted in the same fashion with respect to numerous other intellectual property
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licensors, including Lund & Company, Blue Man Group, Disney, Warner Bros. and
others. SLB has served as nothing more than a pass-through company for Manley.

47. Similarly, [zzy has served as nothing more than a real estate holding entity
for Dubinsky and Chan for the benefit of SLB and Manley. Izzy has been unable to
produce any written lease between it and SLB as a tenant, and SLB’s books and
records appear to indicate that SLB paid for garbage disposal, property insurance on
the building structure and premises at 2228-2229 Barry Avenue, taxes, water and
sewage, and other expenses commonly borne by the landlord. Izzy apparently
charged SLB no rent for its use of the premises.

48. Upon information and belief, Dubinsky, acting on behalf of Defendant
Manley and the entire Toyquest enterprise, directed and controlled the litigation in
the Color case. Moreover, as the sole Director of SLB, Liu —also the Managing
Director of Manley—had the statutory right and power to manage the affairs of SLB.
As a result of Liu’s power and authority over SLB and her position with Manley as
Managing Director, Manley also had de facto control over the litigation. Upon
information and belief, Dubinsky communicated with Chan and/or Liu concerning
material events in the Color case. As noted above, this was not the first time
Dubinsky acted on behalf of Manley. In addition to other events described herein
where Dubinsky has acted in the name of Manley, in 2005, Dubinsky and Samson
Chan jointly visited WHAM-O to discuss a possible acquisition of WHAM-O by
Manley. Dubinsky introduced Chan as his partner. Dubinsky signed a proposed
letter of intent for the acquisition of WHAM-O giving his title President of Manley.

49. There is a common identity of interest between Manley and SLB dba
Toyquest. They have common ownership, directors and officers. SLB has been held
out to the public as a “division of Manley” and has used various versions of the name
Manley as its corporate name. Manley uses Toyquest as part of its trade name. SLB
has served as a mere conduit for transactions for the benefit of Manley. Manley has

manufactured, or contracted for the manufacture, of the infringing product and
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packaging designed and sold by SLB. Based on the facts set forth herein, it is
apparent that maintaining the corporate fiction of a separate existence for SLB, Izzy
or Manley, particularly where SLB has engaged in a fraudulent transaction to avoid
WHAM-O’s judgment, leads to an inequitable result. Manley, Dubinsky, Chan, Liu
and Izzy are the judgment debtors in the Color case.

50. Additionally, based on the facts set forth herein it is apparent that AW and
Aquawood are mere continuations of SLB, and the product of fraud by SLB in
connection with the General Assignment, and in all events are true judgment debtors
under Civil Code Section 3521 by virtue of their assumption and exercise of the
appellate rights to the judgment in the Color case under the Asset Purchase
Agreement.

D.  Wal-Mart’s, Target’s, TRU’s, and Kmart’s Accounts Payable to the
Judgment Debtor(s)

51. Upon information and belief, Wal-Mart, Target, TRU, and Kmart
currently have an accounts payable balance due to Manley in an amount of several
million dollars.

52. Upon information and belief, Wal-Mart’s, Target’s, TRU’s, and Kmart’s
outstanding balances payable to Manley are for inventory purchased from Manley
bearing the Toyquest and BANZALI trademarks, owned in the United States by SLB,
and for products and packages designed by employees of SLB and sold by employees
and agents of SLB to retailers, all activities occurring prior to the General
Assignment to Moldo. These products are continuing to exploit intellectual property
assets owned by SLB without consent and without compensation to SLB. The
payable balances at Wal-Mart, Target, TRU, Kmart due to Manley therefore include
sums owed to the judgment debtor in the Color case, SLB dba Toyquest.
Accordingly, those sums are subject to lien and execution pursuant to California
Code of Civil Procedure Section 708.210 ef seq..

53. Additionally, because Manley is an alter ego of SLB and therefore also a
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true judgment debtor in the Color case, the sums payable held by Wal-Mart, Target,
TRU, and Kmart for the benefit of Manley are subject to execution by WHAM-O in
connection with its judgment, and are subject to lien and execution pursuant to
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 708.210 et seq. See Fleet Credit Corp. v.
TML Bus Sales, Inc., 65 F.3d 119 (9th Cir. 1995) (affirming district court’s
adjudication of alter ego issues in context of creditor’s suit and permitting judgment
creditor to recover judgment from third party that held money of judgment debtor’s
alter ego).

54. Finally, to the extent any sums held by the retailers for Manley may be
owing to Aquawood, and Aquawood is also a judgment debtor based upon its
successor liability, such sums are subject to lien and execution pursuant to Section
708.210 et seq.

E.  Past and Continuing Infringement, Dilution, and False Advertising
by Manley Toys, Aquawood, TRU, Chan, Dubinsky and Lin

55. Acting in concert with SLB, and now with SLB’s successor Aquawood,
Defendant Manley Toys designs, manufactures, promotes, advertises, distributes,
markets, sells, and offers for sale water-related toys, including products and
packaging that infringe WHAM-0O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. In particular,
Manley manufactured and delivered to retailers for sale in the United States the
infringing products and packages that were the subject of the judgment in the Color
case. Chan, Dubinsky and Liu authorized, directed, and participated in and
controlled the design, manufacture, distribution and sale of those infringing products
and packages.

56. As joint tortfeasors with SLB, Manley, Dubinsky, Chan and Liu are liable
for the identical conduct for which SLB was found liable in the Color case, including
willful trademark infringement, willful false advertising, and willful trademark
dilution.

57. Moreover, Defendant Manley Toys, at the direction and authorization of
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Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, and with assistance from Aquawood, continues to use the
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in connection with the manufacture and sale of
water slides with actual knowledge of and in contempt of this Court’s permanent
injunction order and in violation of the Lanham Act. For example, Dubinsky, now
acting as an agent for Aquawood, has urged retailers to continue to sell Manley
products in misleading packaging that depicts a water slide toy that infringes and
dilutes WHAM-O’S YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, despite this Court’s
permanent injunction in the Color case enjoining the continued use of this very same
packaging. Manley, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu know their actions violate WHAM-
O’s trademark rights and this Court’s order and, nonetheless, they continue to profit
from their violation of these rights. This continued unauthorized, flagrant and
unlawful use of WHAM-O’s mark damages the value of WHAM-O’s rights in the
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, costs Wham-O sales, further injures the business
reputation of WHAM-O, and allows Manley and Aquawood to profit from their
illegal conduct.

58. Similarly, Defendant TRU is acting in willful disregard of WHAM-O’s
rights. WHAM-O gave Defendant TRU, along with the other retailers, notice of the
judgment and permanent injunction entered in the Color case. Despite its knowledge
of the permanent injunction and the Court’s adjudication of the validity of Wham-O’s
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, TRU sets itself apart from the other retailers by
refusing to stop its infringement.

59. As a direct result of the willfully infringing activities of Defendants
Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, WHAM-O has been and
continues to be irreparably injured by the confusion likely to occur, by the damage to
the value of WHAM-O’s rights in the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, and by the

Iikely injury to its business, reputation, and goodwill.
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FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Infringement of Registered Trademarks in Violation of Section 32 of the Lanham

Act, 15 1U.S.C. § 1114 as to Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU)

60. Paragraphs 1 through 59 are hereby incorporated by reference.

61. WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have
infringed, and continue to infringe, WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in
violation of the Lanham Act.

62. The YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark is famous and has acquired
secondary meaning. Purchasers associate the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark only
with WHAM-O’s water slide toy products. This association is a result of extensive
advertising and sales throughout the United States of goods bearing the YELLOW
WATER SLIDE Mark.

63. As a joint tortfeasor with SLB for the willful trademark infringement that
resulted in the nearly $8 million judgment in the Color case, Defendant Manley
infringed the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark through the manufacture, marketing,
advertising, promotion, distribution, offers to sell and sales in commerce of its
competing goods utilizing an imitation of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in a
manner that was likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception. Consequently,
Manley 1s jointly and severally liable along with SLB for the full amount of the
nearly $8 million judgment and WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from
Manley.

64. In defiance of the Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,
Defendant Manley continues to profit from its infringement of the YELLOW
WATER SLID'E Mark through the continued manufacture, marketing, advertising,
promotion, distribution, offers to sell and sales in commerce of competing goods
utilizing an imitation of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in a manner that is

likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception.
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65. Defendant Aquawood is a mere continuation of SLB, as the result of a
fraudulent transaction. Through its agent, Brian Dubinsky, Aquawood has urged
retailers to continue selling Manley’s products with yellow water slides and other
products in packaging depicting yellow water slide toys that infringe WHAM-O’s
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, despite this Court’s permanent injunction in the
Color case enjoining the sale of these same trademark infringing products.

66. Defendant TRU advertises, markets, sells and offers for sale Manley
preducts and product packaging that infringe WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER
SLIDE Mark, despite the Court’s permanent injunction and WHAM-O’s repeated
demands for TRU to cease and desist. N

67. The activities of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU described
above constitute infringement of WHAM-O’s rights in its federally registered
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark under 15 U.S.C. § 1114.

68. By committing the acts alleged herein, Defendants Manley, Aquawood,
and TRU have intentionally, knowingly and willfully infringed the registered
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, and Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU
continue to do so.

69. Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU are presently in contempt of
this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case by continuing to engage in the
marketing and sale of infringing goods. Unless held in contempt and immediately
restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so. WHAM-O’s remedy at law is
not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted and threatened by the use of
confusingly similar marks by Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU in
connection with their goods and services.

70. WHAM-O has been further damaged by TRU’s willful and deliberate
infringement and the continued willful and deliberate infringement of Defendants
Manley, Aquawood, and TRU in an amount to be proved at trial. WHAM-O is

entitled to recover all profits realized by Defendants Manley and Aquawood as a
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result of their ongoing infringement, and all profits realized by TRU as a result of its
infringement of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, as well as WHAM-O’s costs
in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a).

71. The actions of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have been
willful, malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and
deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,
WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount of the profits of Defendants
Manley, Aquawood, and TRU as a result of their trademark infringement, plus

WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1117(a) & (b).

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Trademark Dilution in Violation of Section 43(C) of the Lanham Act,

15 U.S.C. § 1125(C) as to Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU)

72. Paragraphs 1 through 71 are hereby incorporated by reference.

73. WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU diluted,
and continue to dilute, WHAM-0O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in violation of
the Lanham Act.

74. Given more than four decades of use and the enormous popularity of
WHAM-O’s water slide toys, the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark is famous among
children and adults alike. The color serves no function in a water slide toy. Indeed, a
federal court has already deemed the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark to be valid
and good in law, and a jury held the mark to be famous by its willful dilution
determination.

75. As a joint tortfeasor with SLB for the willful trademark dilution that
resulted in the nearly $8 million judgment in the Color case, Defendant Manley made
unauthorized use of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in products it sold or
offered for sale. Such unauthorized use of the mark has diluted the distinctiveness of
the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. Consequently, Manley is jointly and severally

liable along with SLB for the full amount of the nearly $8 million judgment and
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WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment frdm Manley.

76. In defiance of the Court’s permanent injunction in the Color cése,
Defendant Manley continues to profit from its dilution of the YELLOW WATER
SLIDE Mark through the manufacture, marketing, advertising, promotion,
distribution, offers to sell and sales in commerce of competing goods utilizing an
imitation of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in a manner that is likely to cause
confusion, mistake or deception and erode WHAM-O’s goodwill in the YELLOW
WATER SLIDE mark.

77. Defendant Aquawood is a mere continuaﬁon of SLB, as the result of a
fraudulent transaction. Through its agent, Brian Dubinsky, Aquawood has urged
retailers to continue selling Manley’s products in packaging depicting yellow water
slide toys that dilute WHAM-0O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, despite this
Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case enjoining the sale of these same
trademark diluting products.

78. Defendant TRU advertises, markets, sells and offers for sale Manley
products in packaging depicting water slide toys that dilute WHAM-0’s YELLOW
WATER SLIDE Mark, despite the Court’s permanent injunction and WHAM-O’s
repeated demands that TRU cease and desist such practices.

79. Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU are presently in contempt of
this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case by continuing to engage in the
marketing and sale of diluting goods and causing WHAM-O to suffer actual,
permanent, and irreparable mjury. Unless held in contempt and immediately
restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so. WHAM-O’s remedy at law is
not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted and threatened by the use of the
diluting marks by Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU in connection with their
goods and services.

80. WHAM-O is entitled to recover all further profits realized by Defendants
Manley and Aquawood during their continued dilution of the YELLOW WATER
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SLIDE Mark since the judgment in the Color case, and all profits realized by TRU
during its dilution of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, as well as WHAM-O’s
costs in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a).

81. The actions of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have been
willful, malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and
deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,
WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount of profits realized by
Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU as a result of their trademark dilution, plus
WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1117(a) & 1117(b).

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(False Advertising in Violation of section 43(a)(1)(b) of the Lanham Act as to
Defendants Manley., Aguawood, and TRU)

82. Paragraphs 1 through 81 are hereby incorporated by reference.

83. WHAM-O alleges that Manley, Aquawood, and TRU intentionally
engaged m, and continue to engage in, false advertising in violation of the Lanham
Act.

84. As a joint tortfeasor with SLB for the willful false advertising that resulted
in the nearly $8 million judgment in the Color case, Defendant Manley’s use of
misleading packaging in connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of its water
slide toys constituted false advertising in violation of section 43(a)(1)(B) of the
Lanham Act. The horizontal sliding surface of Defendant Manley Toys’s water slide
toys is orange, but the packaging depicts a yellow horizontal sliding surface.
Defendant Manley’s false representation in connection with the sale, or offering for
sale, of its water slide toys has caused confusion with the YELLOW WATER SLIDE
Mark and caused injury to WHAM-O. Consequently, Manley is jointly and severally
liable along with SLB for the full amount of the nearly $8 million judgment and
WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from Manley.

85. Indefiance of the Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,
24
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Defendant Manley continues to use misleading packaging which depicts a yellow
horizontal sliding surface on water slide toys in connection with the promotion,
marketing, sale, or offering for sale, of its products and water slide toys.

86. Defendant Aquawood is a mere continuation of SLB, as the result of a
fraudulent transaction. Through its agent, Brian Dubinsky, Aquawood has urged
retailers to continue selling Manley’s products in misleading packaging that
constitutes false advertising in violation of section 43(a)(1)(B), despite this Court’s
permanent injunction in the Color case enjoining the use of this very same misleading
packaging.

87. Defendant TRU advertises, markets, sells and offers for sale Manley
products in misleading packaging depicting water slide toys that infringe WHAM-
O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, and continues to do so despite the Court’s
permanent injunction and WHAM-O’s repeated demands that TRU cease and desist
such false advertising.

88. Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU are presently in contempt of
this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case by engaging in the misleading
marketing, advertising, and promotion of its water slide toys. Unless held in
contempt and immediately restrained and enjoined, they will continué to do so.
WHAM-O’s remedy at law is not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted
and threatened by the false representations of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and
TRU in connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of their goods and services.

89. WHAM-O has been further damaged by the false advertising of
Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU in an amount to be proved at trial.
WHAM-O is entitled to recover lost profits due to diverted sales because of the false
advertising, loss of good will, the cost of corrective advertising, and all further profits
realized by Defendants Manley and Aquawood during their continued false
advertising since the judgment in the Color case, and all profits realized by TRU

during its false advertising.
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90. The actions of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have been
willful, malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and
deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,
WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount of profits realized by
Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU as a result of their false advertising, plus
WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Contributory and Vicarious Infringement for Infringement in Violation of Section 32

of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. 8 1114 as to Defendants Dubinsky. Chan. and Liu)

91. Paragraphs 1 through 90 are hereby incorporated by reference.

92. WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are each
personally liable, jointly and severally, for Manley’s, SLB’s, and Aquawood’s
infringement of WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, including the $6
million judgment plus attormeys’ fees awarded WHAM-O in the Color case.

93. As corporate officers and directors who authorized and directed the
infringing activities of SLB, Aquawood and Manley, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan,
and Liu are personally and vicariously liable for SLB’s, Manley’s, and Aquawood’s
infringing conduct. Committee for Idaho’s High Desert, Inc. v. Yost, 92 F.3d §14,
823 (9th Cir. 1996). Dubinsky authorized and directed the infringing activities of
SLB and Aquawood as their president. Upon information and belief, Dubinsky
directed the creation of the infringing packaging, which consisted of a photograph
taken in his sister’s backyard and featured his nephew. His personal involvement in
the infringement of WHAM-0’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark continues to this
day, as he continues to personally and falsely assure retailers that they need not
comply with that permanent injunction entered in the Color case, intentionally
inducing the retailers to infringe WHAM-0’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. His

conduct has encouraged retailers to continue distributing, selling, and offering for
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sale infringing slides designed by SLB and manufactured, distributed and sold by
Manley and Aquawood.

94. As Chairman and CEO of Manley, and owner of almost 95% of Manley’s
stock, as well as CEO and corporate secretary of SLB at the time the Color case was
filed, Chan has authorized and directed SLB’s and Manley’s infringing conduct.
Upon information and belief, Chan was familiar with WHAM-O’s intellectual
property generally and the YELLOW WATER SLIDE MARK specifically at least as
of 2005 when he personally met with WHAM-0’s CEO to discuss Manley’s possible
acquisition of WHAM-O. Furthermore, despite the judgment and permanent
injunction entered in the Color case, which WHAM-O personally served on Chan, he
continues to authorize and direct his company’s manufacture, distribution,
advertisement, marketing, sale, and offering for sale of water slide toys that infringe
WHAM-0O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

95. As a primary, if not sole, owner and sole director of SLE, and the
managing director of Manley, Lisa Liu has authorized and directed SL.B’s and
Manley’s infringing conduct. Dubinsky reported to Liu, and Liu had responsibility at
Manley for the infringing products and prepared the royalty statements for the
infringing products due to Six Flags. Despite the judgment and permanent injunction
entered in the Color case, which WHAM-O personally served on Liu, she continues
to authorize and direct Manley’s manufacture, distribution, advertisement, marketing,
sale, and offer to sell water slide toys that infringe WHAM-0O’s YELLOW WATER
SLIDE Mark.

96. By authorizing and directing Manley’s, SLB’s, and Aquawood’s actions
alleged above, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu have intentionally, knowingly
and willfully infringed the registered YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, and induced
others to infringe the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark and they continue te do so.

97. As joint tortfeasors with SLB for the willful infringement that resulted in

the judgment in the Color case, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are each jointly
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and severally liable along with SLB for the full amount of the nearly $8 million
judgment and WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from them.

98. In defiance of this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,
Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu presently have authorized and are directing
Manley and Aquawood in the marketing and sale of infringing goods. Unless held in
contempt and immediately restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so.
WHAM-O’s remedy at law is not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted
and threatened by Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s use of confusingly
similar marks in connection with Manley’s and Aquawood’s goods and services.

99. WHAM-O has been further damaged by Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s,
and Liu’s for their continued willful and deliberate infringement of the YELLOW
WATER SLIDE Mark in an amount to be proved at trial, . WHAM-O is entitled to
recover all additional profits realized by Defendants Manley Toys and Aquawood for
their continued infringement of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark since the
judgment in the Color case, as well as WHAM-O’s costs in this action pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 1117(a).

100.Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s actions have been willful,
malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and
deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,
WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount of any additional profits
realized from their infringement of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE MARK plus
WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys” fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1117(a) & (b).

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Contributory and Vicarious Trademark Dilution in Violation of Section 43(C) of the

Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(C) as to Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu)

101.Paragraphs 1 through 100 are hereby incorporated by reference.
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102. WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are
personally liable for Manley’s, SLB’s and Aquawood’s willful trademark dilution of
WHAM-O’s famous YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

. 103.As corporate officers and directors who authorized and directed the
trademark diluting activities of SLB, Aquawood, and Manley, Defendants Dubinsky,
Chan, and Liu are personally and vicariously liable for SLB’s, Manley’s, and
Aquawood’s infringing conduct. Committee for Idaho’s High Desert, Inc. v. Yost, 92
F.3d 814, 823 (9th Cir. 1996). Dubinsky authorized and directed the trademark
diluting activities of SLB and Aquawood as their president. Upon information and
belief, Dubinsky directed the creation of the trademark diluting packaging, which
consisted of a photograph taken in his sister’s backyard and which featured his
nephew. His personal involvement in the dilution of WHAM-O’s YELLOW
WATER SLIDE Mark continues to this day, as he continues to personally assure
retailers that they can ignore the judgment and permanent injunction entered in the
Color case, which adjudged the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark to be famous. His
conduct has encouraged retailers to continue distributing, selling, and offering for
sale slides designed by SLB and manufactured, distributed and sold by Manley and
Aquawood that dilute WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, intentionally
inducing the retailers to dilute WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

104.As Chairman and CEO of Manley, and owner of almost 95% of Manley’s
stock, as well as CEO and corporate secretary of SLB at the time the Color case was
filed, Chan has authorized and directed SLB’s and Manley’s trademark diluting
conduct, as alleged above. Upon information and belief, Chan was familiar with
WHAM-O’s intellectual property generally and the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark
at least as of 2005 when he personally met with WHAM-O’s CEO to discuss
Manley’s possible acquisition of WHAM-0. Furthermore, WHAM-O personally
served Chan with the judgment and permanent injunction from the Color case, which

found the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark to be famous, and yet he continues to
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authorize and direct his company’s continued manufacture, distribution,
advertisement, marketing, selling, and offering for sale water slide toys that dilute
WHAM-0O’s YELLLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

105. As a primary, if not sole owner, and sole director of SLB, and the
managing director of Manley, Lisa Liu has authorized and directed SLB’s and
Manley’s trademark diluting conduct, as alleged above. Dubinsky reported to Liu,
and Liu had responsibility at Manley for the trademark diluting products and
prepared the royalty statements for the trademark diluting products due to Six Flags.

WHAM-O personally served Liu with the judgment and permanent injunction from

the Color case, and yet she continues to authorize and direct Manley’s manufacture,
distribution, advertisement, marketing, sale, and offer to sell water slide toys that
infringe WHAM-0O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

106.Given more than four decades of use and the enormous popularity of
WHAM-O’s water slide toys, the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark is famous among
children and adults alike. The color serves no function in a water slide toy. Indeed,
this Court already adjudged the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark to be valid and
good m law, and the jury in the Color case held the mark to be famous.

107.Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu have directed and authorized SLB,
Aquawood, and Manley to make unauthorized use of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE
Mark in their products, and continue to do so despite the permanent injunction and
Judgment in the Color case.

108.Such unauthorized use of the mark has and will actually dilute the
distinctiveness of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

109. As joint tortfeasors with SLB for the willful trademark dilution that
resulted in the judgment in the Color case, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are
each jointly and severally liable along with SL.B for the full amount of the nearly $8
million judgment and WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from them.

110.1In defiance of this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,
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Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu presently have authorized and are directing
Manley and Aquawood in the marketing and sale of diluting goods. Unless held in
contempt and immediately restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so.
WHAM-O’s remedy at law is not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted
and threatened by Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s use of trademark
diluting marks in connection with their goods and services.

111. WHAM-O has been further damaged by the actions of Defendants
Dubinsky, Chan and Liu, and is entitled to recover, jointly and severally, from
Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, all further profits realized by Defendants
Manley and Aquawood during their continued dilution of the YELLOW WATER
SLIDE Mark since the judgment in the Color case, as well as WHAM-O’s costs in
this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a).

112.Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s actions have been willful,
malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and
deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,
WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount of Defendant Manley’s
profits plus WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1117(a)
& 1117(b) and the enhanced damages award from the Color case.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Contributory and Vicarious False Advertising in Violation of section 43(a)(1)(b) of

the L anham Act as to Defendants Dubinsky, Chan and Liu)

113.Paragraphs 1 through 112 are hereby incorporated by reference.

114. WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Dubinsky, Chan and Liu are personally
and vicariously liable for the intentional false advertising engaged in by Manley and
Aquawood in violation of the Lanham Act.

115.As corporate officers and directors who authorized and directed the false
advertising by SLB, Aquawood, and Manley, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu

are personally and vicariously liable for SLB’s, Aquawood’s, and Manley’s
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intentional false advertising. Committee for ldah’s High Desert, Inc. v. Yost, 92 F.3d
814, 823 (9th Cir. 1996). Dubinsky authorized and directed the false advertising by
SLB and Aquawood as their president. Upon information and belief, Dubinsky
directed the creation of the misieading packaging, which consisted of a photograph
taken in his sister’s backyard and which featured his nephew. His personal
involvement in the false advertising continues to this day, as he continues to
personally assure retailers that they can ignore the judgment and permanent
injunction entered in the Color case. His conduct has encouraged retailers to
continue distributing, selling, and offering for misleading and false packaging for
water slides designed by SLB and manufactured, distributed and sold by Manley and
Aquawood, intentionally inducing the retailers to engage in false advertising to the
derogation of WHAM-0’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

116.As Chairman and CEO of Manley, and owner of almost 95% of Manley’s

 stock, as well as CEO and corporate secretary of SLB at the time the Color case was

filed, Chan has authorized and directed SL.B’s and Manley’s false advertising, as
alleged above. Upon information and belief, Chan was familiar with WHAM-O’s
intellectual property generally and the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark at least as of
2005 when he personally met with WHAM-0’s CEO to discuss Manley’s possible
acquisition of WHAM-O. Furthermore, WHAM-O personally served Chan with the
Judgment and permanent injunction from the Color case, which found SLB’s
packaging misleading"g and false, and yet he continues to authorize and direct his
company’s false and misleading advertising.

117.As a primary, if not sole, owner and the sole director of SLB, and the
managing director of Manley, Lisa Liu has authorized and directed SLB’s and
Manley’s false advertising, as alleged above. Dubinsky reported to Liu, and Liu had
responsibility at Manley for the products that were falsely advertised and prepared
the royalty statements for those products due to Six Flags. WHAM-O personally

served Liu with the judgment and permanent injunction from the Color case, and yet
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she continues to authorize and direct Manley’s false and misleading advertising,

118.Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s direction and authorization of
talse and misleading advertising by SLB, Manley Toys, and Aquawood, in
connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of its water slide toys constitute false
advertising in violation of section 43(a)(1)(B) of the Lanham Act. The horizontal
sliding surface of SLB’s and Defendant Manley’s water slide toys is orange, but the
packaging depicts a yellow horizontal sliding surface. This false representation in
connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of its water slide toys has caused, or is
likely to cause, confusion with the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark and cause mjury
to WHAM-O.

119.As joint tortfeasors with SLB for the willful false advertising that resulted
in the judgment in the Color case, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are jointly
and severally liable along with SLB for the full amount of the nearly $8 million
judgment and WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from them.

120.In defiance of this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,
Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu continue to direct and authorize Manley and
Aquawood to engage in the misleading marketing, advertising, and promotion of its
water slide toys. Unless held in contempt and immediately restrained and enjoined,
they will continue to do so. WHAM-O’s remedy at law is not adequate to
compenséte it for the harm inflicted and threatened by Defendants false
representations in connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of its goods and
services.

121. WHAM-O has been further damaged by Defendants’ continued false
advertising in an amount to be proved at trial. WHAM-O is entitled to recover any
additional lost profits due to diverted sales because of the continued false advertising,
loss of good will, the cost of corrective advertising, and all profits further realized by
Defendants Manley and Aquawood during their false advertising since the judgment

in the Color case..
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122.Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s actions have been willful,
malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and
deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,
WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount of the profits realized by
Defendants Manley and Aquawood, plus WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Judgment Debtor’s Interest in Property or Debt to Satisfy Money Judement Pursuant

to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 708.210 et seq. as to all Defendants)

123 . Paragraphs 1 through 122 are hereby incorporated by reference.

124.0n or about December 9, 2007, the District Court for the Central District
of California entered a $6 million money judgment against SLB in favor of WHAM-
O in Case No. CV06-1382 RSWL (CWx) in the United States District Court for the
Central District of California.

125.0n or about February 26, 2008, the District Court for the Central District
of California granted WHAM-O’s motion for attorneys’ fees, awarding an additional
$1,768,882.24 to WHAM-O in Case No. CV06-1382 RSWL (CWx).

126. WHAM-O’s judgment in Case No. CV06-1382 has not been satisfied, and
SLB has sought to evade that judgment by initiating the unsupervised and fraudulent
ABC process.

127.1n light of the unity and identity of interest between SLB, Defendants
Manley, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, the severe undercapitalization of SLB, SLB’s
complete disregard of corporate formalities, and the inequitable result that will arise
if SLB is permitted to maintain its corporate fiction, Defendants Manley, Dubinsky,
Chan and Liu are the alter egos of SLB and are judgment debtors each fully liable on
the $6 million judgment entered against SLB, in addition to the $1,768,882.24 in
attorney’s fees awarded to WHAM-O by the Court. It is proper, under long-standing
California law, to treat SLB’s alter egos as the true judgment debtors, because “[t]hat

a court may at any time amend its judgment so that the latter will properly designate
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the real defendants is not open to question.” Mirabito v. San Francisco Dairy Co., 8
Cal.App.2d 54, 57 (1935); see also Thomson v. L. C. Roney & Co., 112 Cal.App.2d
420, 425 (1952) (amendment to judgment to add alter ego is “simply an amendment
whose purpose is to designate the real name of the judgment debtor”).

128.1In light of the unity of interest between Izzy Holdings and its alter egos,
Dubinsky and Chan, on the one hand, and SLB and SLB’s alter egos, including
Dubinsky and Chan, on the other hand, and the fact that Izzy Holdings is but one of
several shell entities in the overall Manley Toyquest enterprise, Izzy Holdings is
SLB’s alter ego and, under long-standing California law, it is proper to treat Izzy
Holdings as a true judgment debtor.

129.Defendants AW and Aquawood are mere continuations of SLB, created
for the sole purpose of enabling SLB to evade the nearly $8 million judgment, while
allowing SLB to continue its operations under a new name. Consequently, it is
proper under California law to treat AW and Aquawood as true judgment debtors.

130.Plaintiff is informed and believes and on such information and belief
alleges that Defendants Wal-Mart, Target, TRU, and Kmart are indebted to the
judgment debtor Manley in the sum of several million dollars, which can be properly
garnished to satisfy WHAM-O’s judgment because such property is owed by
Manley, in part or in full, to SLB, and/or because such property is owned by alter ego
judgment debtor Manley.

131.Defendant Manley has compensated SLB for its toy designs and other
services through the payment of near monthly commissions. Manley continues to
market, distribute, sell, and offer for sale products using SLB’s toy designs. Despite
its continued use of SLB’s toy designs, Manley has ceased making the commission
payments to SLB. Consequently, Manley is indebted to SLB in a sum to be
determined at trial, which can be subject to lien and properly garnished to satisfy

WHAM-O’s judgment because such property is owed by Manley in full to SLB.
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132. As mere continuations of SLB, resulting from a fraudulent transaction,
AW and Aquawood are in possession of SLB’s property, which can properly be
subject to lien and garnished to satisfy WHAM-O’s judgment.

133.As SLB’s alter egos, the property of Izzy Holdings, Dubinsky, Chan, Liu,
and Manley, can be used to satisfy WHAM-O’s judgment, and, consequently can
properly be garnished and subject to lien.

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Unfair Competition in Violation of California Common Law as to Defendants

Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu)

134 Paragraphs 1 through 133 are hereby incorporated by reference.

135.WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky,
Chan, and Liu have engaged in, and continue to engage in, unfair competition in
violation of California common law.

136.The conduct of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan,
and Liu as alleged above, constitutes unfair competition under California State |
common law. The acts of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan,
and Liu have resulted in the “passing off” of their products as those of WHAM-O, or
as somehow related or associated with, or sponsored or endorsed by WHAM-O.

137.1In further violation of California unfair competition common law,
Defendant TRU has refused to do business with Plaintiff WHAM-O as a result of
WHAM-O’S enforcement of its intellectual property rights.

138.By reason of these acts, WHAM-O has suffered and is suffering actual,
permanent and irreparable injury, the extent of which is presently not known, and
WHAM-O will suffer continuing damage and irreparable injury unless Defendants
Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are preliminarily and
permanently enjoined from the use of the marks.

139.The actions of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan,
and Liu entitle WHAM-O to general and specific damages for all of such

36

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT
CASE NO.: CV08-01281 RSWL (CWx)




e e I B I e I

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Crase 2:08-cv-01281-RSWL-CW  Document 34  Filed 04/21/2008 Page 38 of 41

Defendants’ profits derived from their past unlawful conduct to the full extent
provided for by the common law of the State of California.

140.The actions of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have been
willful, malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and
deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,
WHAM-O is entitled to recover punitive damages under California Civil Code
§ 3294,

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, WHAM-O prays for entry of judgment in its favor and against
Defendants as follows:

1. For a declaration that Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, AW, Izzy,
Dubinsky, Chan and Liu are liable for the Color case judgment because (1)
Defendants Manley Toys, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are jointly and
severally liable as SLB’s joint tortfeasors; (2) Defendants Manley Toys,
Izzy, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are liable as SLB’s alter egos; and/or (3)
Defendants Aquawood and AW are liable as SLB’s successors;

2. For an award to WHAM-O of all profits received by Defendants Manley
Toys, Aquawood, and TRU as a result of the continued infringement,
dilution and false advertising of Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood,
Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu and the infringement, dilution and false
advertising of TRU;

3. For an award of all damages sustained by WHAM-O by reason of the acts
of continued infringement, dilution, and false advertising of Defendants
Manley Toys, Aquawood, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, and the acts of
infringement, dilution, and false advertising by TRU pursuant to 15 U.S.C.
§ 1117,

4. For an order that Defendants Manley Toys, Dubinsky, Chan, Liu,

Aquawood, and TRU are in contempt of the Court’s permanent injunction
37
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in the Color case, or, alternatively for entry of preliminary and permanent
injunctive relief restraining and enjoining Defendants Manley Toys,
Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu and all of their agents,
successors, and assigns, and all persons in active concert or participation
with any of them, from using the color yellow in connection with the '
distribution, sale or offering for sale of water slide toys, or any other mark,
alone or in combination with other words or symbols, that is confusingly
similar to WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, or which is likely
to cause confusion or mistake or to deceive, including any use on

Defendants’ websites and on the Internet;

. For an order requiring Defendant Manley Toys, Aquawood, and TRU to

deliver to WHAM-O all articles that infringe or dilute the YELLOW
WATER SLIDE Mark, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1118;

. For an order requiring Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, and TRU to

advise WHAM-O of the identity of all customers, suppliers, distributors and
manufacturers of Defendant’s water slides using the color yellow and
requiring Defendants Manley Toys Aquawood, and TRU to advise all
customers, suppliers, distributors and manufacturers that: (a) their water
slides using the color yellow were not manufactured, licensed, distributed
or authorized by WHAM-O; (b) any sales of such waterslides infringes the
YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark; and (c) any such infringing water slides
sold or distributed by Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, or TRU may
be returned to Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, or TRU in any
condition for a full refund, and Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, or
TRU shall make such refund and maintain all records relating to such recall

notices and refunds;

. For a declaration that the conduct of Defendants’ Manley, Aquawood,

TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu was willful;
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8. For an award of three times the amount of profits awarded herein pursuant
to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a);

9. For a declaration that this is an exceptional case and an award of reasonable
attorneys’ fees against Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, TRU,
Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu pursuant to 15. U.S.C. § 1117(a);

10.For an award of compensatory damages, punitive damages, and costs
against Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and
Liy;

11.For a judgment that each Defendant is either (1) indebted to SLB, SLB’s
alter egos, or SLB’s successors, or (2) in possession of property belonging
to SLB, SLB’s alter egos or SLB’s successors, and that such debt or
property shall be applied to payment of the money judgment against SLB
Toys m Case No. CV 06-1382 RSWL (CWx) in favor of WHAM-O; and

12.For an award of such other and further relief as the Court shall deem just

and proper.
DATED: April 11, 2008 Respectfully submitted,
HELLER EHRMAN LLP
By /s/ John C. Ulin
JOHN C. ULIN

Attorneys for Plamtiff
WHAM-O, INC.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff WHAM-O, Inc. hereby demands a jury trial on all claims herein that

are properly triable to a jury.

DATED: April 11, 2008

Respectfully submitted,

HELLER EHRMAN LLP

By /s/ John C. Ulin
JOHN C. ULIN

Attorneys for Plaintiff
WHAM-O, INC.
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EXHIBIT 1
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UnitEd States Patent Ocem_“Reg,istex_-ec_l Deec. 761,883

24, 1963

PRINCIPAL REGISTER
Trademark

Ser. No. 118,388, filed Apr. 21, 1961

SLIP N SLIDE

Wr;’m;o Munufacturing Company (California corpora- For: FLEXIBLE PLASTIC WATER SLIDE, in
_ton CLASS 22, -

835 E.El Monte St. First use Apr. 13, 1961; in commerce Apr. 13, 1861,
San Gzbricl, Calif. No claim of exclusive right is made (o the use of

“Slide.”
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EXHIBIT 2
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181409

DO ALLTO WHOM THESE, PRESENTS; SHMII), COMES A

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

United States Patent and Trademark Office

September 21, 2005

THE ATTACHED U.S. TRADEMARK REGISTRATION 1,472,069 18
CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY WHICH IS IN FULL FORCE AND
EFFECT WITH NOTATIONS OF ALL STATUTORY ACTIONS TAKEN
THEREON AS DISCLOSED BY THE RECORDS OF THE UNITED STATES
PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE.

REGISTERED FOR A TERM OF 20 YEARS FROM Maich 10, 1987
SECTION 8. & 15 .
SAID RECORDS SHOW TITLE TOBE IN:

WHAM-0- INC.

A DEILAWARE CORPORATION

By Authority of the

Under Secretary of Cormerce for Intellectual Property
and Director of thic Unijed States Patent and Trademark Office

Certifying Officer
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Reg, No. 1,432,060

Um'ted States Patent .and;’l‘?rademarkrOffijce

TRADEMARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

KRANSCO MANUFACTURING, INC. (CALL
FORNIA CORPORATION)

160 PACIFIC AVENUE

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 941884866

FOR: WATER SLIDE TOYS, IN CLASS 78
Us CL, 22).

FIRST USE  (-0-1960
0-0-1940,

iN  COMMERCE

THE MARK IS LINED FOR THE COLOR
YELLOW, N

THE MARK CONSISTS OF THE SINGLE
COLOR YELLOW APPLIED TO THE ENTIRE
SURFACE OF THE GOODS.

SEC, XF).

SER. NO. 574,701, FILED 13-23-1985.
JAMES WALSH, EXAMINING ATTORNEY
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
WESTERN DIVISION

| SLB TQYS USA, INC., a New York

corporation
Plaintiff / Counter-Defendant,

V.

1 WHAM-0, INC., a Defaware corporation

\ + Defendant/ Cotnter-Claimant.

"%

i

/11

Filed 04/21/2008

FHED '
CLERK U'S DISTRICT COURT

06T 11 55

CENTRAL DI _hs%rb'c,”
Y i
—K

FORNIA
DEPUTY

No: 2:06-CV-01382 RSWL (CWx) |

VERDICT FORM WITH
SPECIAL,
INTERROGATORIES

The Honorable Ronald S.W. Lew

Page 7 of 18
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1 Iwe, THR JURY, FIND:

2 i
3 b
i 4
3 on the claim of Wham-0 against SLB for infringement

_ 5 of the trademark {registered as U.S. Trademark Reg. No.
[ 1,432,069 or unreglstered) for the color YELLOW on the
3 sliding surface of water glide toys, we, the jury, find

tin favor of {chack one):

_10 Wham-0: A

ste:
12 '
13 o . .
If you found for Wham-O om claim 1, do you find
14 ) .
l that SLB ipfringed the trademark willfully?
15 :
T Yes:
16
17
18
19 _ '
z |TRAVERRK
" On the claim of Wham-0 against SLB for infringement
,}'2 fof the trademark registered im the United States (U.S.
;3 I Trademark Reg. No. 2,924,744), we, the jury, find in
?4 { favor of (check one):
X Wham-0:
25 e
SLB: X_
26
27
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; If you found in favor of Wham-0 on claim 2, do you w
3 find that SLB infringed the trademark willfully?
4 Yea: e
5 Nos
7 CLATY 3--PALSE ADVERTISING
g ©On the claim of Wham-0 against SLB for unfair
9 competition through false advertising, we, the jury,
j¢ {tind in favor of {check one}:
L whan-0: X_
oy s
13
14 If you found in faver of Wham-Q@ op claim 3, do you
15 §find that SLB intended to deceive or otherwise acted in
1_5 jbad faith?
7 ves: X
I8 No:
19
20 CLAIM 4--DILUTION
2 On the claim of Wham-0 againat SLB for dilutien of
72 jthe trademark (registered or unregistered) for the
23 jcolor YELLOW on the sliding surface of water slide
14 |jtoys, we, the jury, find in favor of (check one): “
25 Wham-O:_i
26 SLB:
27
28
2
i
|
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1 If you found in favor of Wham-O on claim 4, do you
I 2 3find that SLB diluted the YELLOW trademark willfully? '
'3 Yes:x‘_ :I
4 No: i
5
: 6
; 7 DAMAGES- ~ALY, CLATMS
3 Note: Complete the following paragraph only if you
9 find in favor of the Wham-O on at least cne of the
18 fclaims.
1
12 _
. We, the jury issess damages for the Wham-O in the
T |sumof $) 3 GOM
:: f 3,600,000
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
3
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> e b
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#to the following matters.

_faith on at least one of the claims.

against SLB in order to fully compensate Wham-O and/or

ADVISORY VERDI

B TR

The Court requests advice from the jury with regard

8LB’S CLATM FOR CANCELLATIOR

Do you find that SLB has established by clear and
convincing evidence that Wham-0 abandoned its YELLOW
WATER SLIDE trademark registration (U.S. Trademark Reg.

No. 1,432,069)7?

Yes:
NG : g
Ty
HAM-0’8 REQUEST FOR B D D =

Note: Complete the following paragraphs omly if you |

find in favor of Wham-0 and find willfulness or bad
Do you find that erhanced damages should be awarded

to make SLB‘s infringement unprofitable?

YES:X
3

¥o:
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by

I If your angswer was Yes, please recommend an amount
2 of enhanced damages to the Court in a sum no more than
3 Jlthree times the damages you have already assessed. The :’
4 enharniced amount may not ke $o great as to comstitute a &
5 |penalty.
]
T We, the jury, recommend enhanced damages for Wham-0O
§ lin the sum of $ 24‘N\.
" % 2,400/000
* !0 lPLEASE SIGN AND DATE THIS FORM AND RETURN IT TO THE
"1 court |
12 '
i3
14 {Dated: \ D Q '7
15 r : )
16 | signea; Mame Pedacted b‘{ Cw-f' for Semc:?_:
i; —_y-dury Forepexrson) o parties
19
20
; 21
| 22
23
24
15
26
27
: 28
:
- 5
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© ' Case2:26:cv-01382-RSWL-CW Oocument476  Filed 12/05/2007 Sage 1 of 2
l.
'n FuED
2 CLERK. U S. DISTRICT COURT Priovity
Send E
3 - R Enter
OEC 5m Closad —
4 . ST JS-5(18-4.4\
] g\gn:gu GISTRIGT UF t.A .E_gguﬁ g;sé;zr o_;ﬁy—“
6
7:
g
9
10| UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIPORNIA
11 ¥
12
13 § SLB TCYS USA, INC., g CV 06-1382( RSWL )(CWx)
14 Plaintiff, ) _ ”
} JUDGEKRNT
15 )
V. )
6] )
WHAM-O INC., et al. )
17 )
J
18 g
19. Defendant. ;
20
71 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED
22 1. SLB’S CLAIMS FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF
23 Plaintiff SLB Toys USA, Inc.’s claims for declaratory

24 | relief are hereby dismissed with prejudice; Defendant #wham-
25| 0’8 United States Trademark Registration No. 1,432,069 is

26 jgood and valid in law.
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15,
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2. WHAM-Q'S COUNTERCLAIMS

Counter-claimant Wham-O is hereby awarded final
judgment on its counterclaims againgt SLB in the sum of
$6,000,000 {six million dollars}, plus its costs of suit as
the prevailing party in this action.

3. PERMANENT iNUUNCTION

IT IS ORDERED THAT SLB and each of its officers,

{agents, servants and employees, and all those persons in

active concert or participation with them are hereby forever
enjoined from using the color yellow on the sgliding surface
of watsr slide toys, or packaging or advertising depicting

the same, or any mark similar thereto or likely to cause

-confusion therewith, in the sale, offering for sale,

distribution or advertising of water slide toys at any

locality in the United States.

RONALD SW. LEW

RONALD 3.W. LEW
Senior U.8. District Judge

-DATED: December 4, 2007
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FuED: §
i w0 1.3 DISTRIGT-COUR]
i CLERK.US. O Priarity i
Send . ;
3 BEG 'Sm Enter %
Closed ——
! compemerooLT | RS ——
LA - ScanOnly
5
6
7
8
" UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
. CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
11
12 | SLE TOYS UsA, INC., ; cv 06-1382(REULI(C
13 Plaintiff, ) o
} ORDER GRANTING =
14 ; PERMANENT INJUNCTION
V.
15 _ _ )
Y WHAM-O INC., et al. )
16 )
)
17 )
y )
18 Defendant. ;
19
20 Currently before this Court is wham-O, Inc.’s Motion

21 | for Permanent Injunction. Having considered all papers and
22 jarguments, THE COURT NOW FINDS AND RULES AS FOLLOWS:

23 '
24'_ Wham-0, Inc. has shown that it will suffer irreparable
25 § injury, there is inadequate remedy at law, the balance of

26 | hardghip tilts in its favor, and the public interest would

1




Case 2:08-cv-01281-RSWL-CW  Document 34-2  Filed 04/21/2008 Page 17 of 18

.

19
11
12 3
13

14§ infringer] must ‘be required to keep a safe distance away

S 15

16

17

18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

286
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not be disserved by a permanent injunction.

Accordingly, the Court GRANTS the Motion for Permanent
Injunction ag detailed below.

IT I3 ORDERED THAT SLB and each of its officers,
agents, servants and employees, and all those persons in
active cencert or participation with them are héreby forever
enjoined from using the color yellow on the sliding surface

of water slide toys, or packaging or advertising depicting

4 the same, or any mark similar thereto or likely to cause

confugion therewith, in the sale, offering for sale,
distribution or advertising of water slide toys at any
locality in the United States. See Plough, Inc. wv. Kreis
Labhoratories, 314 F.2d 635, 639 {(9th Cir. 1963) (“[The

from the margin line.’”).

However, the Court denies Wham-0‘s request to order
destiruction of articles because such an order is
unnecessarily hargh and burdensome for the Court to overSEe,.

especially in light of the fact that the jury did not find

any specific product design to be infringing. Further, the

Court denies SLB’s request for a sell-off period as
inappropriate in this case.

11/

R4

11/

/]
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1 Moreover, the Court denies Wham-0's request to order
2 | compliance reporting as inappropriate and unnecessary in

34 this case.

5% IT I3 SO ORDERED.

6 RONALD S.#. LEW

7 RONALD 9.W. LEW
' Senior U.S. District Judge

DATED: December 3, 2007

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23 |
24
25 |

26
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PR

*5810283°

By,
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

WHAM-0O, INC,, No. RG07-329828
Plaintiff, ORDER GRANTING PRELIMINARY
INJUNCTION
vs.
EILEEN SEFCHICK; BRIAN

DUBINSKY; SLB TOYS USA, INC ;
MANLEY TOYQUEST, LLC, and DOES
1 through 100, inclusive,

Defendants.

‘The Motion of Plaintiff Wham-0, Inc. (“Plaintiff ’) for Preliminary {njunction
came on regularly for hearing on June 29, 2007, in Department 31 of this Court, Judge
Frank Roesch presiding. Plaintiff appeared by Annette L. Hurst, Stephen C. Tedesco and
Rod M. Fliegel. Defendant SLB Toys USA, Inc. (“SLB™), on its own behalf and on
behalf of the enatity sued (perhaps erroneously) as Manley Toyquest, LLC (*Manley™),
appeared by Joshua R. Furman. Defendant Eileen Sefchick (“Sefchick™) appeared by

leffrey Abrams. Defendant Brian Dubinsky (“Dubinsky”) appeared by Alex Weingarten.
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The Court has considered all of the papers filed on behalf of the parties, and the
arguments of counsel at the hearing, and ‘good cause appearing, HEREBY GRANTS the
‘motion for preliminary injunction.

In deciding whether to issue a preliminary injunction, a court must weigh two
interrelated factors: (1) the likelihood that the moving party will ultimately prevail on the
metits; and (2) the relative interim harm fo the parties from issuance or non-issuance of
the injunction. The Court's determination is guided by a mix of the potential merit and
interim harm factors. (But v. State of California (1992) 4 Cal.4th 668, 677-78.) The
scope of available preliminary relief is necessarily limited by the scope of the relief likely
to.be obtained at trial on the merits. (1d) A trial court may not grant a préliminary
injunction, regardless of the balance of interim harm, unless there is some possibility that
the plaintiff would ultimately prevail onthe merits of the claim. (/4.

Based on a consideration of the above factors and all the material before it ori the
present Order to Show Canse, the Court finds that PIaint;ff has made a sufficient showing
fot extending the injunctive rel.iéf ‘set forth in the Temporary Restraining Order issued by
the Court on June 8, 2007, as modified by the Court in this Order, through the time of trial
in this action.

Accordingly, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendants SLB, Manley, Sefchick
and Dubinsky, and all persons acting in coneert or participating with them, are

(1) ordered to return immediately to Plaintiff all materials, writings (as defined in

California Evidence Code section 250), documents, computer files and/or databases
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(whether stored on CD-Rom er in other computer-based or digital form) containing
information of Plaintiff covered by the Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement
signed by Sefchick on or about bctober 14, 2004, or protected as “trade secret”
information under California law, including any and all originals, copies, transcriptions,
extracts, and any materials of any form that consist of, contain, incorporate, or otherwise
refer to or disclosé such information;
(2) enjoined and/or restrained during the pendency of this action from engaging in,

committing, or performing, directly or indirectly, any and all of the following acts:

(a) misappropriating, disclosing to any third parties or making use of any
“Proprietary Information” of Plaintiff, defined as information that is either covered by the
Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement signed by Sefchick on or about
October 14, 2004, or protected as “trade secret” informationunder Califomia I-a_w, except
for information acquired through publicly available sources wholly independent of
Sefchick;

(b) engaging in solicitation activities, sales calls or other contacts using
Proprietary Information for the purpose of marketing, soliciting or selling competing
products;

(¢} retaining possession of any Proprietary Information;

(d} interfering with the advantageous business relationships between

Plaintiff and its customers in any manner through use of Propriétary Information; or
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(e) concealing, transferring, deleting, altering, editing or modifying any
computer files, databases, documents or other information obtained from Plaintiff, or
destroying any information relevant to this lawsuit.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff shall furnish a bond in connection with
this preliminary injunction pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 529 in the sum of
$10,000.00 on or before five (5) days after the date of the Clerk’s cettificate-of mailing of
this Order (plus five additional days for 'sér.vi-ce by mail pursuant to Code of Civil

Procedure § 1013).

| , / Z
Dated ?/(j/@:z / 4 : s _ E/<
L J Frank Roesch
Judge of the Superior Court
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CLERK’S DECLARATION OF MAILING

1 certify that I arn not a party to this cause and that on the date stated below I caused a true
capy of the foregoing ORDER GRANTING PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION to be mailed
first class, postage pre paid, in a sealed envelope to the persons hereto, ‘addressed as
follows:

Stephen C. Tedesco, Esq.

Rod M. Fliegel, Esq.

LITTLER MENDELSON, APC
650 California Street; 20 Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108-2693

Annette L. Hurst, Esq.
HELLER EHRMAN

333 Bush Streat

San Francisco, CA 94104

Joshiua R Furmati, Esg.
2228 Bamy Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90064

Jetfrey I Abrams, Esq.

WOLF, RIFKIN, SHAPIRO & SCHULMAN, LLP
11400 West Olympic Blvd., Ninth Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90064-1557

Alex M. Weingarten, Esq.
LAGER WEINGARTEN, LLP
1800 Century Park East, Suite 600
Los Angeles, CA 90067

[ dectare under penalty of perjury that the same is true and correct.
Executed on July 20, 2007,

NIV,

Vicka Daybeli, Deéﬂty Clerk
Department 31
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EXHIBIT 6
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GENERAL ASSIGNMENT

THIS XSS;{G‘\PVIE\IT made this 1Sth day of November, 2007, by SLB fovs
USA, INC., a New Yiark corporation. having its principal place of business at 22%% Barry
Avenue, Los Apgeies, California (heretnafter referred to as “*Assignor™), to BYRON Z.
MOLDO (hereinafier referred to as “Assignee”).

WITNESSETH: That whereas Assignor is indebted to various pérsons and is
desirous of providing for the payment of same, so far asis in its power, by an assignment
of-all of i's property {or that purpose:

NOW, THEREFORE, Assigrior, for valuable consideration, receipt of which is
hereby ackniowledged, does hereby make the fellowing Genéral Assignment for the
benefit of Assignor’s creditors to Byron Z. Moldo, ‘as Assignee, under the following
terms anc conditions:

1. Assignor-does hereby grant, basgain, sell, assign, convey, and transfer to.

AbSi gm.e his sucu.Ssers and assigns, in trust l'or thc thimate beneﬁt of Assiunor 5
and wher::sqaw ermuated.(coilecnve!), the * Asm.ts ’) whe_thcr in possesws_mn, rcversmn,
remainder, of expectancy, both rea} and personal, and any interest or equity therein;
included thercin are alf merchandise, furiture, fixtures, machinery, cquipment, raw
materials, mefchandise or work in process, book.accounts, books, accotints receivable,
cash on'hand, all causés-of action{personal or gtherwise), insurance policies, patents,
tradémarks, trade names, copyrights, (rade scerets, intellectual property, any and all right,
title, license, andfor interest of Assignor in advertising, i‘nc'luding White and Yellow Page
-thephon:: listings, any and all right, title, license or other interest it Assignor’s tc]ephonc
fax, of uther numbers tisted in any advertisement by wh]ch business is solicited, any and
all rights and goodwill in the name “SLI Tovs USA, INC.” , Assignor’s complete
computer systen, and all other property of every kind and nature owned by Assignor, and

without [imiting the generality of‘the foregoing, including all of the assets pertaining to
that certain business known as SLEB T oys USA, INC,, Jocated ar 2229 Barry Avenue, Los
Angeles, Calitomis ¥0964. Assignor shall use reasonab!e efforts to have the insurance
policies endorsed over to the Assignee.

2 This Assignment constitites a grant deed of all real property owned by the
Assignor, if any, whether ot not said real property is specifically described herein.

3 Leases and leasenold interests in real estate are included in this
assignmet.
3 Assignor agrees to deliver to Assignee all books of account and records, to

execute and deliver all additional necessary documents immediately upon request by
Assignec. and to endorse all indicia of ownership where required by Assignes, in order o
complete the traasfer of all assets to Assignee as intended by this Assignment, including,
but not limised 1o, aif of Assignor’s real and personal property and/or Assignor's interest
therein, including mongages, deeds of trust, motor vehicles, patent rizhts, trademarks,

60445.1  §34.00022 [
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trade names, copyrights, trade secrets and intellectual property, Assignee is hereby
authorized to sxecuté all endorsements and demands requiring Assignor’s signature, in
the nanie of Assignor. Assignor further authorizes Assignee to-apply for any deposits,
refunds (including specifi cali} among all others, claims:for refund of taxes paid) or
claims wherever necessary in the name of Assignor. Assignee is authorized to direct all
Assignor’s United States mail to be delivered to Assignee, and Assignes is expressly
authorized and directed to open said mail as agent of Assignor, and to do-any thing or act
which the Assignee in his sole and arbitrary discretion deems necessary or advisable to
¢ffectuate the purpose-of this Assignment.

3, Assigoor and Assignee agree to the following:

a This instrument transtfers légal title and possession to Assignee of
all of the above-described assets and Assignee, in his own discretion, may direct whether
1o continue all, or part, of the business operations; orto liquidate said assets.

b. Assignee, at his discretion, may sell and dispose of said assets
upon such terms and conditions as he may see fit, at public or private sale. Assignee
shall not be personally liable in any manner, and Assignee’s obligations shall beina
representative capacity only in his capacity as Assignee for the benefit of creditors.
Assigrice shall administer this ¢state to the best of his ability, but it is.expressly
understood that he, his agents and/or employees shall be liable only for the reasonable
care angd dxhbnncc tn said administration, and he shall not be liable for any act or thing, or
any.omission to act, done by him, his agents or employees in good faith in connection
therewith,

¢ From the proceads of the sale, collections, operations or gther
source, Assignee shall pay himself and retdin as Assignee all of his ‘charges and ¢xpenses,
;ooethu with his ewn remuncration and fes, which remuneration and fee shall not exceed
‘the sam of fiftéen thousand dollars %1 5,000.00), plus ten percent {10%) of the amount of
the proceeds received and handled by the Assignee from sales, collections, operations or
other séurces. Assignee may also pay'from such proceeds reasonabl¢ remuneration to his
agents, zttorneys and acconntants, and may pay a reasonable fee to Assignor’s attorney.
All of the aforementioned amounts are 10 be determined at Assignee’s sole direction,
determination-and judgment.

d. Assignee may compromise claims, assume or reject Assignor’s
executory contracts, and discharge at s option any liens on said a¢séts and indebtedness
which under law are entitled to priority of pavment. Assignee shall have the power to
borrow money, hypothecate and pledge the assets, and to do all matters and things that
said Assignor could have done prior to this Assignment. Any act.of thing done by the
Assignez hereunder shall bind the assignment estate and the Assignee only in his capacity
as Assignee for the benefit of creditors. Assignee shall have the right to sue and defend
suits as he successor of the Assignor, and the Assignee is hereby given the right and
power tu institute and prosecute legal proceedings in the name of the Assigpor, the same
a5 if the Assignor itself had instituted and prosecuted such proceedings or actions.

60445.1 834 00022 3
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e, Assignor agrees (to the extent assignable by law) 10 make any ard
ail claims for refund of taxes whick may be due {rom the Internal Revenue Service or
other taxing agencies for tax refunds, or otherwise, and to forthwith upon receipt of such
refunds pay them over to the Assignee, and hereby empowers Assignee to make ali
claims for refunds which may be made by Assignor.

f Alter paying all costs and-expenses of administration and afl. fees
and all atlowed priority claims, Assignee shall distribute.to all unsecured creditors, pro
rata, any remaining net proceeds of this assignment estate. Said payments are to be made
until alt assets are-exhausted, or these creditors are paid or seitled, in full. Thereafier, the
surplus of moneys and property. it any, shall be transferred or conveyed to the Assignor.
If any undistributed dividends to creditors or any reserve funds shall rémain unclaimed
for a period of ninety (90} days after issuance of a final dividend check by the Assignee,
then the same shall become the property of this Assignee and used to supplement his fees
for services rendered in adwministering this Assignment.

g It is agreed and vnderstood-that this transaction is 2 common law:
assignment for the benefit of Assignor’s creditors, and is not a statutory assignment. This
Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of section 493.010, ¢f seg, of the
California Cede of Civil Procedure.

LB Tops USAINC,

a New York corporation, Assiznor

By: .
Brian Dubinsky, President

ACCEPTED THIS 19® DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2007

BYRON Z. MOLDO, ASSIGNEE

60445, 834,00022 3
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2. Assignor agrees (to the extent assignable by law) to make any and
all claims for refund of taxes which may be due from the Internal Revenue Service or
ther taking agencies for tax refimds, or otherwise, and to forthwith upon reczipt of such
refunds pay them over to the Assignee, and hiereby empowers Assignee to make all
claims for refinds which-may be madeby Assignor.

£ After paying all costs and expenses of administration and all fees

and all ellowed prionty claims, Assignee shell distribute o all insecured creditors, pro
rata, any remaining net proceeds of this assignment estate. Said payments are to be made
until all assets are exhansted, or these creditors-are paid or settled, in full. Thercafier, the
surplus of moneys and property, if any, shall be transferred or convéyed to the Assignor.
If any undistributed dividends to creditors or any reserve finds shall remain unclaimed
for a peiiod of ninety (90) days after issuance of a final dividend checle by the:Assignee,

then the satne shall become the property of this Assignes and used to supplement his fees
for services rendered in administering this Assignment,

g Itisagreed and understood that this transaction is-a common law
assignment for the benefit of Assigner’s credxtors, and is not'a statutory assignment. This
Agreerrent shall be governed by the provisions of section 493.010, efseg. of the  ~
California Code of Civil Procedure.

SLB Toys'USA, INC,,
a New York corporation, Assignor

By:

Brian Dubinsky, President

'I'HrS DAY'-OF NOVEMEER, 2007:

@?Tzi:ﬁ Z wfowo ASSIGNEE

60445.1  834.00022

AW453



Case 2:08-cv-01281-RSWL-CW  Document 34-3  Filed 04/21/2008 Page 12 of 17

. Ml7ezecuut MON 22:90 PER 719 577 361 GROADNOOR HOTEL @oosra14d

e.  Assignoragrees (1o the extent assignable by law) to make any ard
all ¢laims for refund of taxes which tay be due from the Internal Revenue Seyvice or
other taxing agencies for tax refunds, or otherwise, and to forthwith apon receipt of such
refinds pay thern over to the Assignee, and hereby empowers Assignes 1o make ail
claims for refimds which may be made by Assignor.

f. After paying all costs and expenses of administration arid all fees
and all allowed pnomy claims, Assignee shell distribute to all nnsecured cveditors, pro
rata, any remaining net procecds of this assigrment estate. Said payments sre. 10 be made
until afl asgets are exhausted, or these creditors are paid or settled, in full. Thereafier, the
surplus of moneys and-property, if any, shall be transferred or conveyed to the Assignor.
If any undistributed dividends to creditors or amy reserve funds shall femain uniclaimed
for a period of ninety (909 days after issuancs of & final dividend check by the Assiguee,
then the same shall become the property of this Assignee and used to supplement his foes
for services rendered in administering this Assignment.

-2 I¢ is agreed and understood that this transaction is 2 commion law
assignment for the benefit of Assignor's creditors, and is not a statitory assignment, This
Agreemant shall be governed by the provisions of section 493.010, ¢f seq., of the
California Code of Civil Procedure,

SLB Toys USA, INC,, ,
a New Yark' caporstion, Assignor

AQCEPTED THIS 19® DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2007

BYRON Z, MOLDO, ASSIGNEE

60445.1 834.00022
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CONSENT T ASSIGNMENT BY STOCKHOLDERS AND
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

We, the undersigned, being owners and holders of 160% of the shares of stock,
bring morte than 50% of the subscribed and fssued stock, and the Board of Directors of
SL3 Toys LSA Inc a New York corporation, do hereby give our consent 16 the “vithin
assignment und transfer afthe property of said comparition.

NAME SHARES HELD
' /
Lisa Liu , 100% ‘ /
SLR Toys _
B},‘ L . :.'. .‘!'j - '1‘, i . . \r
Lisa Lif, phecta? = \

Page 13 of 17
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CONSENT OF DIRECTORS TO HOLD MEETING

Los Adgeles, California
7 Novembar 12fh, 2007
I, Lisa Ly, Being the sole directer of SLB Toys USA, lnc. @ corperation, organized under the laws ¢f the

State of New York, aseembled this day at the office of the Corporalion via teieph%e’conferenc?éi Los Angeles

Caliterrin, do hereby consaint ihat a meeling of safd directars be held at this tim& and place fof the trensaction of

such business 3s may come before the meeting, and waive any natice of sai

irector

L XA
¥ ilisad

AW456
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING

Les Angeles, California, Movenmber 1st, 2007

At 2 meeting of the directors of L8 Tays USA tnc., a New York Corparation, held at the office of the

Corporation. via telephone.canference at ity place of business, 2228 Barry. Avenue, Loy Angalas Caiifcmia

80064, 21§ .:six) o'ciock . im, tha following directars wers present;

Lisa Liy

Absant:

The President annotinced that the purpose of the mesting Was o consider the
financial condition of the company and the advisability of making a general assignment for
the benefit of creditors.

On mation by Lisa Liu, seconded by Lisa Liu
the foffowing rasolution was adopted, to-wit:

BEFRESOLVED:

That Brinn Dubiinsky, President of this Corporation be, and is, hereby authorized
and diracted by the directors of this Corporation, in meéeting assembled, to make an
assigninent of all-assets of the Corparation to Byron Z Molde, for the pro rata benefit of all
creditors of this corporation, and that 8rfan Dubinsky be, and he is herehy authorized.and
diracted o executs sald assignment containing such provisions as may be agreed upon
betwoen him and Byron Z. Moldo, {Assignee), and he is also authorized and directed to
axecute and defiver to Byron Z. Molda, as Assignes, such athér deeds, assignments, and
agreements as may be necessary to carry this resolution into effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED:

That said Assifinea for the benefit of creditors be, and is hereby, authorized to
execute ind file and prosecute oh behalf of this corporation all ¢laims for refund or
abatement of alf excess taxes horetofore or hereafter assessed against or coffected from this
corporatian and any one officer of this comoration be, and it is, Herehy authorized and
directed 0 maka, executo and deliver in favor of such person as may be designated by the
assignee for the benefit of creditors, a powar of attorney on the regular printed form thereof
used by the United States Treasury Department so as to auifiorize said artomey-in-fact to
process any tax claims forit on behalf of this Corporation.

Thare being no further business ftc come before the directors, the meeting is
adjourned subject to the call of the President or Vice-President.

}, Lisd Liy_Director of SL3 Toys USA Inc, a New York Carporation, do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and carrect copy of the minutes of the meeting of directors held
in __tos Angelss, Calitornia , at the place and hour stated and that the resolution

60443.1 83400022
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contained in said minutes was adopted by the directors at said meetinyg and the same has
nat been modified or rescintied,

Dated November 1, 2067

Lisa Liy, Director

CORPORATE
SEAL

604451 834.00022
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f:n _l:o_s Angalos, California, at the place /and hour stated and that the resolution contained
i zaid minutes was ado;:teyl;by-the dirgetors dt sald maeeting and tha same has not been
maaified or rescinded. i ; '

Dated November/f, 24

f‘- 3
Liga tay, Dirrl\é__éﬁ';i' 8

CORPORATE
SEAL

' AY459
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EXHIBIT B

32032-0400/. EGAL IS5 T165.1
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10A
11A
12A

126
127

128
128
9

- Description

ToyQuest

2228 Barry Ave.
Los Angeles, CA

Assets Inventory

Electronics and Computers

Apple G5 Cesktop (upgraded) graphic
Apple IMAC Dasktop {upgraded) graphic

Apple Servar network with (7) raids and accessory

Apple ngtwatking equipment

Dall. server pawer edge 2600

Rauters, HOB (24F) patch panel, sonic wall

Belkin Pawer Conditioners
QNKYO sound systermn, OVD, cdrw, speakers

Scanners, Spscn, Fujitsa
Deli'server pawer edge 1400
Copier

Printers, photo, inkjat

Printars, laser, (Canen, Epson)

‘Canan Fax

HP:Plolter Slectra Static 500PS

Niken Camera

External Hard Drive Maxtor

Palysom Speaker phone

Bony 50" TV

Panasonic Flat TV

Panasuric Phone System high ord digitsl

Dell Besitcp Qphplex, Bireansion, Precision
klat monitars graphics, 15,17,19,22.24,32 inch

Document 34-4  Filed 04/21/2008 Page 2 of 18
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ToyQuest
2228 Barry Ave.
Los Angeles, CA
Assets Inventory
Office Furnitiure

2 Office desks and relurn. Book sheives, file cabinet 8
3  Ping Pong Table

4  Jasket Bail Fodp 1
5 OHice High back chairs 28
8 Couches {canvas) and fove seat 3
¥ Coffes table 2
& Conterence Tablerand 10 chairs and side table- 1
8  Beanbag enairs 4

Kitchen equipmant: rafrigerator, coffzeimaker,
10 microwave, fable and chairs

11 Couches corner unit and-coffee iable:

AW4s2
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Bills to Purchase

Phones: Account #011790110281693004 (Verizon) _
Cellular - Account #493020121 (T-Moble) and #828388772 (ATAT)
Actaunt #9957 18753 (AT&T)

COVAD dsl — Account #580373

UPS — Azcount #E13A03

Pacific Alarm System account— Customer #18793

Biue Cross account— Group #285584

Kansas Communications phone acel~ Account #001 0803 508807604

Excel phone— Account #12000006608

DWR - Account #4480769402229000000101 & 44807594022290000003901

Time Warner cable- Account #8448200180781573

Sirius musie — Account #1200567211

Tive — Account #0011032676

Gas Cornpany ~ Aceount #03738965041

American Express — Primary Account #378207594142007

‘Bentorville phone —Account #60103-147286

discover.com account

Case No. CV'06-1382 RSWL (CWx} - SLB v. Wham-0, Inc. — only the appeliate
rights

So. Cal. Disposal trash — Account #2208

AW463
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ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This #sset Purchase Agreement {this “Agreemens”), dated as of November 19, 2007 (the
“Effective Date™), t5 made by and between BYRON Z. MOLDO (“Seller™), in his capaeity as
assignee for the henefit of creditors of SLB Toys, USA, Inc., and AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS
LLC. aCalifcrnia limited lability company (“Buyer™).

RECITALS

A, By resolution of the board of directors (the “Beerid™) of SLB Toys USA, Ine.
{(“Asvignor"), as memorialized in duly executed minutes, and with consent by written action of
the majority of Assignor's shareholders entitled to vote, Assignor transferred ownership of all of
its right, title and interest in and to its tangible and intangible assets (the “dssets”) to Seller, and
in so doing also designated Seller to act, pursuant to California law, as the assignee for the
benetit of creditors of Assignor. A true and correct copy of the General Assignnent Agreement,
dated as of November 19, 2007, between’ Assignior and Seller, as assignee, memorializing such
assigiment is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “General Assignmens”). Prior to the General
Assignment, Assignor was engaged in the business of designing toy and related products (the
“Business"),

B. Seller desires to sell to Buyer, and Buyer desires to purchase from Seller, certain
of the Assets, on the terms and conditiens set forth in this Agreement. After the occurence of
the Closing sontemplated under this Agreement, Seller. will undertake the winding down of
Aassignor, which shall include, but not be fimited fo, the distribution of net funds, after pagment
of fees and costs associated with the liquidation and winding down, to Assignor’s creditors.

AGREEMENT

NOW, H—iEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and the mutual covenants
hereinafter set forth, Buyer and Seller hereby agree as follows:

1. PURCHASE AND SALE OF CERTAIN ASSETS.

1.1 Agreement to Self and Purchase Assets. Subject to the terms and conditions of
this Agreément, and in reliance on the representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this
Agreement, Seller agrees to and will sell, assign, ttansfer and convey to Buyer at the Closing (as
defined in Section 2.2 below). and Buyer agrees to and will purchase and acquire from Seller at
the Closing, all of Seller’s right, titte and interest in and to all of the Assets described in Section
1.2 below. .

1.2 Acguired Assets Defined. Seller shall, at the Closing, sell, assign_. transier,
convey and deliver to Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase from the Seller, at the Closing, as-is,
where-is, all right, title and interest in and to the following Assets (collectively, the “Acquired
Assets”™):

AW439
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(i) all tangible personal property, including, without limiration, all equipment
and furniture set forth on Exhibit B annexed hereto;

(iiy  the rights of Assignor and Seller in and 1o the pending appeal in that
ceriain litigation entitled SLB v. Wham-O, Case No. CV 06-1382 RSWL
(CWx); and

(i)  those written coniracts, agreements, inveices, of indebtedness, or other
contractual arrapgements which are set forth on Exhibit B annexed hereto
(the “Adssumed Contraces™).

transferred to Juyer hereunder, Seller shall retain ail of its right, title and interest in, to and under
all remaining Asseis (collectively, the “Execluded Assers™), which shall include:

() all cash as of the Closing;

(i)  all wntten and oral contracts, agreements, leases, subleases, licenses,
purchase orders, invoices, instrumesnts of indebledness, or -other
contractual airapgements that are not Assumed Contracts (“Excluded
Confracts™): and

(i} all rights of the Seller under this Agreement.

13 Asset Transfer; Passage of Title; Delivery.

(a8 Title Passage. At the Closing, title to all of the Acquired Assets shall pass
10 Buyer, and Seller shall execute assignments, conveyances, bills of sale, or such other
instruments of conveyance as Buyer may reasonably request to effect or evidence the transfers
contemplated hereby.

2,  PURCHASE PRICE; PAYMENTS.

2.1 Purchase Price, At the Closing and effective as of the Closing, and in
consideration of the sale, transfer, conveyance and assignment of all the Acquired Assets to
Buyer, Buyer shall (i} pay by cashier's check the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars {$55,000);
and (i)Y dssume the Habilities, debts and obligations associated with the Assumed Contracts
("Parchase Price™).

22 Closing. The consummation of the purchase ard sale of the Acquired Assets
contemplated hereby (the “Closing”) shall take place by not later than November 19, 2007,
provided that the parties may muteally agree to extend the date of the Closing. Upon
termination, aeither party will have any further rights or ebligations hereunder, except that
Sections 3 and 11 shall survive such termination.
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3.  OBLIGATIONS NOT ASSUMED.

31 Liabilities and Obligations Not Assumed. Other than those liabilities, debts or
obligations cof Seller or Assigior associated with the Assumed Contracts which serves and
constitutes a material component of the Purchase Price given for the Acquired Assets, Buyer
shall not assume or become obligated in-any way to pay any Habilities, debts or obligations of
Seller or of Assngnor whatsoever, including, but not limited to, any liabilitics or obligations. now
or hereafler arising from Assignor’s business activities that took place prior to the Closing or any
liabilities aricing out of or connected to the Heuiidation and winding down of Assignor's business.

3.2 Ne Obligations to Third Parties. The execution and delivery of this Agreement
shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon any person or entity other than the parties hereto,
or make any person of entity a third party beneficiary of this Agreement, or to obligate either
party to any person or entity other than the parties to this. Agreement. There shall be no successor
liability of any kind arising from the ransaction contemplated herein.

4. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER.

Buyer hereby represents and warrants to Seller as follows:

4.1 Dae Organization. Buyer is a limited liability company duly organized, validly
existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of California. Buyer has all necessary
power and authority to-enter into this Agreement and all other documents that Buyer is required
to execute and deliver heréunder, and holds or will timely hold 4l permits, licenses, orders and
approvals of all federal, state and local governmental or regulatory bodies necessary and required
therefore,

4.2 Power and Authority; No Defzult. Buyer has all requisite power and authority
to enter into and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder, The signing,
delivery and performance by Buyer of this Agreement, and the consummation of all the
transactions contemplated hereby, have been duly and validly authorized by Buyer. This
Agreement, when signed and delivered by Buyer, will be duly and validly exceuted and delivered
and will be ‘he valid and binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer in accordance
with its terms, subject 1o the laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and relief of debtors, and
rules and jzws governing specific performance, injunctions, relief and other equitable remedies.

4.3 Autherization for this Agreement. No authorization, approval, consent of, or
filing with any governmental body, department, bureau, agency. public board, authority or other
third party is required for the consummation by Buyer of the transactions contemplated by this
Agresment.

4.4 Litigation. As of Closing, there is no iitigation, suit, action, arbitzation, inquiry,
investigation ur proceeding pending or, to the knowledge of Buyer, threatened, before any court,
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agency or other governmental body against Buyer {or any corporation of entity affiliated with
Buyer) which seeks to enjoin or prohibit or otherwise prevent the fransactions contemplated
herehy.

5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER.

Sellar represents and warrants 10 Buyer-as-follows:

5.1 Power and Authority; No Default Upon Transfer. As assignee for the benefit
of creditors of Assignor, Seller has all requisite power and authority to enter into and deliver this
Agreement ard to perform its obligations hereunder and under the General Assignmest. The
signing, delivery and performance by Seller of this Agreement, and the consummation of al} the
transactions contemplated hereby, have been duly and validly authorized by Sgller. To the best
of Seller’s knowledge, the General Assignment was duly autherized by Assignor’s Board, with
the consent of the majority of Assignor's shareholders entitled to vote with respect thereto, and is
a valid agreeraent binding on Assignor and Seler. This Agreement, when signed and delivered
by Seller, will be duly and validly execited and delivered and will be the valid and binding
obligation of Seller, enforceable against Seller, as -Assignee, in accordance with its leniis as
govermned by applicable:law. regulations and rules. .

52 Title. The sale of the Acquired Assets is on un as-is, where-is. basis, with no
Tepresentations. or watranties on the part ofSeller,

53 Assignee. Allrights of Seller with regard to the ownership and possession of the
Assets are rights held as Assignee pursuant to the General Assignment made by Assignor.
Pursuant to the General Assignment, Assignor has transferred all of Assignor’s right, title and
interest in and to.the Assets to Seller. .

6. COVENANTS OF SELLER,

.Seller covenants and agrees with Buyer as follows:

6.1 Taxes and agy Other Charges Related to the Sale. Seller agrees o pay all
salcs, transfer, use or other taxes, duties, claims or charges, if any, imposed on and/or related to
the sale of the Acquired Assets to Buyer under this Agreement by any tax authority or other
governmental agency.

5.2 Further Assurances. From and afier the Closing, Seller shall cooperate with
Buyer and promptly sign and deliver to Buyer any and such additional documents, instruments,
endorsements and related information and take actions s Buyer may reasonably request for the
purpose of efecting the transter of Seller’s and/or Assignor’s title to the Acyuired Assets to
Buyer, and/nr carrying out the provisions of this Agreement. Buyer shall compensate Seller for
any reasonabie, documented disbursemients in connection with this Section 6.2 and time incurred
in conneclion with providing assistance under this Section 6.2 in connection with any
enforcement or other infringement action regarding the Acquired Asssts; provided that Seller
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shall have fumished Buyer an advance, written estimate of the fees and costs for such assistance
and Buyer saall have agreed in writing to pay such fees and costs.

6.3 Survival:of Covenants. Each of the covenants set forthin this Section 6 and in
Scetion 1! shall survive the: Cxosmu

7. CONDITIONS TO CLOSING.

7.1 Conditions to Buver’s Obligatiens. The obligations of Buyer hereunder shall be
subject to the satisfaction and fulfillment of each of the following conditions, except as Buver
may expressky waive any of the same in writing:

(@)  Accuracy of Representations and Waranties on Closing.  The
representations and warranties made herein by Seller shall beé true and correct in all material
respécts, and not misleading in any material respect, on and as of the date given, and on and as of
the Closing with the same force and effect as though such representaticns and warranties were
made on and as of the Closing.

{®)  Compliance. As of the Closing, S¢ller shall have complied in ali material
respeets with, and shell have fully performed, in all material respects, all conditions, covenants
and obligaticns of this Agreement imposed on Seller and required to be perforited or complied
with hy Selter at, or prior 1o, the Closing.

(c)  Delivery of Closing Doctiments. Seller shail have deliveréd, and Buyer
shall have received, all of the documents deemed by the Buyer 1o be necessary 1o consummate
the transacticn contemplated hereby, which shall include, without {imitation; a bill of sale.

7.2 Conditions to Selier’s Obligations. The obligations of Seller héreunder shall be
subject to the satisfaction’ and Fulfillment of each of the following conditions, except as Seller
may expressly waive the same in writing:

(a)
representations and warranties made herein by Buyer shall be true and comect in ai} material
:respects, and not misleading in any material respect, on and as of the date given, and on and as of
the Closing with the same forcé and efféct as though such representations and warranties were
made on and as of the Closing,

(b)  Compliance. Buyer shall have complied in all material respects with, and
shall have fully performed, the terms, conditions, covenants and obligations of this Agreement
imposed thereon to be performed or complied with by Buver at, or prior to, the Closing.

(¢)  Pavment. Buyer shall have transmitted by wire transfer and Seller shalt
have received payment of the Purchase Price.
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8. CLOSING OBLIGATIONS.

8.1 Buver’s Closing Obligations. At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller
payment of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($53,000) by cashier’s check or as otherwise instructed
by Seller, and a signature to this Agreement.

3.2 Seller's Closiag Obligations. At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer a
signature to this Agreement, and executed bill of sale, assignment agreemients and other
agreements and documients which Buyer deems necessary to consummate the transaction
contemplated hereunder,

9. SURVIVAL OF WARRANTIES.

All representations and wamanties made by Seller or Buyer herein, or in any certificate,
schedule or exhibit delivered pursuant hereto, shall survive for a period of one {1) year after the
Closing.

10, TERMINATION.

10,1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated and the transactions
contemplated herein may be abandoned, by written notice given to the other party hereto, at any
time prior io the Closing:

{a) by muiual written consent of Seller and Buyer;

(b)" by Buyer if Seller alters, amends or breaches any of the covenants, is in
breach of any material covenant, representation, or warranty, or if it appears that a condition is
impossible {cther than through the failure of Buyer to comply with its obligations under this
Agreement} to satisfy and Buyer has not waived such condition in writing on or before the
Closing Date; '

€y by Seller if Buyer alters, amends or breaches any of the covenants, is in

breach of any material covenant, representation or warranty or if it appears that a condition is

impossible (cther than through the fajlure of Seller to comply with their obligations under this

Agreement) 10 satisfy and Seller has not waived such condition in writing on or before the
Closing Date:

{(d)  if the Closing shall not have oecurred on or before November 19, 2007,
unless the Closing is extended by mutual agreement of the parties.

1. MISCELLANEOUS.

11.1  Expenses. Each of the parties hereto shall bear its own expenses (including
without limitation attorneys® fees) in connection with the negosiation and consummation of the
transaction contemplated hereby,
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2 Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall
be in writing and shall be persorally or sent by certified or registered United States mail, postage
prepaid, or sent by nationally recognized overnight exprass courier and addressed as foflows:

(a)  IftoSeiler

Byron Z. Moldo

Moldo Davidson Fraioli Seror Sestanovich LLP
2029 Century Park East, 21" Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90067

Tel.: 310-531-3100

Fax: 310-351-0238.

Email: bmoldo@mdfsiaw.com

{b}  If'to Buver:

AW Computer Holdings LLC
2229 Barry Ave.

Los Angeles, CA 90064

Tel: 310-594-7292

Fax: 310-594-7292
Attention: Sui Sui Mak

With a copy to:

Ron Bender, Esy,

Levene; Neale, Bendér, R:mkm & Ball L.LP.
10250 Constellation Blvd., Suite 1700

Los Angeles, CA 90067

Tel: 310-229-1234

Fax: 310-229-1744

Email: rbi@inbth.com

113 Entire Agreement. This Asset Purchase Airreement, the Exhibits hereto (which
are incorporated herein by reference) and any agreements to be executed and delivered in
connection herewith, together constitute thie entire agréement and understanding between the
parties and there are no agreements or commitments with respect to the transactions
coniemplated herein except as set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior
oller, agreement or understanding betwcen ' the parties with respect to the transactions
contemplatad hereby.

114 Amendment; Waiver. Any term or provision of this Agreement may be
amended on.y by a writing staned by Seller and Buyer. "[he observance of any term or provision
of this Agrrement may be waived (cither generally or in a particular instance and either
retroactively or prospectively) only by a writing signed by the party to be bound by such waiver,
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No waiver by a party of any breach of this Agreement will be deemed o constitute a waiver of
any other breach or any succeeding breach.

1.5 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement
is intended, or shall be construed. to confer upon or to give any person, firm or corporation, other
than the parties hereto, any rights or remedies-under or by reason of this Agreement.

11.6  Executien in Counterparts. For the convenience of the parties, this Agreement
may be executed in one or more counterpants, each of which shall be deemed an original and all
of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. .

1.7 Benefit and Burden. This Agreement shall be binding upon, shall inure to the
bepefit of, and be enforceable by and against, the parties hereto and their respective successors
and permitted assigns.

11.8  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be govemed by and construed in
accordance with the Internal laws of the State of California (excluding application of any choice
of faw doctrines that would make applicable the law of any other state or jurisdiction) and, where
appropriate, applicable federal law,

119 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason and to. any
extent deemed to be invalid or unenforceable, then such provision shall not be voided but rather
shall be enforced to the maximum extent then permissible under then applicable law and so as to
reasonably effect the-intent of the parties hereto, and the remainder of this Agreement will remain
in full foree and effect.

1110 Atiormeys’ Fees. Should a suit or arbitration be brought to enforce or interpret
any provision of this Apgreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable
attorneys’ fess to be fixed in amount by the Court or the Arbitrator(s) {including without
limitation costs; expenses and fees on any appeal). The prevailing party will be entitled to
recover its costs of suit or arbitration, as applicable, regardless-of whether such suit or arbitration
proceads toa final judgment or award.

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, Buyer and Seller executed and delivered this Asset Purchase
Agrecment by their duly authorized representatives as of the date referenced above.

SELLER: BUYER:

BYRON 7. MOLD(, in his capacity AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS LLC
as Assignee for the benefit of creditors ' :
of SLB Toys USA, Ine.

By By:
Byron Z. Moldo Sui Sut Mak, President of
AW Computer Holdings, LLC
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No waiver by a party of any breach of this Agreement will be deemed to constitute a waiver of
any dther breach or any succeeding breach.

115 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement
is intended, or shall be conistrued, to confer- upon or to give any persoh, firm of corporation, other

than the parties hereto, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.

11.6  Execution in Counterparts. For the convenience of the parties, this Agreement
may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which.shall be deemed an original and afl
of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

11.7  Benefit and Burden. This Agreement shall be binding upon, shall inure to the
benefit of, and be enforceable by and against; the parties hereto-and their respective suceessors
and permitred assigns.

118 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be govemed by and construed in
accordance with the intemal kaws of the State of Califomia (excluding application of atiy choice
of law doétrines that would make applicable the law of any other state or jurisdiction) and, where
appropridte, zpplicable federal law.

1.9  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason and to -any
cxtent decmed fo be fovalid or usenforceable, then such provision shall not ke voided but rather
-shall be-enforced to- the maximum extent then permissible ander then applicable law and 3o as.to
-reasonahly effect the intent of the parties hereto, and the remainder of this Agreement will remain
in full force and effect,

1110 Atforneys’ Fees. Should a suit or arbitration be brought to enforee or interpret
any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled o recover feasoniable
attorneys’ fees to be fixed in amount by the Court or the Aibitrator(s) {including without
limitation costs, expenses and fees on any appea!) The prevailing party will be entitled to
recover-its costs of suit or arbitration, ag applicable, regardless of whether such suit.or arbitration
proceeds to a final judpment or award,

IN WITWESS WHEREQF, Buyer and Seller executed and delivered this Asset Purchase
Agreement by their duly aithorized representatives as of the date referenced above.

SELLER: BUYER:
BYRON Z. MOLDQ, in his capacity AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS LLC
as Assignee for the henefit of creditors

of SLB oy%&»\ Ine.
%

Stysogd. Moldo Sui Sui Mak, President of
AW Computer Holdings, LLC
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No waiver by a party of any breach of this Agreement will be deemed o constitute a waiver of
any other breach or any suecesding breach

185 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement
is intended, or shalt be constreed, to confer upon or 1o give any petson, firm or corporation, other
thas, the parfies hiercto, any rights or remedies under of by reason of this Agreement.

11§  Execution in Counterpirts. For the convenience of the parties, this Agrecment
may be exeouted in one or mors counterparts, each of which shall b deemed an origiual and sll
of which together shall constiturs one and the same jnstroment,

1.7 Benefit spd Burdey, This Agreement shall be hinding upon, shall imre to the
besiefit of, and be-enfarceable by and against, the parfies hereto and dieis respective suekessors

end permitted assigne.

113 Govémning Law, This Agreement shall be govemied by and constreed in
accordance with the intensl laws of the State'of California (excluding spplication of any choice
oftaw doctrines that would make applicable thie Yaw of uny other state or Jurisdiction) and, whre
appropriate, anpiicable federal Taw,

139  Sgremsbility ¥ any provision of this Agresment is fbr any reason and 1o sy
extent deemyed 1o be invalid or unenforceable, thea such provision shall not be voided but rather
ghall be enforced o tho maxinmum extant then permissible under then applicable lawand so'as to
reasonﬂbly effect the intent of the parties heeeto, and the remainder of this Agreenieat will remain
in fall force and effect,

1110 Attornevs’ Fees. Should a suit or arbitration be brought to enforee or-interpret
any provision of this Ag‘mmr, the previiling party shall be entitled 1o zecover reasonsble
attorneys™ fags to be fixed in amount by the Court or the Arbitrator(s) (including without
limitation costs; expenses and faes on any appeal). The provailing. pany will be cotitled to ,
Tecover its costs Of sult or arbitration, as applicable, regardiesy of whether such: suit or arbitration !
proceeds to a final judgment or award. ;

IN "WITNESS WHEREOF, Buyer and ‘Seller executed and delivered this Asset Purchase -
Agreement by their duly authorized representatives as of the dats referenced above. ~I

SELLER: BUYER:
BYRON Z. MOLDO, in his capacity AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS LIC
a5 Assignee for the benefit of creditors
of SLB Toys USA, Ine, M/
By By:
Byron Z. Moldo Sui Sui Mak, President of
AW Computer Holdings, LLC
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EXHIBIT A

General Assionment

{To be attached.

AW449



Case 2:08-cv-01281-RSWL-CW Document 34-4  Filed 04/21/2008 Page 17 of 18

GENERAL ASSIGNMENT

THIS ASSIGNMENT made this 19th day of November, 2007, by L8 Tovs
USA, INC,, a New York corporation, having its principal piace of business at 2229 Barry
Avenue, Lus Angeles, California (heeéinafter referred to as ~Assignor™). to BYRON Z.
MOLDO (hereinafier referred to ag “Assignee”).

WITNESSETH: That whereas Assignor is indebted to. various persons and is
desirous of providing for the payment of same, so far as is in its power, by an assignment
of all of its property for that purpose:

NOW, THEREFORE, Assignor, for valuable consideration, receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, does hereby malke the following General Assignment for the
bengfit of Assignor’s creditors to Byron Z. Moldo, as Assignee, under the following
terms ané conditions:

1. Assignor does hereby grant, bargain, s¢ll, assign, convey, and transfer to
Assignee, his successors and assigns, in trust for the ultimate benefit of Assignor’s
creditors generally, all 6f the property-and asseéts of the Assignor of every kind and nature
and wheresoeversituated (collectively, the “Assets™), whetherin possession, reversion,
remainder, or-cxpectancy, both real and personal, and any interest or equity therein;
mcluded thcrem are ail mcn.hdﬂdlae, fumimre F xtures, machmery, eqmpmcm W

trademarks, trade names, copynghts trade secrets mtellectuai property, any: and all r.ght
title, liconss, and/or interest of Assignorin’ advertising, including White'aid Yellow Page
tcicphone listings, any and all right, title, license or other interest in Assignor’s telephone,
fax, orother numbers listed in any advertisement by which business is selicited, any and
all rights and goodwill in'the name “SLB Toys USA. INC.”, Assignor’s complete
coniputer system, and alt other. property of every kind and nature owned by Assigrior, and
without limiting the generality of the foregaing, including all of thc. assets pertaining to
that certain business known as SLB Tovs USA, INC,, located at 2229 Barry Ayenue, Los
Anieles, California 96064. Assignor shall use rﬁasonab'l'e- efforts to have the insurance
policies endorsed over to the Assignee.

2. This Assignment constitutes a grant deed of all real propeity owned by the
Assignor. if any, whether or not said real property is specitically described herein.

3 Leases and leasehold interests in real estate are included in this
assigrment.
4, Assignor agrees (o deliver to Assignee all books of account and records, to

execute and deliver all additional necessary documents immediately upon request by
Assignee, and to endorse alf indicia of ownership where required by Assignee, in order to
complete the transfer of all assets to Assignee as intended by this Assignment, including,
but not limited to, all of Assignor’s real and personal property and/or Assignor’s interest
therein, including mortgages, deeds of trust, moter vehicles, patent rights, trademarks,
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trade names, copyrights, trade secrets and Intellectual property. Assignee is hereby
authorized to execute all endorsements and demands requiring Assignor’s signature, in
the name of Assignor. Assignor further authorizes Assignee to apply for any deposits,
refunds {including specifically among all others, claims for refund of raxes paid) or
claims wherever necessary in the name of Assignor. Assignee is autherized to direct all
Assignor’s United States mail to be delivered to Assignee, and Assignee is expressly
aythorized and directed to open said mail as agent of Assignor, and to do any thing or act
which the Assignee in his sole and arbitrary discretion deems nécessary or advisable to
effectuate the purpose of this Assignment.

5. Assignor and Assignee agrée 10 the following:

a. This instrument trarisfers legal title and possession to Assignee of
all of the above-deseribed assets and Assiynee, in his own diseretion, may direct whether
to continue ali, ur part, of the business opérations, or to liquidate said assets.

. Assignee, at his discretion, may sell and dispose of said assets
upen such terms and conditions as he may see fit; atpublic or private sale. Assignee
shatl riot be personafly liable inany manner, and Assignec’s.obligations shall be in a
representative capacity only in his-capacity-as Assignee for the benafit-of craditors.
Assignee shall administer this estate to the best of his-ability, but it is expressly
understood that he, his agents and/or employees shall be liable only forthe reasonable
care and diligence in said administration, and he shall not be liable for any act or thing, or
any amission o a¢t, done by him, his agents or employees in good faith in connéction
thepewith,

c. From the proceeds of the sale, collections, operations or other
source, Assignee shall pay himself and retain as-Assigniee all ofhis charges and expenses,
together with his own remuneration and fee, which remuneration and fee shall not exceed
the sum of fifteen thousand dollars 1 $13,000.00), plus ten percent 1 [(%%) of the amount of
the proceeds received and handled by the Assignee from sales, collections, operatiéns or
other sonrces. Assignee may also pay from such proceeds reasonable remuneration to his
agents, ztéorneys and accountants, and may pay a reasonable fee to Assignor’s attomey,
Allof the aforementioned amounts are-to be determined at Assighee’s sole direction,
determination and judgment,

d. Assignee may compromise claims, assume or reject Assignor’s
executory contracts, and discharge at his option any liess on said assets and indebtedness
which under law are entitled to priority of payment. Assignee shall have the power to
borrow money, hypothecate and pledge the assets, and t6 do all matters and things that
said Assignor could have done prior to this Assigniment. Any act or thing done by the
Assignez hereunder shall bind the assignment estate and the Assignee only in his capacity
as Assignee for the benefit of creditors. Assignee shall have the rfght o0 sue and defend
suits as _he successor of the Assignor, and the Assignee is hereby given the right and
power to institute and prosecurte legal proceedings in the name of the Assignor, the same
as it the Assignor itself had instituted and prosecuted such proceedings or actions.

604451 §34 00022
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2. Assignor agrees {to the extent assignable by law) to make any and
all claims for refund of taxes which may be due from the Internal Revenue Service or
other taxing agencies for tax refunds, or otherwise, and to forthwith upon receipt of such
refunds pay them over to the Asstgnee, and hereby empowers Assignee to make all
claims for refunds which may be made by Assignor.

f After paying all costs and expenses of administration and.all fees
and all allowed priority claims, Assignee shall distribute to all unsecured creditors, pro
rata, any remaining net proceeds of this assignment estate. Said payments are to be made
until ali assets are exhausted, or these creditors are paid or settled, in full. Thereafter, the
surplus of'moneys and property, if any, shall be transferred or conveyed to the Assignor.
If any undistributed dividends to ¢reditors or any reserve funds shall remain unclaimed
for a period of ninety 190} days after issnance of a final dividend check by the Assignee,
then the same shalt become the property of this Assignee and used to supplement his fees
for servicas rendered in administering this Assignment.

o It i agreed and understood that this transaction is 2 common law
assignment for the benetit of Assigrior’s creditors, and isnota statutory assignment. This
Agreemznt shall be governed by the provisions of section 493.010, et seg., of the
California Code of Civil Progedure.

SLB Toys USA, INC,
aMNew York corporation; ssigner

By: ___ : .
Btian Dubinsky, President

ACCEPTED THIS 19" DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2007:

BYRON Z. MOLDO, ASSIGNEE

604451 834.00022 3
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3 Assignor agrees (fo the extent assignable by law) to make any and
all claims for refund of taxes which may be due from th Internal Revenne Service or
other taxing agenicies for tax refunds, or otherwise, and to forthwith upon receipt of such
refunds pay them over to the Assignee, and hereby empowers Assignee to make all
claims for refiunds which-may be mads by Assignor.

f After paying all costs and expenses of adindnistration and-all fees
and all atlowed priarity claims, Assigneé shall distribute to all unsecured creditors, pro
raig, any remaining rigt proceeds of this-assigmenent éstate. Said paymenits are to be made
until all assets are exhausted, or these creditors are paid or settled, in fill. Thereafter, the
surplus 9f moneys and property, if any, shall be transferred or conveyed to the Assrgno:
If any undistributed dividends te creditors or any reserve funds shall remain unclaimed
for a peried of ninety (90) days after issvance of a final dividend check by the Assignee,
thex the same shall become the property of this Assipnee and used to supplement his fess
for services rendered in administering this Assignment.

g It is zpreed and understood that this transaction is-a common law
assignoent for the benefit of Assignor’s creditors, and is not:a statutory assignment. This
Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of section 493,010, ¢f seq.. of the
California Code of Civil Procedure.

SLB Toys USA, INC,,
a New York corporation, Assiymor

By

Brian Dubinsky, President

eambﬁz MOLDO, ASSIGNEE

604451 834.00022 3
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e Assignor agrees (to the extent assignable by law) to maks any and
all claims for refund of taxes which may be dus from the Intemal Revenue Service or
other taxing agencies for tax refunds, or otherwise, and 1o forthwith upon receipt of such
refunds pay theni over 10.the Assignee and heroby empowers. Assignes 1o make ail
¢laims for refiids wiich may be made by Assignor.

£ After paying all costs and expenses of administration snd all fees
and all allowed pnont}' claims, Assignee shall distribute to-all unsecured creditors; prov
rafd, any remaining net proceeds.of this assignment estate. Said payments are to be made
1mtil all assets are.exhatisted, or these creditors are paid or settled, in full. Thersafer, the
surpivs of mongys-and property, if any, shall be trénsferred or conveyed to-the Assigoor.
If eny undistriburted dividends 10.creditors or-any reserve funds shall remain unclaimed
-for's period of niriety (90 days adler isnuines of 5 final dividend check by the Assigoze,
then the same shall become the propenty of this Assignee and used to supplement his fees
for services rendered in-administering this Assionment,

. Itis agreed and nnderstood that this transaction is 2. common law
assignment for the benefit of Assignor’s creditors, and s not & statutory assignment, This
Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of section 493. 010, et seq., of the
Californiz Code of Civil Procedure.

SLB Toys 1S4, INC,,
a New- York: corporation, Assignor.

By: @M‘—\

v Dk, Prosdeal

ACCERTED THIS 19% DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2007:

BYRON Z. MOLDO, ASSIGNEE

504451 334.00022
AW454
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CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT BY STOCKHOLDERS AND
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

We, the undersigned, Bieing gwiters and holders of 100% of the shares of stock,
being more an 30% of the subscribed and fssued stock, and the Bogrd of Direclors of
SL3 Toys LiSA Inc a New York corporation, do hereby give our consent 1o the within
assigament xod uunsfer of the propesty of said corporation.

NANE ‘ SHARES HELD
Lisa Liw 100%
SLB Toys

t AWASS
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CONSENT OF DIRECTORS TO HOLD MEETING

Los Angeles, Callfornia
November 12th, 2007
1, Llsa Liu, being the soladirector of SL5 Yoys USA, Inc. a torporation, crganized under the laws cf the

State of Naw York, assermblertthis day 2l the office of tha Cororation via telephio & conferenice, 4t Los Angeles

Calticrria, do.hereby-consent that 2 mbeting-of sald directors be held at thls § Placa f the transaction of

such busingss as may come before thie meeting, and wafveany nofice of sal

Filsatds N

Aw456
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING
Les Angeles, Califorriia, November 1s¢t, 2007

At 2 meeting of the directors of SLB Toys USA Inc., a New York Comoration, held at tha office of tha

Corporation, via telephone conference at its place of business, 2228 Barry Avenue. Los Angeles Cafffernia

90684, ath six}o'ciock m, the following ditectors were presant:

LisalLin

Absent:

The President announced that tha purpose of the meeting was fo consider the
financial condltion of the company and the advisability of making a general assignment for
the benefit of creditors.

(O motion by Lisa Lid, seconded by Lisa Liy
the following resclution was adopted, fo-wit:

8% IT RESOLVED:

That Brian Oubinsky, President of this Corpomﬂon be, and Is, hereby authorized
and directed by the direcfors of this Corporation, in meeting -assermbled, to make an
assignment of all assets of the Corporation to Byron Z. Moldo, for the pro ratg benefit of all
credifors of this corporation, and that Srian Dubinsky be, and he is: herehy authorized and
directed to executa sald assignment containing such provisions as may be agreed upon
between him ard Byron L Moldo, (Assignes), and he is also authorized and directed to
axecute and deliver to Byron Z. ‘Molda, as Assignes, such other deeds; assignments, and
agreemeants as may be nacessary to carry this resolution.into effect.

8E T FURTHER RESOLVED:

That said Assignee for the benefit of creditors be, and is hereby, authorized o
execufe and file and prosecute on behalf of this corporation all claims for refund or
ahatemert of all excess taxes heretofore or hereafter assessed against or coflected from this
corporation and any cae officer of this corporation te, and it is, hereby authorized and
directed ‘o make, execute and deliver in faver of such person as may be designated by the
assignee for the benefit of creditors, a power of attorney on the regular printed form theraof
used by the United States Treasury Department so as to authorize said attorney-in-fact to
procass any tax claims for it on behaif of this Corporation.

. There being no further business o come before the directors, the meeting is
adjourned subject to the call of the President or Vice-President.

[, Lisa Lit, Diractar of SL3 Toys USA Inc., a Naw York Corporation, do heraby certify
that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of directors held
in __Los Angeles, California _ at the place and hour stated and that the resolution

04451 §34.00022
AW457
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confained ini sald minufes was adopted by tha directors at said meeting and the same has
not been modified or rescindéed.

Diited Novernber 1, 2007

Lisa LHJ Director

CORPORATE
SEAL

60445, 834.00022
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in __Los Angeles, Calfifornia, at the place /afrd hour staled and tirat the resolution containad
in-54id minotes was adopted.by the directors at said maeting and the same has not been
modifed or rescinded. b

Dated Navembars, 4 ¥

h

i 7%
tisa U, Dirsttod © Y

CORPORATE
SEAL

Page 8 of 18
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EXHIBIT B

JRS-CAROILEGALIISTISS L
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38
45
5A
BA
7A
‘BA
3A
10A
11A
12A

126
127

128
129

ToyQuest

2228 Barry Ave.
Los Angeles, CA

Assets Inventory

Electronics and Computers

Apple G5 Cesklop (upgraded) graphic
Apple:IMAC Besklog (upgraded) graphic

Apple-Servar network with {7) raids-and. accessaly

Apple netwvarking equipment

Cell server power adge 2900

Roulérs, HOB (24P) palch panel, sonic wall
Belkin Powar Conditioners ‘

ONKYO sound system, DVD, cdrw, speakers

Scanners, Zpson, Fujitso

Dall server power edge 1400

Copler
Printers, phioto, inkjet

‘Printers, laser, (Canon, Fpson)

CanonFax

HP Plotter Siectro Static 500PS

Nikon Camera

External Hard Drive Maklar

Palycom Soeaker phone

Sony 50° TV

Panasonic Flat TV

Parasonic Phone Systern Hgh tird digitai

Celf Baskiep Optipiex, Dimension, Precision
Flat moniiors graphics, 15,17,19,22.24,32 inch

Y
(=]

e A D A

Filed 04/21/2008

Page 10 of 18
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ToyQuest
2228 Barry Ave.
Los Angeles, CA

Assets Inventory
Office Furniture

2 Office desks and return. Book shelves, file ¢cabinet 8
3 Ping Pong Table )
4 Basket Ball Hoop 1
5 Office High back chairs 28
& Couches {canvas) and love seat 3
7 Coffes table 2
8 Confersnce Table and 10 chairs and side table 1
9 Beanag chairs 11

Kitehan equipmant; refrigerator, coffeemaker,
10 microwave, table and chairs

11 Couches corner unil and coffée table

3and. Jisplay

Page 11 of 18
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Bills to I’_urchase

Phones: Account #011790110281893004 (Verizon)
Cellular - Account #483020121 (T-Moble) and #828388772 (AT&T)
Account #8857 18753 (AT&T)

COVAD 1si— Account #590373

UPS — Account #£13A05

Pacific Alarm System account— Gustomér #16793

Blue Cross account- Group #285554

Kansas Communications phone acet— Account #001 0803 506807604,

Excel phone- Account #12000006608

DWP — Account #4480769402229000000101 & 4480769402229000000901

Time Wamer cable— Account #8448200190791573

Birius music — Account #1200587211

Tive ~ Sccaunt #0011032676

Gas Company — Account #03738969041

American Express — Primary Account $378207594142007

Bentonville phone — Account #50103-147286

discover.com accaunt

Case No. CV 05-1382 RSWL (CWx} - SLB v. Wham-0Q, Inc. — only the appellate
righits

So. Cal. Disposaltrash — Account #2208

AW463
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALTIFORNIA

SLB TOYS USA, INC., CV 06-1382 RSWL (CWx)

Plaintiff,
ORDER

.

WHAM-O INC., et al.

Defendant.

L L R NP N i S ey ey

Currently before this Court are (1) Plaintiff and
Counterclaim Defendant SLB Toys USA, Inc.’s Motion and
Post-Judgment Motion for Judgment as a Matter of Law or, in
the alternative, for New Trial or to Amend the Judgment; and
(2) Defendant and Counterclaimant Wham-0, Inc.’'s Motion for
Attorneys' Fees. Having considered all papers and

1
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arguments, THE COURT NOW FINDS AND RULES AS FOLLOWS:

As a preliminary matter, the Court overrules as moot

: SLB'S'Objections to Exhibit A of Declaration of Gratzinger

# because the Court did not rely on Exhibit A.

Moreover, the Court overrules SLB’'s Objections to

|| Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Amount because these objections

are not evidentiary cbjectiéns, but merely arguments as to
why certain items of regquested attorneys’ fees are

unreasonable.,

The Court:

- DENIES SLB‘'s Motion for Judgment as a Matter of Law
because sufficient evidence supports jury’s findings;

= DENIES SLB's Motion for New Trial because the verdict
was not contrary to the clear weight of the evidence or
based upon false or perjurious evidence, and there was
no miscarriage of justice; and

- DENIES SLB’s Motion to Amend Judgment because the Court
-was not presented with newly discovered evidence, the
Court did not commit clear error, and there was no

intervening change in controlling law.

In addition, the Court GRANTS Wham-0’'s Motion for

Attorneys’ Fees because this case is “exceptiocnal.” The

2
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case is exceptional because SLB’s conduct was willful and

[ deliberate.

SLB deliberately and willfully infringed and diluted
Wham-0's famous trademark by using the YELLOW mark on SLB’'s
slide products and packaging, even after it received

multiple cease and desist lettéers,

In addition, SLB deliberately and willfully made false
representation to the consuming public by putting a picture
of a yellow water slide on packaging boxes that actually

contained orange water slide prodiucts.

Wham-0 seeks attorneys’ fees in the amount of
$1,648,195 and expenses in the amount of 5125,437.74, for a
total award of $1,773,632.,74,

In addition to awarding attorneys’ fees for work done
iﬁ pursuing Wham-O’s claims under the YELLOW mark, the Court
awards attorneys’ fees for work done regarding SLB's
declaratory judgment claims regarding noninfringement and
invalidity of Wham-0's trademarks because the theories
underlying the declaratory relief claims are also
affirmative defenses to Wham-0’s claims against SLB.
Accordingly, the work done in defense of SLB's declaratory

relief claims and work done in pursuit of Wham-0's trademark

3
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claims are exactly the same work. Therefore, apportionment

is not appropriate.

Moreover, the Court awards attorneys’ fees for work
done in purguing the unsuccessful claim under the
YELLOW/BLUE mark because the claim under the YELLOW/BLUE
mark was asserted to remedy the same course of conduct that
brought about Wham-0's claims under the YRLLOW mark. Also,
the discovery, legal research, and motion practice related

to the YELLOW/BLUE mark are related and inseparable to the

work done for the claims under the YELLOW mark. Thevefore,

apportionment is not appropriate.

However, the following items from the Howard Rice

Billing should not be awarded because they do not represent

work related to Wham-0's Lanham Act claims:

6/6/06 J. Faucette entry (50%) $1935.50
6/6/06 8. Givan entry $25
6/7/06 J. Faucette entry $1215
6/8/06 J. Faucette entry $1575

Total: $4,750.50

All other items billed are reascnable.
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|| IT IS SO ORDERED.

Case 2:06-cv-01382-RSWL-CW  Document 551  Filed 02/26/2008 Page 50f5

In conclusion, the Court awards $1,643,444.50 in
attorneys’ fees and $125,437.74 in expenses, for a total of

$1,768,882.24.

é%maﬁéfhﬁir~

RONALD S.W. LEW
Senior U.$. District Judge

DATED: February 26, 2008
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Wham-0, Inc.,

Manley Toys, Ltd., et

Case 2:08-cv-01281-REWL-CW  Document 171 Filed 07/18/2008 Page 10 @

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CV 08-1281 RSWL (CWx)

Plaintiff,
ORDER

S S e e " e e e " o

Motion of Defendant Samson Chan and Lisa Liu to
Dismiss Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint for
(1) Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction and (2)
Failure to State a Claim Upon Which Relief Can be
Granted or, Alternatively, Motion to Strike and

Motion for a More Definite Statement;

al
Defendants.
Currently before this Court are:
1.
2.

Motion of Defendant Aquawood, LLC and AW Computer
Holdings, LLC, to Dismiss the Seventh Claim for

Relief in the Second Amended Complaint Based Upon
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(A) Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction Under Rule
12(b) (1) and (B) Failure to State a Claim Upon
Which Relief Can be Granted Under Rule 12 (b) (0),
and to Strike Portions of the Prayer Under Rule
12(£);

3. Defendant Dubinsky’s Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff'’s
Second Amended Complaint for (1) Failure to State a
Claim and (2) Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction,
or in the Alternative, Motion to Stay;

4, Defendant Izzy Holdings, LLC’s Motion to Dismiss
Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint for (1) Lack
of Subject Matter Jurisdiction and (2) for Failure
to State a Claim; and

5. Defendant Manley’s Motion for Preliminary
Injunction.

Having considered all papers and arguments, THE COURT

NOW FINDS AND RULES AS FOLLOWS:

The Court DISMISSES the Seventh Claim for Relief as
to all Defendants because the Court lacks subject
matter jurisdiction over the Claim. There is no
federal question jurisdiction over the Seventh Claim
for Relief asserted pursuant to California law.
Moreover, there is no diversity jurisdiction over the

Claim because there is a lack of complete diversity.

Furthermore, there is no supplemental jurisdiction

over the Seventh Claim for Relief for the following
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reasons.

The Seventh Claim for Relief does not share a
common nucleus of operative fact with the other claims
in this action because the Seventh Claim for Relief 1is
based on a different legal theory and underlying facts,
and 1s asserted against additional defendants than

other claims.

The Seventh Claim for Relief is asserted pursuant
to Cal. Code Civ. Proc. § 708.210 et seg. to collect on
money Jjudgment entered in the case of CV 06-1382-RSWL
(“Color Case”) in this Court. The Seventh Claim for
Relief involves allegations of lien, alter ego, and
successor liability. The resolution of this Claim
involves establishing debts owed by retailers to the
judgment debtor, examining transactions between various
entities and individuals, and determining relationships

between various entities and individuals.

On the other hand, other claims in this action are
for violation of the Lanham Act and state unfair
competition law. The resolution of these claims
involves examining the trademark at issue, various
accused products, and other marketing and sales related

conduct of defendants.

Moreover, the Seventh Claim for Relief is the only
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claim asserted against five of the eleven total
defendants in this case. In other words, almost half
of the defendants involved in the Seventh Claim for
Relief are not accused of violation of the Lanham Act

or unfair competition law.

In conclusion, one would not ordinarily expect to
try the Seventh Claim for Relief--to collect on a
judgment in a different case--with the Lanham Act and
unfair competition claims in one judicial proceeding
because they involve different set of facts and legal

theories.

Therefore, common nucleus of operative fact does
not exist, and the Court lacks supplemental

jurisdiction over the Seventh Claim for Relief.

In the alternative, assuming supplemental
jurisdiction exists, the Court declines to exercise
supplemental jurisdiction over the Seventh Claim for
Relief because this is an exceptional circumstance and

compelling reasons exist.
Compelling reasons exist to decline supplemental
jurisdiction over the Seventh Claim in consideration of

judicial economy, convenience, and fairness.

Because the Seventh Claim for Relief involves
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different facts and legal theories as discussed above,
judicial economy would not be served by litigating the

Claim in this action.

Moreover, judicial economy would be served by
declining jurisdiction over the Seventh Claim because
the assertion of the Seventh Claim has created
procedural disputes that would not otherwise exist.
Plaintiff Wham-0 is conducting post-judgment discovery
in the Color Case in preparation for filing motions to
enforce and execute on the Color Case judgment. Among
other things, parties dispute as to who should be
notified of the post-judgment discovery, who may
participate in the post-judgment discovery, and how the
evidence obtained in the Color Case may be used in this
action. Therefore, judicial economy would be served by

declining jurisdiction over the Seventh Claim.

Furthermore, as discussed above, the Seventh Claim
for Relief is the only claim asserted against five of
the eleven defendants in this action. Therefore,
convenience and fairness to parties favor declining
jurisdiction over this Claim so that enforcement of

rights can proceed in a more appropriate case or forum.

In addition, this is an exceptional circumstance
because resolution of the Seventh Claim would largely

involve unnecessary duplication of efforts. A large
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part of the Seventh Claim depends on the Court finding
that various entities are alter egos or successors of
SLB Toys USA Inc.' However, Plaintiff is doing
post-judgment discovery in the Color Case, and has
stated its intention to file a motion to amend judgment
to add judgment debtors in the Color Case before this
Court. Such a motion to amend judgment in the Color
Case before this Court would involve resolution of the

issues of alter ego and successor liability.

Accordingly, to the extent that Plaintiff wants to
pursue collection of a judgment in a different case
(i.e. the Color Case), there are more effective and
efficient mechanisms for doing so pursuant to the

Federal Rules.

In conclusion, assuming that supplemental
jurisdiction exists, the Court declines to exercise
jurisdiction over the Seventh Claim for Relief because
this is an exceptional case, and compelling reasons
exist in consideration of judicial economy,

convenience, and fairness.

1. Per the Motion of Chan and Liu, the Court:
— GRANTS the motion to dismiss the Seventh Claim for

Relief for lack of subject matter jurisdiction for

1 SLB Toys USA Inc. is the judgment debtor in the Color
Case.
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the reasons stated above;

DENIES the motion to dismiss for failure to state a
claim upon which relief can be granted;

DENIES the motion for a more definite statement;
and

DENIES the motion to strike because prejudice has

not been shown.

Per the Motion of Aguawood and AW, the Court:
GRANTS the motion to dismiss the Seventh Claim for
Relief for lack of subject matter jurisdiction for
the reasons stated above;

DENIES the motion to strike because prejudice has
not been shown; and

DENIES as moot the motion to dismiss the Seventh
Claim for Relief for failure to state a claim upon

which relief can be granted.

Per Dubinsky’s Motion, the Court:

GRANTS the motion to dismiss the Seventh Claim for
Relief for lack of subject matter jurisdiction for
the reasons stated above;

DENIES the motion to dismiss as to other claims for
relief; and

DENIES the motion to stay because there 1is
substantial doubt as to whether the state
proceeding will resolve the federal action

involving additional or different parties, legal




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

277

28

Case 2:08-cv-01281-REWL-CW  Document 171 Filed 07/18/2008 Page 8¢l @

theories, and factual issues.

4, Per Izzy'’s Motion, the Court:

- GRANTS the motion to dismiss the Seventh Claim for
Relief for lack of subject matter jurisdiction for
the reasons stated above; and

- DENIES as moot the motion to dismiss for failure to
state a claim.

5. Per Manley'’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction, the

Court:

SUSTAINS Manley Toys, Ltd.’s Objections to Wham-0O,
Inc.’s [Proposed] Findings and Conclusions of Law
Re Denial of Manley Toys, Ltd.’s Motion for
Preliminary Injunction because Plaintiff has not
followed proper procedure in requesting a court
order;

OVERRULES Manley Toys, Ltd.’s Objection to Wham-0O,
Inc.’s Notice of Reliance on Specified Materials in
Opposition to Manley Toys, Ltd.’s Motion for
Preliminary injunction;

DENIES as moot Manley’s Motion to Strike All
References to Evidence Not Provided to the Parties
and the Court because the Court did not rely on
such evidence;

DENIES as moot Plaintiff’s Request for Judicial
Notice because the Court did not rely on the

documents submitted for judicial notice; and
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- DENIES Manley’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction
because Manley has not sufficiently shown
irreparable injury and likelihood of success on the
merits. Manley has not sufficiently shown
irreparable harm because the purported harm could
have been avoided through its own conduct, and
there are legal remedies available to compensate
Manley for its purported harm. Moreover, Manley
has not sufficiently shown likelihood of success on
the merits because Manley has not sufficiently

shown that Wham-0’s conduct was legally wrongful.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

/s/

HONORABLE RONALD S.W. LEW
Senior U.S. District Judge
DATED: July 18, 2008




